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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of CNC Holdings Limited (the “Company’) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

ERBEXZMERATRAGEMZEE

GEMZ EM NAFPEARRM—ELTHNTS LEXARAHELERMERIA LTHARATERSRER
- ARREERTHBRENZEQAAZELAR YREBEHAFZREAFHRERE

HRGEMETHWARZEATNEQT AGEMEE RS ITHEAIBNBXMEIRBEEZBHFA/ATZMHS
REEE FTEEIRBEGEMEE RS EFSREBEEZTS -

BEXGREEERRN AR A BEZABETRE - B A EE L TR I T RK B - I
KBTI & 2 BN E 7 A2 2L B R 5 REAZ 5 Y T S B2 (E ] B K ASE (TN B AT

AR & BB IR T GEMAE S5 LR ([GEME AR ) Mg B B+ BEIFr E ERERBR LA ([ A2 A]])
ZEH ARAEEE ([EF])ERABERF RS FAEZEE L EFEIEL —EEEHEER BRKE
BrAIR IS KR & B B T B EA Ty E 1 J@ B e BRI MR BCRLEF K 7 - H I B R (T B At F IR
HRERHETE N TBH LRI G F#E -

N
2018/2019 4R W, PEFEERIZRARAD



CONTENTS
B i

Financial Highlights

Corporate Profile

Corporate Information

Definitions

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographical Details of Directors
Corporate Governance Report
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

NEIER
EE
TREmEE

B E kDT

EEREHE

ES

il

G

>

e

ES

IS
b
53d

H
=

B BEN RS

o)
il

#

=
W

A

RAFBRRK

3
o
B
o
&
S

B
o
R
k>
i
il
St

ARA WIS IR A

MBHME

@R B 2R R

11

14

17

32

40

68

86

99

101

103

105

107

271

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ERe

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March

Revenue

Gross profit

Loss before income tax

Loss attributable to the owners of

the Company

Basic loss per Share (HK cents)
Dividend per Share (HK cents)

Yo s

EH
BRFTS AT E R
RRBEE ARG
FREE
FRENER GEML)
TS BN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to the owners of

the Company

BEE
AehREEHEED
BaE

ARe)EB NEEED

mEXE

BE=A=+—HIFE

Changes

-12.3%
-89.3%
38.8%

42.5%
42.5%
N/A 3 A

e MR
R=A=+—H

Changes
L)

1.7%
13.7%
9.7%

-27.2%

2019

e
HK$°000
FHET

324,855
3,484
(68,878)

(65,302)
(1.61)
N/A R iE F

2019

S
HK$°000
FET

292,101
79,915
459,092

(166,991)

2018
—E-)N\#F
HK$ 000
FHET

370,515
32,515
(49,639)

(45,817)
(1.13)
N/A 7 i F

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET

287,130
70,296
418,426

(131,296)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
iR

RATIOS =
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Return on equity (Note a) mblH (fita) N/A FEA N/A 7~ A
Return on assets (Note b) BERR (Aitb) -22.4% -15.9%
Current ratio (Note ¢) BN X (KfiFe ) 1.19 times & 0.45 time &
Gearing ratio (Note d) BEBELE (KFitd) 111.0% 102.1%
Notes: Wt -

(a)  Return on equity is calculated as net loss divided by Shareholders’ equity.

(b)  Return on assets is calculated as net loss divided by total assets.

(c) Current ratio is calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

(d)  Gearing ratio is calculated as total amount of promissory note, convertible
notes, finance lease payables and advance received from customers
divided by total assets.

(@) HEEmOIMTIRFEERABRERAE -
b) BELRIZFEERAGEETH

© RBLEXTDRRBDEELERRARD B EHET
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O,

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



CORPORATE PROFILE
ralisn

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of civil engineering
services for the public sector in Hong Kong and television
broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the
PRC) in return for advertising and related revenue.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2010 and the Shares were listed on GEM on
30 August 2010.

Currently, the Group’s television broadcasting business is mainly
carried out through Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific as well as Shenzhen
Qianhai Xinhua TV Cultural Development Limited* (7 31| 511 /& 5 4=
BEMXLERARAA) .

The Group’s business of provision of civil engineering services
for the public sector is carried out through TYW and TY Civil
respectively with TYW responsible for signing and implementing
civil engineering contracts as a main contractor and forming joint
operations while TY Civil responsible for signing and implementing
civil engineering contracts as a subcontractor.

* for identification purpose only

AEBTIERBFBRLHPIRBELIATERS
FERBKE (TEEFE)IEEERERESA
GBS MAARA R -

KRR —_E—ZEF=A+LERERESHS
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AEAM[N

REGISTRATIONS HELD FOR UNDERTAKING

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has obtained the following registrations from Works
Branch Development Bureau (2% & /@ T##}) of the Government

for undertaking projects as a main contractor:

Registration

Rl

RREBIEXRBHE2EM

AEBEABFEERTERRE TR
DB EARENELR:

Value of project which the Group is eligible to undertake
under the relevant registration

REEBEMAEESEREAE IR ZEE

Approved Contractors for Public Works —
Waterworks Category (Group C)
(probationary status)

RA] R R TiRARRE — KB TIRER
(R#E) (TR &)

Approved Contractors for Public Works
— Roads and Drainage Category (Group B)
(confirmed status)

RA R HTIRAER — &R MR TRES
(2#) ([&®R] &)

Approved Contractors for Public Works
— Site Formation Category (Group B)
(probationary status)

RANKTIEAEE - R FETIREAN
(2#) (TR &)

A maximum of two contracts exceeding HK$300 million each in
any one category, provided that the total value of works in any
one category does not exceed HK$700 million

=% AEF— @8R RN IE G 4% 48 1©300,000,000/8 7T+ HE
E— B8 R &) T2 42 (B {8 T8 #5700,000,0007% 7T

Current contract value up to HK$300 million

& 4935 (B & = 300,000,000/ T

Current contract value up to HK$300 million

& #)3R (B & = 300,000,000/ 7T

Also, the Group has registered under the Voluntary Subcontractor — Ith9h - AEE AR E £ @ R 2 FEHRHI1E
Registration Scheme (3@ %IED BEFMEIE) , whichis D EEFMEIE M KA BEBRLEL
maintained by the Construction Industry Council (&% ZEE), ANIIE BEIEREBRSEURKEIER
for participating in civil engineering works, road works and drainage 7% °

services and waterworks engineering services as a sub-contractor.

O\
CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED (6)
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY AT EEE

TEHPAATAR-T—AF=A=+—HZ
R

The following diagram illustrates the corporate structure of the
Company as at 31 March 2019:

The Company
(Cayman Islands)
Investment holding

ARH
(HE#E)
B R
100%
TYW (BVI) Profit Station Succeed Axis Concept CNC Logistic Core Galaxy Shenzhen
Limited Limited Capital Limited Limited Limited Limited Qianhai Xinhua
BVI) (BV)) BV) BV) BV) BV) TV Cultural
Investment Investment Investment Investment Inactive Investment Development
holding holding holding holding CNC Logistic holding Limited*
TYW (BVI) Profit Station Succeed Axis Concept Limited Core Galaxy (PR C)
Limited Limited Capital Limited Limited (REELZES) Limited Advertising
(RBREXHE) (RBEXHE) (RBREXFHE) (RBEXFE) Hmge (RBEXFHE) business
REER REER REER REER REER RYIATEH
ERBE
BRARE
()
BE¥%
100%
100% 100% 100%
TYW TY Civil Karaoke Xinhua TV Belt and Road
(Hong Kong) (Hong Kong) Limited Asia-Pacific China Courtyard
Provision of Holding of (Hong Kong) (Hong Kong) Investment
civil engineering motor vehicles, Provision of Television Development
services and provision of civil management broadcasting Limited
laying of water engineering services business (Hong Kong)
pipes services and ERAERAT HEBRTAL Television
A laying 'of water (&%) (&%) broadgasting
(57%) pipes RUERRT BIRERETS business
RELARTR EELAR —H—EPE
BR7S R BURR (&) RrRERRE
KE FEER R BRAR
RIS K (&%)
BRKE BRI

*ESER

* for identification purpose only
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ra&ai

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Dr. Jiang Yan (Chairman)

Dr. Li Yong Sheng (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Da Yong
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tang Li
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BB8S, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Dr. Li Yong Sheng
Ms. Li Yuet Tai

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Dr. Li Yong Sheng

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yuet Tai, CPA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (Chairman)
Ms. Tang Li

Mr. Law Cheuk Hung

Mr. Wu Guo Ming
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BB8S, JP
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BIRBELE
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ERLL
IS TESEE
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SEERESRE A FH
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FERTE KA EE K Pt

ERERE

REAX

FXTHEL
FHBELL

EREME
ToxkFEL
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TRERE (EFE)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Jiang Yan (Chairman)

Dr. Li Yong Sheng

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B8S, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

¥yHEES

FERK A - %72
SEBREE S A FH L
REsEELE
TRERE

REZES

ZEBT(FE)
AL
B A&
SERREE S A X T
R EAE
FERELE 7=
THEELE

EREEEZES
SBERESL A Fat
REHH KL
FERELE 5 E
ERELE

BB

BEEtMmERAAE
CYCr ES-Figii]

A ERE

Cricket Square

& A Fwt (FE)

B ¥

(/&)

B AFHE

R A]

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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O,

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



CORPORATE INFORMATION
rasgid

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

Suites 2708-10, 27/F,
Everbright Centre,

108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.cnctv.hk

STOCK CODE

8356

HMEREBETEEX LR

BBELT
H T8 1085%
FERH D
27182708-10%

HMEHRERMBFRERLER
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
EBROBFETTE
BEBSFERLERAT

B

B 2 e KB R1835%

A M L2218

FEERERT

BARITAR AR
BB LBELSRITARRAA

ANE

http://www.cnctv.hk

B A7 K55

8356
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DEFINITIONS
=

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following — 7R EA - b X S B AEI » T 57852 5% ]
words and expressions shall have the following meanings when — Z (& oA B X T 5 -

used herein:

“AGM”
[ RBFAE]

“Board”
-4

“BVI”
[RBREZES ]

“China Xinhua NNC”

(B EREERE

“CNC China”

[Fh BT EE T B AR 4
()]

“Company”

ZAYNSIN

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Financial Statements”

[ 75 ¥R K

the annual general meeting of the Company

ARARRBERE

the board of Directors

E=xw

the British Virgin Islands
REBRZES

China Xinhua News Network Co., Limited (FEFEHHEREBER LA, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xinhua News
Agency (#7Z4t ) and a Shareholder of the Company
PEFEFEERBERAF —KRNBETMK L2 ARIRAMEL 2 2 EMW
BAR WRARRRE

hEFEFEEIRB AR 2 A, a company incorporated in the PRC, which owns
100% of the equity interests in China Xinhua NNC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xinhua News Agency and a substantial Shareholder of the Company
REFEFEERMAERAR] — KRR REAGEMK Iz AR #EEFBEFENER
BREI00%RE  RAEG 22 EMBRATRARGB ZEERE

CNC Holdings Limited ( #r BIFTE ERITAER A F)) , a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 15 March 2010
FBETESHEERERAR — ZR T —EF=-AThBERSHESTMAL
ZBRATF]

director(s) of the Company

RRABESE

the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019

AEBEE_T-NFA=1T "B ULFEZLEZMBEHREX

2018/2019 3R
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DEFINITIONS
e &

“‘GEM”
[GEM |

“GEM Listing Rules”
[GEM 1 #3 A1l |

“Government”

[ R |

“Group”
[KEE]

“HK$” and “HK cent(s)”
[E7T] K 7L

“Hong Kong”
(&

“Macau”
[P ]

“Mr. Kan”
[ 85504 ]

“PRC”
[ B

“SFO”
[ 78 7 & B & 1641

“Share(s)”

Nike)

“Share Option Scheme”
[RERx AT 21

the GEM of the Stock Exchange
Bt 22 FTGEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
GEME 7 £ R Al

the Government of Hong Kong

BB

the Company and its subsidiaries
AAal REWB AT

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FRAEEE BT MBI

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B EF B RITTRR

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H BRI R 1T R

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (& B3#F ) , an executive Director
WITESHBELE

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARAME TREEE RMIRAE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended or otherwise modified from time to time
EREDIFEST1EEF LB GO (B TRERT AR A 77 B2

ordinary share(s) of the Company
RRAR 2 EBR

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 11 August 2010
ARFR=F—FF/\A+— AR Z B R B

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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“Shareholder(s)”
[ |

“Shunleetat”

[ Shunleetat J

“Stock Exchange”

56 22 FfT

“TY Civil”

[EXLTK]

“TYW’

[ K%

“WSb”

[7K#5E ]

“Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific”

[(FrEERTAE]

oy
[% ]

holder(s) of the Share(s)
ELESTESIN

Shunleetat (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Kan

Shunleetat (BVI) Limited * —ZX N RBRABHSTEMK L2 RG] HELTELEE
g 2ol

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERHAR AT

Tsun Yip Civil Construction Company Limited (2R T2ERAE]) , a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 16 June 2000 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EEITATIRERAR] — KR _EZZFAATABEEBEMAI2ERA
A DARREZAEEENB AT

Tsun Yip Waterworks Construction Company Limited (3 3 /KFEEEGR A F)) , a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 6 February 1996 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BEEKBREEBRAF — KR —ANARF_AXSNBEEBSZIMKIZERA
a DARRIZzEEZENE AR

Water Supplies Department (/K755 ) of the Government
BT K T%E

Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific Operating Co., Limited (TEE Rz KRS EZLAR AR, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 22 December 2009 and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MESEDABEBELEEAERAR —ZXR_EFNF+ A+ _BEEETMK
NZERAT BIARRZEEEEKE QR

per cent
Aot

2018/2019 3R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTEREESE

To all Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

During the year ended 31 March 2019, we had obtained
approximately HK$324.9 million (2018: approximately HK$370.5
million) revenue, which represented a decrease of approximately
12.3% over the revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The gross profit of the Group was amounted to approximately
HK$3.5 million (2018: approximately HK$32.5 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The net loss of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$65.3 million (2018: approximately HK$45.8
million), representing an increase of approximately 42.5% from that
of previous year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year, revenue derived from provision of civil engineering
services remained as core business of the Group and thus the main
contributor of revenue of the Group. In the meantime, the Group
devoted efforts to develop its television broadcasting business.

[l::3

PR

M2t

K

AABERKREZTEMAREAEEEEZ_F
~NEZA=T-"HLFEZFEXRE-

FERE

HE-_ZT-NAF=ZA=+t—HIFE K&
& HY 15 #9324,900,0008 7T ( =& — )\ F : &
370,500,000 L) 2 W& BWEE =T — \F
AT —RAEFEZRER D H12.3% °

AEBRHEZ - Z—NWF=ZA=+—HBItF
B 2 EMEL A3,500,0008 7T (ZBE—NF 4
32,500,000 7T ) °

BHE-_Z-hWhF=A=+—BLILFE K&E
2 F 1B 497565,300,0008 7T (ZE—N\F: 4
45,800,000/8 70 ) B —FZIE H14942.5% o

KA =

FARETARTERGEE VRN AAEE

ORI AN RANEE 2 T B EHR
BRI AEES D EREBRBEMERS -

®
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In past few years, Hong Kong construction companies has been
facing tougher competitive condition as well as the slower progress
of scrutinizing the funding proposals for public works projects
due to the political and social chaos in Hong Kong. Furthermore,
the saturation of this industry accelerates the keen competition in
the construction market. Looking forward, the competition of the
construction market will continue to be intense and exacerbated
in coming years notwithstanding the fact that the Government has
implemented different policies which may in turn revitalise Hong
Kong'’s construction industry. At the same time, the industry has
been suffered from high construction costs and insufficient labour
in recent years which would have adverse impact on the profit of
this business segment. Having all things considered, the Group
would stay alert to get well prepared for the challenges and take
certain cost control measures to maintain the profitability of this
business segment. The Group still remains prudently positive about
the construction industry in Hong Kong.

The Group has suffered from the expansion and growing trend of
digital advertising which has changed the demands of its audiences
in digital space. Such new technologies and intense competition
created a negative impact on advertising revenue of the Group and
thus the Group continued to sustain larger pressure and challenges
in both development and profitability of traditional television
broadcasting business. Under this circumstance, the Group
has adjusted its strategy to open up any possible and potential
business opportunities by co-operating with different partners and
adopting different development strategies for generating synergies
between different segments and media platforms.

RBEHF BERERRHAY ARBRIKRZEHR
FR BEARBBEZBARMESY BF
NETRAR ZBFEZEREE - BHN %17
XZBMMEB TREMH AN F - RER
K BEBRNCERZRBEBER  ZFBRAER
BRZBERTIAFOEN ERKBFRERE
MG ZBHFNE BRI INE - BRI ZITE
MER-—EXINSBZEERARBHNTR

FE WHHZEB DM BEE NN
B-BEEMERER AEEBREFEE B
PREL i or 7T o0 HE 4 - AL BRERE TR ANE I 45 7
N XD B2 BREES - NEBEINYE
BREERFERREE-

AEE-EHRBFREESERETEERE
BFERERE TERYHFEENFR - A
i ARG R AR E 2 BE W mERE

T8 R AEEEENGRERERERE
BERRERBFEN 2 WKENRIE - RILIF
AT AEESRAERE  BRETRAIERH
BYEFREEM AT B X RA AR %
FRES WETR DA RRE e 2MELR
[F] 20 & o

®
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTEREESE

In order for the Group to achieve sustainable development and
business growth, the Group will actively explore all suitable
investment opportunities to diversify the Group’s business
horizons and will continue expanding the operations of the Group
in sustainable manner. The Group aims to improve business
competitiveness and prospect, thus creating a stable profit stream
in the long term and generates long term investment return for the
shareholders of the Company.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my most sincere appreciation to all the management team
and staff for their dedication and contribution over the past years. |
would also like to thank all the Shareholders, customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continuous support and trust.

Jiang Yan
Chairman

19 June 2019

RERAKERFERREEBER A5HE
HIEBSRMAERERERS  LWBERASE
ZEBHE WAKESRAFENNERAE
Bz 2 E AEBBNRERBHF N RS
fem alE R BIRE W BRARIR - X AR R FX
REREREREBR-

&

R AANBRUIKERRETSHEEEE
EERETEBEZFNBE I RERMBUARDL
MEWRBAERR TP HEARELE
MR AFEEE

“E-NAEXNATAAE

®
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI mR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of civil engineering
services for the public sector in Hong Kong and television
broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the
PRC) in return for advertising and related revenue. During the year
ended 31 March 2019, the Group continued to focus on rendering
civil engineering services to the public sector in Hong Kong and
further develop its television broadcasting business in the Asia-
Pacific region (excluding the PRC).

Provision of civil engineering services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has been
undertaking three main contracts and eight subcontracts. Among
the eleven contracts, two of these are related to provision of
waterworks engineering services and the remaining contracts are
related to provision of drainage services and site formation services.
Details of the contracts undertaken are set out below:

EHoE

AEET2REBRNEMARBEIARIRERS
ERERER(TMEFEHE)ETERERER
MEBGREMMABRE BE-T—NF=A
St RLEFE AEBEEFINERER
NEMPHRE AT RS LE - TRRE
REAXR (TEERE) 2 ERERES -

RHUELARKIERRS

BHE_ZT-NF=ZRA=1+—BLFE *&H
—BEETZHEIAORNESBEHN -NZF
T—IRA AP R R R HKE T2 R
B A ORI EE R IR M 88 F &
RSB R - FTARA N ZFBHEINMT

Contract period
Contract number Particulars of contract Client under main contracts
BNES: BHFHE EF RETAONEHE
Main contracts
E=F)
3/WSD/13 Mainlying near She Shan Tsuen, Tai Po WSD Sept 2013 -Jul 2016
AR FBOKEBR T2 KBE —Z-=FNRE
ZZ-RELHA
DC/2013/09 Advance Works for Shek Wu Hui Sewage ~ Drainage Services Jul2015 - Aug 2017
Treatment Works - Further Expansion Department of the
Phase 1A and Sewerage Works at Ping Government
Che Road
g KEERAATE-E-SER BRIRHZE “E-1FtAE
FIAR T B EMTKETR ZE—+ENA
Q067133 Elevated Road along LOHAS Park Road MTR Corporation Mar 2019 - Jul 2019
and the Pedejtrian Footbridge FB1 Limited
HEARRARBRRAIAKEBT  BAEBBRAR  —E-NF=RZE
“E-NEFEA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI R S

Contract period
Contract number Particulars of contract Client under main contracts
BHESR ARFEE EF BEXEONENEH
Subcontracts
2EEN
DC/2012/04 Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, Kau  Hsin Chong Tsun Yip  Jun 2012 - Dec 2017
Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang Joint Venture
BEAME NWERZERZTIKKE HEEEHS —E-—FXAE
25 “E—+FTA
DC/2012/07 Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — village Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Oct 2012 - Jul 2016
sewerage, stage 2, phase 1 Joint Venture
MR AT E Z5t— F2RE R E1H MEEXHE “E-_FtHE
—T-RELHA
DC/2012/08 Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — village Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Oct 2012 - Aug 2016
sewerage, stage 2, phase 2 Joint Venture
M AT KU R 5 — F2R R E28 MEEREE S A
ZE-RENA
5/WSD/13 Replacement and rehabilitation of water Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Nov 2013 — May 2016 Total contract value
mains, stage 4 phase 1 and stage 4 Joint Venture HK$2,211.9 million
phase 2 — mains in northern and eastern BEWER
New Territories 2,211,900,00078 1
FARBEKEIRFERE1AREL MEEXHE I B
B - AN B REHKELR —E-"FAHA Total amount of
works certified
CV/2015/03 Site Formation and Infrastructural Works Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Nov 2015 - May 2019 (Note)
near Tong Hang Road and Tsz Tin Road Joint Venture HK$1,959.6 million
in Area 54, Tuen Mun CREIRAR
MOEFIARETRREEROMBTE HEEXHE I (Hizt)
RERIR —Z-NFERA 1,959,600,00075 7T
810B West Kowloon Terminus Station South, Laing O'Rourke - Hsin ~ Jun 2015 - Oct 2015
Contract 810B Chong - Paul Y
Joint Venture
B (F) - 548108 BEOR—FE - “T-RERAZE
RERS ZE-RET+A
Q044763 Elevated Road along Lohas Park Road and  Hsin Chong Sept 2016 - Nov 2018
the pedestrian footbridge FB1 Construction
N Company Limited
TH R 8 2 B AR k1T AKRIEFBI MEZER “E-"FNRE
AR AT ZE-N\FEt+—A
CV/2016/10 Site Formation and Association Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Dec 2017 - Jun 2021
Infrastructural Works For Development of Joint Venture
Columbarium at Sandy Ridge Cemetery
ROBRERREREN T TER MEEXHE “E+FTAFE
HEERTR —E--FXA

Note: Amount of works certified is based on the certificates of payment — Wit EZETELHEIIRERFTF KT 2151 E

received from client. BE -

A
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Among the above eleven contracts, a main contract (contract
numbered Q067133) was newly awarded while three subcontracts
(contract numbered DC/2012/04, DC/2012/07 and Q044763) was
completed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the two contracts with
contracts numbered CV2015/03 and CV2016/10 were the
main contributors to the Group’s revenue, which generated
approximately HK$118.6 million and approximately HK$143.5
million, constituting approximately 36.5% and approximately
44.2% of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

Television broadcasting business

Facing keen competition as well as deteriorating market
development, the Group continued to sustain larger pressure and
challenges in this business segment which have created certain
pressure to the Group’s revenue and gross profit margins in this
year. The Group intended to seize the opportunities of the “Belt
and Road” strategy to redevelop the Chinese ancient architectures
and the Group intended to co-operate with different investors of
redevelopment of ancient architectures to produce documentary
and promotional video to record the redevelopment process of
such redevelopment so as to increase the revenue of the television
broadcasting business. However, due to the trade disputes and
other factors, the global economy became unstable in year 2018
and thus the development of redevelopment of the Chinese ancient
architectures became stagnate and did not generate satisfactory
result.

REf+—BE8HF  —BEEH (EHFERKR
QO67133) i ER  M=—EHABE K (B 4F
5% ADC/2012/04 ~ DC/2012/07 }2Q044763) B
REE-T-—NF=ZA=T—HLEFETK-

BHE-—"T-hAE=A=+—BILEE 44K
8% ABCV2015/03%.CV2016/102 M IE A #) 2 A
£E 2 EZWERIR - 9 BIE 4 49118,600,000
7 7T & 49143,500,00078 7T * 15 A = B 42 U 25 49
36.5% K 4944.2% °

BERBEHRE

[EY ERE SN - A TRk 9523,/ OV AN
SE LR BB AR S Mk E
HEHAREE 2 AFEWEREMNREX—TE
B AREEHEE w1 2BBERS
ERANGERECEEREZEZTRERE
ERFRFRBEBR ULSARERZZER
Bz IR INEARE R E B S - AT AR
BoFmERER 2HEER T —\FET
SE AL EZPEEZENERER T X
ABEL ANRERAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R S

However, in the current year, the Group had successfully entered
into an advertising agency agreement pursuant to which the
Group granted the exclusive right to use certain documentary
programmes produced by the Group and partial advertising time
slot of China Xinhua News Network Channel and China Xinhua
News Network World Channel (collectively the “CNC Channels”) to
the advertisement agent exclusively for a total minimum guarantee
of USD1.01 million for term of two years. The Group believes that
the new co-operation arrangement would increase the utilization of
airtime slot of the CNC Channels as well as minimize the costs and
risks.

The Group would continue to seek other suitable opportunities to
diversify its sources of income and is actively looking for candidates
that can further broaden and enrich the management’s expertise
and experience and assist the Group in executing an appropriate
business strategy to better position the Group in a highly
competitive business environment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group reported a
revenue of approximately HK$324.9 million (2018: approximately
HK$370.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately
12.3% as compared with that for the previous year. The revenue
derived from provision of civil engineering services and television
broadcasting business constituted approximately 99.7% and 0.3%
of the Group’s total revenue respectively. The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the decrease in work order from certain civil
engineering projects completed during the year and reaching the
maintenance stage or nearly completion stage. For the year ended
31 March 2019, the Group derived aggregate advertising revenue
of approximately HK$1.0 million (2018: approximately HK$1.1
million) from television broadcasting business.

Am - RAFE  NREERNFT L —HEERE
ek - Bt AERERESRIEEREEERAR
SEEHENE TLER ARTBEHFEERPX
BRTEMEEREES (FHE ICNCIHE])
MBIESRENEER RERECAER
1,010,0005 7T IR /5 R 4F - AN S B AR {E #7190
BYEZBERIEINCNCIRBHE LR RV E A E -
A A% KPR JE 3 3 AR X AN e ol B o

R S B R A B DB B AR
BT BESRAE - SEEEEEEE
B A RS BR A IRIE A - S B R S 5
T LIS ER AT AR B
AR LB TR -

Bt %5 [ B

iy 2

BHE—"T-AE=A=+-BHILEE ~&H
$% 15 Y 25 49324,900,000/8 7T (ZE— NF : 4
870,500,000/ 7T ) * BAF 1 4912.3% © 12 i
TARTRBRBERERBRESEE 2 Wz H 7
16 72N £2 [ 48 UK 25 4999.7% f2.0.3% © Y 258 4
EHNFRETEIAIRBEEERT REBR
BERBSEIR TREMERTIZETER D
M- BE-_T-NF-A=-Z+—BHLFE K&
B EARE N EBEEESKELEEL1,000,000
BT (ZZF— \F : 491,100,000/ 7T ) °
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue of the Group
was primarily generated from the undertaking of civil engineering
contracts in the capacity of a subcontractor and a joint-venturer.
The breakdown of total revenue by nature of capacity of the Group
is set forth below:

BE_T-NF=A=+—BLFE T~&H
W ETZRAUDERRAEERGNEAEZ
TARTREAHN -RAKEFNEES B Z BN
A IFHEIIIT

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-BLEE

Main contractor IEEY
Subcontractor NEBE

Jointly controlled operations HEEGIEE
Total B

2019 2018
“E-NE —“Z-)N\F

HK$'000 % of total HK$'000 % of total
1hAE5 1haasE

FET B2 (%) FET A7 (%)
31,796 9.8 59,470 16.1
141,222 43.6 194,758 52.7
150,877 46.6 115,192 31.2
323,895 100.0 369,420 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R S

Cost of services

The Group’s cost of services decreased by approximately 4.9% to
approximately HK$321.4 million (2018: approximately HK$338.0
million) for the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared with that
for the previous year. The Group’s cost of services mainly includes
costs of construction services, costs of television broadcasting
business and other direct operating costs. Costs of construction
services mainly comprise raw materials, direct labour and
subcontracting fee for services provided by the subcontractors.
Costs of television broadcasting business mainly comprise
transmission costs, broadcasting fee and other direct costs
attributable to television broadcasting business. Transmission
costs comprise satellite transmission fee and carriage fee payable
to satellite operators while broadcasting fee comprises annual fee
payable to media broadcasting providers and China Xinhua NNC.
Other direct operating costs mainly comprise depreciation charges
of LED displays screens. The following table sets out a breakdown
of the Group’s cost of services:

AR AR A

AEBREBEE-ZT-—NF=ZA=+—H8H1
FE 2 RIS A A 4321,400,0008 ¢ (= F
— )\ £ : #9338,000,000/8 7T ) * & = F @M D 4
4.9% - REERREK AL EBIERERBEK
KN BRIEHEBKAREMEELEHA &
ERBEAATEBERME EESIEDE
FEREREN D BER EHRBEREBFKAE
EREEEARA EHREARERBERESE
HEMEEN R SEXKABEHEEXER
RENMGELERNZ2ERER mMEKREAL
BIERN TEHEEBENHER RPN ENESE
Rz FEB A EELEKAEZEBELEDRE
TRIZITEER - TR AEBERBEKA 2

G

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-BLEE

Costs of construction services BERBERAE
Raw materials Rt
Direct labour HEEST
Subcontracting fee ABEER
Other direct costs HEMEREKA
Subtotal NEF
Costs of television broadcasting business EH EREB R A
Transmission costs BERKR
Broadcasting fee BHER
Other direct costs attributable to television ERBMEB RN
broadcasting business HiEERA
Subtotal IR
Other direct operating costs HttEELE MR
Subtotal IR
Total ok

2019 2018

“E-NE —E-N\E
HK$'000 % of total HK$'000 % of total
1hAE5E s
FET B2 (%) FET A7 (%)
24,049 7.5 39,545 11.7
83,082 25.8 87,096 25.8
74,194 23.1 116,682 34.5
129,433 40.3 82,439 24.4
310,758 96.7 325,762 96.4
2,500 0.8 2,500 0.7
6,123 1.9 6,147 1.8
945 0.3 1,585 0.5
9,568 3.0 10,232 3.0
1,045 0.3 2,006 0.6
1,045 0.3 2,006 0.6
321,371 100.0 338,000 100.0
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Gross profit

The gross profit for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
decreased by approximately 89.3% to approximately HK$3.5
million (2018: approximately HK$32.5 million). The gross profit
margin of the Group was approximately 1.1% (2018: approximately
8.8%) for the year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease in gross
profit was mainly due to decrease in work from certain civil
engineering projects completed during the year, reaching the
maintenance stage or nearly completion stage and thus marginal
profits decreased for the year.

Other income

The Group’s other income for the year ended 31 March 2019
decreased by approximately 89.0% to approximately HK$0.5
million (2018: approximately HK$4.1 million) as compared with that
for the previous year. The other income mainly consisted of cash
dividend received from investment in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the year. The decrease in other income
was mainly due to the realised gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss recognised in the previous year.

Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses for the year ended 31 March
2019 increased by approximately 10.3 times to approximately
HK$3.0 million (2018: approximately HK$0.3 million) as compared
with that for the previous year. Other gains and losses mainly
consisted of gains arising from extinguishment of promissory note,
net gains on foreign exchange difference and net gains on disposal
of property, plant and equipment for the year.

Amortisation expenses

The Group’s amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 March
2019 decreased by approximately 5.8% to approximately HK$18.6
million (2018: approximately HK$19.7 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The amortisation expenses mainly
consisted of amortisation charges of television broadcasting right
and film rights for the television broadcasting business.

ER

AEEREBEZE-_TE—NF=-A=1+—HLLHF
& 2 E£H 543,500,000 (ZE— NF: 4
32,500,000/ 7T ) * B & F L 2 £989.3% o AN &
EREE-_T—NF=-A=+—HLEFEZE
FEABL11% (ZF—\F : 498.8% ) - EFIR
LPHEEHRFRETLEIATIEBEENITRED
BT REBREBBEOTIREMERT
R AL BERFERAFEERD -

H g A

AEBREBE-_Z—NWEF=-A=+—HLFE
mﬁm%Aﬁmammm@n(_f—Aﬁ-m
4,100,000 7T ) * B AF R A #189.0% o HAb Uk
AT EBEAFEEERABREEAFTEARY
CREEREWRIKMRESRKRE - K AR
DEZHNBEFECHEREBBEZATE

ARZEREEZER WP

Hib s R EE

AEEBRBE-_Z-NEF=A=+T—HILEHF
EZﬁMWE&%Eﬁ%wmmm%m(_v
— J\5F : #9300,000/ 7T ) - A F 1L 11 4910.3
B AFEHMBEREEEIEBEEBZAN
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EWE BEREE WG FE-

BEMAx

AEBREBE-_Z—NLEF=A=
2 B 5 5%918,600,0008 7T (=&
#919,700,000/ 7T ) * B & F Rk L £5.8% o
X T EREERBRES S
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—\&F:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R S

Selling and distribution expenses

No selling and distribution expenses were incurred for the year.
The selling and distribution expenses of approximately HK$O0.1
million mainly consisted of advertising expenses for the television
broadcasting business for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2019 decreased by approximately 30.1% to approximately
HK$22.4 million (2018: approximately HK$32.1 million) as
compared with that for the previous year. The administrative
expenses mainly consisted of auditors’ remuneration, legal and
professional fees, staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration),
depreciation expenses and rental expenses. The decrease in the
administrative expenses was mainly attributable to effective cost
control for the year.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2019
decreased by approximately 22.9% to approximately HK$25.7
million (2018: approximately HK$33.3 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The finance costs mainly consist of
interest expenses for the promissory note and convertible notes.

Assessment of recoverable amount of intangible assets

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with China Xinhua NNC, APT
Satellite TV Development Limited and Proud Glory Investments
Limited to acquire entire equity interest of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$700.0 million,
comprising (a) issuance of 474,335,664 Shares to China Xinhua
NNC at HK$0.196 per share; and (b) HK$607,030,210 by way
of the issue of the convertible notes to China Xinhua NNC, Proud
Glory Investments Limited and APT Satellite TV Development
Limited at a conversion price of HK$0.196 per Share. The Group
completed its very substantial acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interest in Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific on 9 December 2011
and commenced the television broadcasting business since then.

HERDHMAX

AERVEELHERDHAZ - BE-F N\
F-AZT - ALFEZHERDHEAXH
100,000 T EEBREREREH ZEEH
io

TTHRX

AEERBE_ZT—NF=-A=+—RHLFE
HI1T B 2 B #722,400,0008 7T ( —Z— N\ & :
#932,100,000/% 7T ) * ] A F R 2> 4980.1% 1T
B T ZREZEBMEH EENEXER -
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The recoverable amounts of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March
2019 and 2018, were determined with reference to a valuation
conducted by an independent valuer, based on income-based
approach, after considering the financial information of Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March 2019 and 2018, including but not
limited to (i) the financial position of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 and 2018; (i) the total revenue
derived from television broadcasting business; (iii) number of
existing contracts and memorandum of understanding; and (iv) the
market and industry condition. The recoverable amount of Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific has been determined on the basis of value in use
calculation and is based on certain key assumptions. The value
in use calculation is based on discounted cash flow projections
prepared from financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of
22.14%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2.5% for different countries and the growth
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
industry. The discount rates used reflect specific risks to the
segment. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflow and outflows include
budgeted revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development and possible business opportunities of
television broadcasting business.

The recoverable amount of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific approximated
to the carrying amount of intangible assets, i.e., television
broadcasting right as at 31 March 2019. Therefore, no impairment
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019. To
the best of knowledge and belief of the Directors, there had not
been any change of valuation methodology and basis of valuation
as at 31 March 2019 and no other changes in circumstance and
reasons giving rise to changes in valuation approach. All changes
of inputs were made to reflect the recent development of television
broadcasting business as compared to that expected in previous

years.
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FHRzASRECKAMRTRBEKRK2.5% 218
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The recoverable amount of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific approximated
to the carrying amount of intangible assets, i.e., television
broadcasting right as at 31 March 2018. Therefore, no impairment
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2018. To
the best of knowledge and belief of the Directors, there had not
been any change of valuation methodology, basis of valuation
and assumptions as at 31 March 2018 and no other changes
in circumstance and reasons giving rise to changes in valuation
approach. All changes of inputs were made to reflect the recent
development of television broadcasting business as compared to

that expected in previous years.
Net loss

The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2019 increased by approximately 42.5%
to approximately HK$65.3 million (2018: approximately HK$45.8
million) as compared with that for the previous year. The increase
in net loss was mainly resulted from decrease in gross profit and
increase in fair value loss of financial assets at fair value through
profit of loss for the year.

Loss per Share

The basic loss per Share for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK1.61 cents (2018: approximately HK1.13 cents).

PROSPECTS

The Group anticipates that it is still a challenging year for the
forthcoming year. The provision of civil engineering service business
will continue to provide a stable source of revenue and remains
the major contributor to revenue while the Group will continue
to develop the television broadcasting business. The Group will
continue to diversify the business spectrum and to broaden the
revenue base of the Group.
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Provision of civil engineering services

The Group is currently facing tougher operating environment in
respect of provision of civil engineering services business. The
construction industry in Hong Kong is very challenging in recent
years due to the growing number of competitors for limited
available tenders for construction works even though certain large
projects would be launched by the Hong Kong Government.
Furthermore, the shortage of supply of experienced labour and
increase in raw material price would have adverse impact on the
profitability of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group anticipates that the Hong Kong
construction market will remain challenging with rising trend in
subcontracting costs and intensive competition, which is expected
to continue to place repeated pressure on the profit margin of
the Group. In face of these risk factors, the Group is always
cautiously monitoring the overall construction costs with respect
to the works undertaken by the Group, providing more accurate
basis for bidding and quotations of new construction contracts
and reviewing the overall progress and performance of different
construction contracts which are affected by various different
situations including, but not limited to the overall market conditions,
costs in the construction industry and the overall economy in
Hong Kong. The Group will continue to exercise due care in the
pursuance of this core business so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in this industry and adjust its business strategies from
time to time if required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI R S

Television broadcasting business

The forthcoming financial year is expected to be challenging due
to the competitive market conditions in the advertising industry.
However, the Group is still prudently confident about the outlook
and the prospects of the advertisement and culture market in
Hong Kong and the Asia-Pacific. By capturing the opportunities
of resume and new development of the “Belt and Road” initiative
in the World recently, the Group aimed at speeding up the
development of potential redevelopment of Chinese ancient
architectures in countries or regions and co-operating with different
investors of redevelopment of ancient architectures to produce
documentary programmes of television broadcasting business.
The Group will also stay alert of any changing business environment
that may impact on its operations and its profitability. At the same
time, the Group will evaluate and determine if any business strategy
can be adopted in order to take advantage of growth opportunities
as they arise in all regions. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to differentiate itself in a strong position to capture any opportunities
of advertising market by a balanced and synergistic approach and
the Group will continue to explore cooperation and investment
opportunities to enrich our business and broaden our income
stream.

In light of increasing challenges due to market situations, the
Group will continue to monitor market changes and is determined
to enhance operation efficiency and capture market consolidation
opportunities that come along. The Group will cautiously monitor
its business segments and assess new opportunities with a view to
delivering sustainable shareholders’ returns. The Group will make
use of experience gained in the current businesses and adhere its
development strategy to explore potential business opportunities
and expand the income streams of the Group.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Shares were listed on GEM on 30 August 2010. The capital of
the Group comprises only ordinary shares.

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$167.0 million in deficit as at 31 March 2019
(31 March 2018: approximately HK$131.3 million). The decrease in
equity was mainly resulted from net loss for the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group generally
financed its operations through internally generated cash flows.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$33.2 million (31 March 2018: net current
liabilities of approximately HK$222.8 million), including cash
balance of approximately HK$79.9 million (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$70.3 million). The current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 1.19 as at
31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: approximately 0.45). The increase
in current ratio were primarily due to the fact that the promissory
note and convertible notes were extended to 30 June 2020 and 9
December 2020 respectively and thus reclassified as non-current
liabilities.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, which is based on the total amount of
promissory note, convertible notes, finance lease payables and
advance received from customers divided by total assets, was
approximately 111.0% as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018:
approximately 102.1%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

iﬂ l=' u-_I of Bﬁ T‘ﬁ

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in the functional currency of each individual group
entity. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was
mainly exposed to foreign currency exchange risk of Renminbi and
the management mainly monitored the foreign currency exchange
risk with advices from the Group’s major banks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2018: nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s motor vehicles with net book
values amounted to approximately HK$0.1 million were held under
finance lease. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s motor vehicles
and machineries with net book values amounted to approximately
HK$4.7 million and approximately HK$0.7 million respectively were
held under finance lease.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 March 2018: Nil).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 234 full-time staff in
Hong Kong and over 90% of them are direct labour. Total staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$92.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$101.7 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 9.6% over that for the previous year. The decrease
was mainly due to the effective cost control for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held 20% equity interest in the
issued share capital of Beijing Hua Dong Express Rail Media
Technology Limited* (1t REE®) = EFERIEL B R A F]) which is
engaged in provision of audio and video mobile content services in
Express Rail in the PRC as a long term investment. On 15 February
2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which the Group disposed of the entire 20% equity
interest in the issued share capital of Beijing Hua Dong Express Rail
Media Technology Limited* (1t REE) S EEERHT AR A F]) to
an independent third party at approximately RMB1.07 million. The
disposal has been completed in April 2019.

Except for investment in subsidiaries and the investment as
disclosed above, during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as
at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
BEEEFHIE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Jiang Yan (&%) , aged 50, the chairman of the Board,
is responsible for the overall business planning and corporate
strategy of the Group. Dr. Jiang obtained a Doctorate of philosophy
in Science from University of Science and Technology of China ( A1
Bl Rl E 4 17 K &) in 2003. Dr. Jiang joined Xinhua News Agency
after his graduation from university in 1990 and held the positions
of the deputy officer and the officer of Scientific Editorial Office of
International Department of Xinhua News Agency* ( #1% #+ BIER
R REEEET L EI) . He had been the vice-president
of Xinhua News Agency European Regional Bureau* ( ¥ 4+ B
@52+ K ) since 2009, and had been re-designated as the
deputy officer of International Department of Xinhua News Agency*
(FrEHBEBR IR ET) from 2015 to 2017. Apart from the
positions held in Xinhua News Agency, Dr. Jiang took a temporary
post as the deputy general secretary of Cheng Jiang County of
Yun Nan Province of the PRC* (Em A/ IZP HEZRIER) .
He had also held the positions as the Deputy Secretary of Chinese
Society for Science and Technology Journalism* ( /7 B &} 37 B
B&aME K ) and the Secretary of The Beijing Press Association
— Science Field* (dt REHE R M EK) , and was a member of
the International Journalists Alliance — Science Field* ( it S£ &}
SCEB B ) . Dr. Jiang is currently the chairman of the board and
chief executive officer of CNC China and director of China Xinhua
NNC. In the last three years, he held no directorship in any listed
public companies. Dr. Jing has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 14
August 2017, and will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other or three months’ salary being payment in lieu of notice.
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Dr. Li Yong Sheng (Z=k #) , aged 48, vice-chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Group, is responsible for
overseeing the overall project management and daily operations.
Dr. Li is a reporter superior ( £1EF27 ) of Xinhua News Agency
and has been working in Xinhua News Agency since his graduation
from Wuhan University with a degree of Bachelor of Economics and
Management in 1992. Dr. Li obtained a Doctorate of philosophy
in Economics from Wuhan University of Technology in 2010. Dr.
Li has held the positions of reporter and editor in financial and
economical businesses. Dr. Li has served as the associate director
of the service line of Xinhua News Agency ( ¥« iR 7% Z 42 2 42
B2) since 2003 and the editor of Xinhua News Agency Audio and
Video News Desk and the officer of the Financial Television Centre
(B ER O ET) since 2009. Dr. Liis currently a director of
China Xinhua NNC. In the last three years, Dr. Li did not hold any
directorship in any listed public companies. Dr. Li has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 8 December 2017, and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other or three months’ salary being
payment in lieu of notice.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
BEEEFHIE

Mr. Liu Da Yong (2IKE) , aged 44, obtained a Bachelor degree
of Law in Armed Police College in 2007. Mr. Liu joined Xinhua News
Agency in 2005 and held the positions of assistant editor of Xinhua
News Agency Audio News Desk ( ¥72E & & # 1) and the legal
specialist of Xinhua News Agency Audio and Video News Desk ( #T
- ZR4AEL) from 2005 to 2010. Mr. Liu was the head of the
legal department of CNC China from 2013 to 2017. He is currently
the Deputy Director of Administration Department of CNC China
and a director of China Xinhua NNC. In the last three years, Mr. Liu
did not hold any directorship in any listed public companies. Mr. Liu
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from 8 December 2017, and wiill
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other or three months’
salary being payment in lieu of notice.

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (Bl %) , aged 54, is the founder of
the Group. Mr. Kan formed TYW and TY Civil in 1996 and 2000
respectively and has been the director of both companies since
their formation. Mr. Kan has over 26 years of experience in handling
civil engineering projects of various types. In the last three years,
he did not hold any directorship in any listed public companies.
Mr. Kan has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from 11 August 2010,
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or
three months’ salary being payment in lieu of notice. In addition,
Mr. Kan has entered into an employment contract with TYW to act
as the director of TYW for a continuous term commencing from 6
February 1996 until terminated by not less than thirty days’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other or thirty days’ salary
being payment in lieu of notice.
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Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Tang Li (FEEE) , aged 41, obtained a master of business
administration in executive management degree in Royal Roads
University in 2010. Ms. Tang joined Xinhua News Agency in 2009
and held the positions of accountant of Xinhua News Agency
Audio News Desk* ( #TZE & %) and was re-designated as the
accountant of Xinhua News Agency Audio and Video News Desk*
(¥T#EA =R 48E6) in 2010. She was the Planning and Finance
Director of CNC China from 2013 to 2017. She is currently the
Deputy Director of Financial Assets Department of CNC China and
a director of China Xinhua NNC. In the last three years, she did not
hold any directorship in any listed public companies.

Mr. Law Cheuk Hung (& /£%) , aged 62, has been the
administration manager of TYW and TYC since December 2012
and further been appointed as a director of TYW and TYC since
November 2015. Mr. Law is experienced in office administration
and tender estimate relating to construction projects and has
over 34 years of experience in civil construction works for various
companies prior to joining the Group. Mr. Law obtained a diploma
in civil engineering and a higher certificate in civil engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as
Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1978 and 1980 respectively. In the last
three years, he did not hold any directorship in any listed public
companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
BEEEFHIE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew JpP, aged 40, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in January
2018. Mr. Fan is a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Company. Mr. Fan is a practicing certified public accountant in
Hong Kong with over 12 years of experience. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Business Administration (Accounting and Finance) from
The University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor Degree in Laws from
the University of London. Mr. Fan is a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a committee member of the tenth to
twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
Zhejiang Province, the fourth and fifth Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shenzhen and the Tenth Vice Chairman
of Zhejiang Province United Young Association.

Mr. Fan is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443), Culturecom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 343), Sinomax Group Limited
(stock code: 1418), Chuang’s China Investments Limited (stock
code: 0298), Space Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2448),
Nameson Holdings Limited (stock code: 1982), and Universal Star
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2346), all of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Fan is also currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Omnibridge Holdings Limited (stock code: 8462)
and Sanbase Corporation Limited (stock code: 8501) listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Fan had been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of LT Commercial Real Estate Limited from March 2013
to December 2016 (stock code: 0112) and Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Limited from July 2015 to May 2017 (stock code: 2882),
the shares of both companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and On Real International
Holdings Limited from September 2015 to August 2016 (stock
code: 8245), the shares of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Wu Guo Ming ( REl#%) , aged 56, holds two master degrees
and has over 18 years of experience in enterprise management,
investment, project operations and capital market operations.
Mr. Wu was awarded the qualification of State Senior Corporate
Culture Lecturer* (B = & 13 30 {LAD) in 2014 and obtained
the required qualification to work in the fund management sectors
(E&#%¥EH)in 2016. He obtained a bachelor degree of
Mathematics from South China Normal University in 1983, a
degree of master of Education from South China Normal University
in 1988 and a degree of master of Business Administration from
Indiana University of Pennsylvania in 1993. Mr. Wu is currently
the deputy general manager of Guangdong Ande Investment
Company Limited* (ERLEHREBRAF) . Mr. Wu also
served as the director and deputy general manager of Guangdong
Zhuijiang Investment Company Limited* ( & 58 2kT 1% & i 5 AR
2 a]) from 2002 to 2003 and as the chairman and president of
Guangdong Yingtong Network Investment Company Limited* ( &
REBPEEIE AR A A]) between 2003 and 2015. In the last
three years, Mr. Wu did not hold any directorship in any listed public
companies. He has not, by himself or through his firm in which he
practices, provided professional services to the Company in last
two years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
BEEEFHIE

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B85S, JP (FE%E4E) , aged 69,
obtained a degree of master of Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008 and a degree of master
of Buddhist studies from The University of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr.
Wan was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 1997 and was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region 2004 Honours List. Mr. Wan is engaged in
the business of property and chattel valuation and auction. Mr.
Wan is a fellow of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
an associate of The Institution of Business Agents, a member
of The Land Institute (London), an associate of The Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators and a fellow of The Institute of Administrative
Accounting. Mr. Wan is currently appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited
(a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 746) and Universe Printshop Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the GEM board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8448). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wan did not hold any
directorship in any other listed public companies in last three years.
He has not, by himself or through his firm in which he practices,
provided professional services to the Company in last two years.
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Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (£ £ # % 4) , aged 51,
graduated with professional diploma in accountancy from Hong
Kong Polytechnic in 1990 and obtained a degree of bachelor of law
from Peking University in the People’s Republic of China in 1998
and a degree of master of science from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1999. Mr. Wong has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Wong is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong previously worked at one of the reputable international
accounting firms for six years and also worked in Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited for over 13 years with last position
as senior manager of the Listing Division of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Mr. Wong worked in a financial service
institution licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
as vice president of corporate finance division for more than four
years and was the chief executive officer of a financial service
institution providing corporate finance advisory service licensed by
the Securities and Futures Commission for two years. Mr. Wong
is currently a responsible officer of a financial service institution
providing corporate finance advisory service licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission. In the last three years, Mr.
Wong did not hold any directorship in any listed public companies.
He has not, by himself or through his firm in which he practices
provided professional services to the Company in last two years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBHRS

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, except
for paragraphs A.2.7 and A.6.7 of the Code. This report further
illustrates in detail as to how the Code was applied, inclusive of the
considered reasons for any deviation throughout the year ended 31
March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding
them of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealings throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Company was not aware of any non-compliance in this respect
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible
and effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term objectives and strategy,
policies and annual budgets;

e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

e approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e responsible for the system of internal control and risk
management;

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and
Board remuneration;

e review of the existing policies of the Company on corporate
governance;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBHRS

e review of the coverage of knowledge and skills of the training
sessions arranged for the Directors and senior management
by the Company;

e  evaluated the effectiveness of internal safeguard procedure for
overseeing timely disclosure of material inside information and
perseverance of its confidentiality;

e monitor the compliance of code of conduct by the Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

e review of the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in this report.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, including four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages 32 to 39 of this
report. The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Jiang Yan (Chairman)

Dr. Li Yong Sheng (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Da Yong

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Tang Li
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive
Directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Company has complied with the requirements under
Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05AA of the GEM Listing Rules and
has appointed at least three independent non-executive directors,
representing more than one-third of the number of Directors
at the Board, with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services of
the company secretary. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

Chairman and chief executive officer

The role and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are carried out by different individuals.

Dr. Jiang Yan is the chairman of the Board. The chairman is
responsible for strategic and business directions to the Board and
ensures its effectiveness in all aspects.

Dr. Li Yong Sheng is the chief executive officer of the Company.
The chief executive officer of the Company is responsible for the
Company'’s day-to-day management and operations and focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board.
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Management functions delegated by the Board

The Board has delegated the responsibilities of the execution
of strategies and decision making for day-to-day operation and
administration functions of the Company to the management
team headed by the chief executive officer. The Board has set out
guidelines for management team as to when final authority should
rest with the Board and its prior approval should be obtained before
making decisions or entering into any commitments; issue of such
include but not limited to any proposed natifiable transactions,
connected transactions, significant investments, major business
decisions related to operation and business strategy, change of key
management of the Group and disclosure of inside information.

Appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. The appointment of
executive Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the
other or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

Each of the non-executive Directors was appointed for a specific
term of three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.
The appointment of non-executive Directors will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than three months’
prior written notice to the other or the payment of three month
salary in lieu of notice.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed
for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. The appointment of independent non-executive
Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other
or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member
of the Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBHRS

Independent Non-executive Directors

Paragraph A.2.7 of the Code provides that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
Directors without the executive Directors and non-executive
Directors present. Although the chairman did not hold a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors, excluding the
executive Directors and non-executive Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2019, he delegated the company secretary to
gather any concerns and/or questions that the independent non-
executive Directors might have and report to him for setting up
follow-up meetings, whenever necessary, in due course.

Relation of the Board Members

All Directors are no relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships) among members
of the Board.

Meeting of the Board

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had convened
total six meetings, four of which are in regular nature. The
attendance record of individual Directors at the Board and
committees’ meetings and general meetings are set out in page 58
of this report.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position.
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The Directors are aware of the requirement under the paragraph B EMABTHIEAGCLSRIE NARISETEHERE
A.B.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.  HJRE - NAFE EE2EEME ANESE L
During the year, the Directors reviewed the monthly business S EFE R LA R E @ F SR EM R
and financial updates and other reading materials provided to ARAEBTEEAFE RN ERE AR L
them concerning latest developments in corporate governance ENEEHRE AHEEFNSEFEEELERE
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments. Arecord R IE2H)H ERCER AR A R ERFNT :

of the Directors’ participation in various continuous professional

development program is kept by the company secretary as below:

Training
123
Self-learning  Attend seminar
BEEE S E
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. Jiang Yan e =) v v
Dr. Li Yong Sheng FoxAEL v v
Mr. Liu Da Yong BIRBRE v v/
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung B S A v/ v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Tang Li FEEZt v
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung BleiERE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BV FEHITESE
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP SERRESRL ATt v v
Mr. Wu Guo Ming REISH & v v/
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP FEREA  WLHEE X Fai+ v v
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth FREEE v v/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of reference are set
out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 11 August
2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among
other things, reviewing and supervising the financial reporting
process and internal control systems, as well as the overall risk
management of the Group, reviewing the financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group, and
reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of audit work of the
external auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BB8S, JP

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tang Li
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung
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The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified
industry experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
accounting matters.

During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the first
quarterly results for three months ended 30 June 2018, the interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2018, the third
quarterly results for the nine months ended 31 December 2018
and the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019 and is of
the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 11
August 2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.4.5 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying and
nomination of directors and making recommendations to the
Board on appointment and re-appointment of Directors, reviewing
the board diversity policy, reviewing the nomination policy and
reviewing and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation if necessary.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr. Jiang Yan (Chairman)
Dr. Li Yong Sheng

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education background,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, and also the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. Qualified
candidates will then be recommended to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
had convened one meeting.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates for
Directors. The Nomination Policy aims to (i) set out the criteria and
process in the nomination and appointment of Directors; (i) ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and (i) ensure the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of the factors

in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate to the Board,

including but not limited to the following:

(@

(b)

character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
board diversity policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules;

any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company; and

such other perspectives that am appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.
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Nomination Procedures

Appointment of New Director

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including
but not limited to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other member of the management and external recruitment
agents.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship,
as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election
as a director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.
Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.
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Re-election of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review
the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.
Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of

the Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary.

Also, the Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,

as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination

Policy and will discuss any revisions that may be required, and

recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and

approval.
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Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. A summary of the
Board Diversity Policy together with the measurable objectives
for implementing such policy and the progress on achieving such
objectives are disclosed below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the importance of diversity in board
members to corporate governance and the board effectiveness.
The purposes of the Board Diversity Policy are to set out the
basic principles to be followed to ensure that (i) a diverse
range of candidates are considered; and (ii) the Board has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.
Board nomination and appointments will be made on merit basis
based on its business needs from time to time while taking into
account the benefits of diversity. The Company has identified
and implemented programs that will assist in the development
of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced
employees and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for senior
management and board positions.

Measurable objectives

Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience. The ultimate decision shall
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
shall bring to the Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

()  Independence:
The Board should include a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive
Directors shall be of sufficient caliber and stature for their views
to carry weight.

(i)  Skills and experience:
The Board possesses a balance of skills appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. The
Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management
backgrounds that taken together provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitoring
the progress on achieving these measurable objectives. The
Nomination Committee shall review this policy and the measurable
objectives at least annually to ensure the continued effectiveness of
the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 11
August 2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.1.2 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
among other things, formulating and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy, determining the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B8S, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee convened one meeting to consider the revision of
Directors’ remuneration.

Risk Management Committee

The Company established the Risk Management Committee on 15
June 2016 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules and the Code.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include,
among other things, reviewing the risk management system
of the Group; assessing the risks from major decisions and to
consider solutions for significant risk; monitoring the Group’s
risk profile; reviewing and monitor emerging risks relating to the
Group’s business and strategies; having periodic assessment on
the Group's risk profile and risk management capabilities; and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BB8S, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth
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The Risk Management Committee should meet at least once a
year to consider major investigation findings on risk management
matters and the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Risk
Management Committee had convened one meeting to consider
the risk assessment of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company has not established any committee responsible
for the corporate governance function of the Group and the
function has been collectively performed by the Board. The
Board acknowledges the overseeing of the corporate governance
function by the Board collectively. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations on
changes and updating;

e toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

e to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

e such other corporate governance duties and functions set
out in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the
Board are responsible.

The Board has reviewed and approved the Corporate Governance
Report set out in this report. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year, and Directors will receive at least 14 days prior written notice
of such meetings. For any ad hoc Board meetings, Directors
are given as much notice as is reasonably practicable in those
circumstances. Agendas and accompanying papers are sent not
less than 3 days before the date of Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same. Draft and
final versions of minutes of regular board meetings are circulated
to all directors for their comment and records respectively. All
Directors are kept informed in a timely manner of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Board also understands where potential
conflicts of interests arise, the independent non-executive Directors
shall take the lead in discussing the relevant transactions being
contemplated when there is a Director or any of his associates
having a material interest in the transactions and shall abstain
from voting. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are
allowed to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board and committees’
meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 March 2019
are set out below:

Board
Ezg
Number of meetings EEYS 6
Executive Directors HTES
Dr. Jiang Yan Zeft 5/6
Dr. Li Yong Sheng FkAELT 6/6
Mr. Liu Da Yong ARBEE 6/6
Mr. Kan Kiwok Cheung BEREE 6/6
Non-executive Directors FuTES
Ms. Tang Li BELT 0/6
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung BlstEr 5/6
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, /P BRERE AP 6/6
Mr. Wu Guo Ming RE#RE 6/6
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B85, JP FEREE HEHEE A F4T 6/6
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth IRERE 5/6
Average attendance rate THHEER 85%
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RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial
Statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
results and cash flows of the Group in accordance with relevant law
and disclosure requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in
“Independent Auditors’ Report” section on pages 86 and 98 of this
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor, during the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to HK$0.7 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT ANS INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. To
this end, the Board oversees and approves the Group’s risk
management and internal control strategies and policies, which
are aimed at evaluating and determining the nature and extent of
the risks that are compatible with the Group’s strategic objectives
and risk appetite, with main purpose for provision of reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than
absolute elimination of the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.
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In June 2016, the Group has established a risk management
framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee and the senior management of the
Group. The Board determines the nature and the extent of risks
that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
and has the overall responsibilities for monitoring the design,
implementation and the overall effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducts reviews of the effectiveness of such systems
at least annually, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

Risk Management Philosophy

Risk taking is a necessary and accepted part of the Company’s
business. Effectively managing risk is a competitive necessity
and an integral part of creating shareholder value through good
business practices designed to ensure that the Company achieves
its strategic, business and governance objectives, and protects
its corporate reputation, values and integrity. Risk management
applies to all aspects of the Company’s business and forms a
critical part of developing strategic plans, preparing operational
plans and budgets, completing detailed project approval requests
and designing and managing project plans.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control
defects (if any). Senior management is responsible for the annual
risk reporting process. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned
and mitigation plans are documented. The risk assessment
is reviewed by certain members of senior management and
presented to the Risk Management Committee and the Board
for their review. Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on
the Company’s financial results; and (i) the probability that the risk
will occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

e Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate
the risk entirely.

¢ Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
the severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

e Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for
the Company and that no action is required. The risk would
continue to be monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.

Reporting, monitoring and evaluating are essential and integral
parts of managing risk. Senior management has established an
annual risk reporting process to gather risk issues affecting the
Company. A risk template has been developed to assist in the
identification, documentation, assessment and management of risk
exposures.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system

The Risk Management Committee met at least annually during
the year and reported to the Board for assessment. Key risks
are identified and their responsive mitigating controls are
documented in the risk registers and report to the Board by the Risk
Management Committee.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function as the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.

The Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited as its risk management and
internal control review adviser (“ the Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2019. Such review is conducted annually
and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of review
was previously determined and approved by the Board. The
Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement to the
Audit Committee and management. The Board/Audit Committee
are of the view that there are no material internal control defeats
noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

Inside information policy

The Company recognises the significance of consistent practices
of fair disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside information in a
timely and accurate manner. The Company has a policy with regard
to the principles and procedures for handling and disseminating the
Company’s inside information in compliance with the requirements
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules, and such
policy has been communicated to the relevant senior executives
of the Group. Company secretary works closely with senior
executives in identifying potential inside information and assess
the materiality thereof, and where appropriate, to escalate such
information for the attention of the Board to resolve on further
action(s) complying with the applicable laws and regulations.
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In prevention of premature leakage of inside information, the
Company has taken all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure proper preservation of confidentiality of inside information
until disclosure to the general public, including inter alia:

e  restrictive access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentially;

e  appropriate confidentiality agreements are put in place when
entering into any significant negotiations;

e inclusion of a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use or
disclosure of inside information in employee code of conduct;
and

e policy is issued to all employees reminding their duties and
obligations in respect of any dealings in the listed securities
of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and associated
corporations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yuet Tai (Z A3) , aged 36, joined in the Company in
September 2011 as assistant to chief financial officer and re-
designated as company secretary on 1 June 2012. Ms. Li holds
a bachelor’s degree in business administration in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has
over 7 years of working experience in auditing and accounting
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Ms. Li is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Li has served in an international accounting firm
for five years. In the last three years, Ms. Li did not hold any
directorship in any listed public companies.
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The company secretary took more than 15 hours’ professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2019. Reporting to the chief
executive officer, the company secretary plays an important role in
ensuring proper Board procedures are tailored to the Company’s
business needs and compliance with all applicable laws, rule
and regulations. The Directors could obtain advices and services
from the company secretary for any updates and developments
in corporate governance, applicable laws and regulations when
necessary.

The company secretary, as delegated by the chairman, is
responsible for preparing the meeting agenda, serving notice to
the Board at least 14 days before the regular meetings or at a
reasonable time for other ad-hoc meetings, and providing relevant
Board papers to Directors at least 3 days before the meetings, so
as to ensure that the Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner for effective
and informed decision making.

The company secretary also ensures that the Board meetings are
convened and constituted in accordance with all applicable laws,
regulations and the procedural requirements set out in the articles
of association at all times. In addition, the company secretary
will take minutes of the meetings and circulate them to Directors
for comments at a reasonable time after the meetings. After
incorporating Directors’ comments, the executed version of the
minutes will be maintained by the company secretary and be open
for Directors’ inspection during normal office hours.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board believes that general meetings can provide an
open forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings of the Company and give valuable advices to the
Company through this direct communication platform. The
Company will convene AGM every year and convene any other
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) as required.

1. The way in which Shareholders can convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding not less than 10% of
the issued share capital at the time of deposit of the requisition
and carrying the right of voting at general meeting can deposit
a written request to convene an EGM.

The written request must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the shareholders concerned and deposited to the
Board or the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business at Suites 2708-10, 27/F, Everbright Centre,
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more shareholders. The request will be verified with
the Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary
will notify the Board to convene an EGM and include the
resolution in the agenda. The Board shall convene and hold
such general meeting within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the request is verified to be not in order,
Shareholders concerned will be advised of the result and no
EGM will be convened.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such general meeting, the shareholders
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM,
but any EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBHRS

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company’s investor relationship contact
at Suites 2708-10, 27/F, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by phone on +852 3104 2962 or
by email at cnc@cnctv.hk.

The procedures for making proposals at shareholders’
meetings

To put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings, the
shareholders shall submit a written notice of those proposals
with the detail contact information to the company secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business. The request
will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the general meeting.

Communications with shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of the
annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports of the
Company are distributed to its shareholders in accordance
with statutory and regulatory requirements and also to
interested parties recorded in the Company’s mailing lists.
The publications of the Company, including financial reports,
circulars and announcements, are also available on the
Company’s website.
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The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. Paragraph A.6.7
of the Code requires that independent non-executive directors
and non-executive directors shall generally attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders.

A non-executive Director, namely Ms. Tang Li, did not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8
August 2018 due to overseas commitment and pre-arranged
business engagements. Other Board members, the chairmen
of the relevant Board committees and the external auditor of
the Company also attended the annual general meeting to
inter-face with, and answer questions from the shareholders.

A non-executive Director, namely Ms. Tang Li, did not attend
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
12 February 2019 due to overseas commitment and pre-
arranged business engagements. Other Board members and
the chairmen of the relevant Board committees also attended
the extraordinary general meeting to inter-face with, and
answer questions from the shareholders.

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company is set out on page 58 of this report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s corporate website is www.cnctv.hk. The Company
may from time to time conduct investor/analysts briefings and
presentations, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities
for investors and specialist industry forums etc.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website as soon as practicable after their release. The
Company’s constitutional documents are also available on our
website. No significant changes were made to these documents
during the year ended 31 March 2019. Information on our website
will be updated on a regular basis.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEEHRS

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together
with the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of civil engineering services
for the public sector in Hong Kong and television broadcasting
business in the Asia-Pacific Region (excluding the PRC).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of business activities of the Group,
including a business review of the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 17 to 31
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found throughout this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary from pages 271 to 272 and Financial Highlights on
pages 3 to 4 respectively of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to implementing policies
and measures in our daily business operations to foster reduction
of the Group’s environmental impact. Detail information regarding
the environmental, social and governance practices adopted by the
Group is set out in the environmental, social and governance report
which will be disclosed in a separate report and published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than
three months after the publication of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support
are values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well
as the individual performance of employees. Other fringe benefits,
mandatory provident fund, share options and share award scheme
are provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form a
professional staff and management team that can bring the Group
to different levels of success.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of
the Company. Subject to compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and the articles of association of the Company, in
deciding whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board will
take into account, among other things, the financial results, the
earnings and distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, the debt ratio and possible effects on the credit lines,
and the current and future development plans of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEEHRS

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 99 to 100 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 August 2019 to Friday, 9 August 2019, both days
inclusive. During this period, no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queens’s Road East, \Wanchai,
Hong Kong (and with effect with 11 July 2019 onwards, at level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 August 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 35 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 103 to 104 of this report and note 36 to the Financial
Statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group made the
charitable donations amounting to approximately HK$20,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s distributable reserves,
including the share premium account, calculated under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
HK$217.5 million in deficit.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of the convertible notes of the Group are set out in note 33
to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 271 to 272 of this report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEEHRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue, subcontracting costs
and purchases of raw materials attributable to the Group’s major
customers, subcontractors and suppliers respectively for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

FTEEFRHER

BHE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HLEFE F££H
W D BERERRERM A RERAENEET
EXFP -oERAMEBRNE LD RIWAT:

Revenue g

The largest customer SN 43.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFA 100.0%
Subcontracting costs DE KA

The largest subcontractor BADBEH 44.5%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate ARDBEEhR 68.6%
Purchases of raw materials (Notes) REREM B (MzE)

The largest supplier A MER 19.8%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AXREEE G 75.0%

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and
suppliers.

Notes:

Total purchases of raw materials by the Group included purchases of
raw materials by main contractors for the Group’s use in carrying out civil
engineering services as a subcontractor for respective contracts. However,
the suppliers from which main contractors purchased the raw materials were
not included as the suppliers of the Group as the Group did not have direct
relationship with these suppliers.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 45 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Jiang Yan (Chairman)

Dr. Li Yong Sheng (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Da Yong

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Tang Li
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, JP

Mr. Wu Guo Ming

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEEHRS

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company’s articles of association provide that all Directors and
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
against Directors and senior officers.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. The appointment of
executive Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the
other or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

Each of the non-executive Directors was appointed for a specific
term of three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.
The appointment of non-executive Directors will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than three months’
prior written notice to the other or the payment of three month
salary in lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed
for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. The appointment of independent non-executive
Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other
or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.
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None of the Directors has a service contract with any member
of the Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of Directors as at the date of this report are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages
32 to 39 of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of
job, performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees, as well as the result of the Group and the market trend.
The Group carries out staff performance appraisal once a year and
the assessment result is used for salary reviews and promotion
decisions. The Group recognises the importance of staff training
and thus regularly provides internal and external training for its staff
to enhance their skills and knowledge.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
BEEHRS

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market
conditions.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
Financial Statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes are set out in note 14 to the
Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme has been adopted to provide incentive
or reward to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest. No share
options have been granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares:

Name

e 510 RENE

Capacity/Nature of interest

EERFETBRABRAAFAREBEEE
ARG HEROIEERNERE R K
B

R-ZB-NF=ZA=1t—B BFREARFE
ZITBRABRARRIHEMBEEZE (E&RE
7 MG GPIEXVED) BB - ABRER ) K (B #E
ERHEAARERE S LB HRIIEXVAEEET R
FEED R MEARNRE MR IEEE AR (B
ERBE S RS FROIH B RBIGRREREF
SREHRENEEIAR)  IRBEFFLHE
{1 523525 7R RC 8% 1A 5% I Pt B R il 9 #E 25
Kok ARBEGEM L 4R R 85,4614 A it &
FETR SR ERERANE ANR A B
BERFORBIAT

RERGOBEFE:

Percentage of

aggregate

interests to

Number of total issued
Shares held share capital
BREREEE
EBTREHN

FrisiR 8B Btk

Mr. Kan (Note)

Bt (Haz) REZGEE 2 S

Interest in controlled corporation

69,000,000 1.70%
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Notes:

Mr. Kan is the sole beneficial owner of Shunleetat, which was interested in
69,000,000 Shares. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares held by Shunleetat.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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f& 7% t£ AShunleetatfy i — E 25 A A i1 Shunleetat?
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H A8 5 B Shunleetat AT HF & SRAL () O AE 25 -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2019,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or are deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group
or who/which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO with details as follows:

FTEREREMALTRADTRG R IEE
RSN KR

REZMM R-_FT-AF=ZA=+—H 17
AL/ BB (EFHARTEBITHRABRIN)
A ARV A RIERE 5 L HE (I EXVER
FE2NE3ID B AR AR R W EN AR F
Befp  HEAR D HERENRRIORR  REE
S EEAEA ISR TEREBEERKE
RAMBRRA G LR FAEARIRAEES%
HA LR IORE  LFEFLHER AR BIR
BEFMAEGIIEIBKRAEFEZZRMZ
BRIORR  FIBEMT

Long position in the Shares: RRBHEFE:
Number of underlying
Shares under
Number of Shares held convertible notes (\ofe g
ARREBETZ
RO EE HBRGHE (Hta)
Percentage
of aggregate
Interest in Interest in interests to
Beneficial controlled Beneficial controlled Total total issued
Name owner corporation owner corporation interests share capital
BER
REE REEH E2BERT
A8 BEEEA EEZER BRBEA EEzER BER REBDH
China Xinhua NNC FEFENEERE 1,188,621,377 - 1,311,378,622 - 2,499,999,999 61.65%
(Note b) (Note b)
(Hiztb) (Hstb)
CNC China REMENEERA (R E) - 1,188,621,377 - 1311378622  2,499,999,999 61.65%
(Note b) (Note b)
(Hst) (Hiztb)
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Notes:

(@) Details of the convertible notes were set out in the circulars of the
Company dated 19 November 2011, 6 January 2015, 17 January 2018
and 16 January 2019.

(o)  China Xinhua NNC is wholly and beneficially owned by CNC China.
Accordingly, CNC China is deemed to be interested in the 1,188,621,377
Shares and 1,311,378,622 underlying Shares held by China Xinhua NNC
under the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any other person/entity (other than the
Directors or chief executive as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above) who which had, or is deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or who which were directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or who/which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

On 9 December 2011, the Company issued convertible notes with
the principal amount of approximately HK$607,030,000, carried
interest at the rate of 5% per annum as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific. Each note entitles
the holder to convert to ordinary shares at a conversion price of
approximately HK$0.196 per share. Conversion may occur at any
time between 9 December 2011 and 8 December 2014. If the
notes have not been converted, the Company would redeem on
9 December 2014 at the outstanding principal amount. Interest of
5% per annum would be paid annually until the notes are converted
or redeemed.
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On 9 December 2014, the Company entered into the first
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC, the sole holder of the
outstanding convertible notes, pursuant to which the Company
and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend certain terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, where (i) the maturity date of the
outstanding convertible notes with outstanding principal amount
of HK$277,030,210 was extended for 3 years and the conversion
period was accordingly extended for 3 years to 9 December 2017;
and (i) the interest rate of the convertible notes was amended
from 5% per annum to 3% per annum for the extended period,
being from 9 December 2014 to 9 December 2017. Except for
above-mentioned, the other terms remained unchanged. If the
notes have not been converted, the Company will redeem on 9
December 2017 at the outstanding principal amount. Interest of
3% per annum will be paid annually until the notes are converted or
redeemed.

On 13 December 2017, the Company entered into the second
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC, the sole holder
of the outstanding convertible notes, pursuant to which the
Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend term and
condition of the convertible notes, where the maturity date of the
outstanding convertible notes with outstanding principal amount
of HK$257,030,210 was extended for 1 year and the conversion
period was accordingly extended for 1 year to 9 December
2018. Except for above-mentioned, the other terms remained
unchanged. If the notes have not been converted, the Company will
redeem on 9 December 2018 at the outstanding principal amount.
Interest of 3% per annum will be paid annually until the notes are
converted or redeemed.

On 9 December 2018, the Company entered into the third
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC, the sole holder
of the outstanding convertible notes, pursuant to which the
Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend term and
condition of the convertible notes, where the maturity date of the
outstanding convertible notes with outstanding principal amount
of HK$257,030,210 was extended for 2 years and the conversion
period was accordingly extended for 2 years to 9 December
2020. Except for above-mentioned, the other terms remained
unchanged. If the notes have not been converted, the Company will
redeem on 9 December 2020 at the outstanding principal amount.
Interest of 3% per annum will be paid annually until the notes are
converted or redeemed.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates including spouses and children under 18
years of age was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire Shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31
March 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and as at the date of
this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into following continuing
connected transactions:
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Television Broadcasting Right Agreement

On 5 September 2011, Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific entered into
a television broadcasting right agreement (the “Television
Broadcasting Right Agreement”) with China Xinhua NNC, pursuant
to which China Xinhua NNC granted the television broadcasting
right in respect of broadcasting information contents from Xinhua
News Agency under CNC Channels on television channels in the
Asia-Pacific region (excluding the PRC) to the Group for an annual
fee of approximately HK$1.0 million prior to 31 December 2016
and approximately HK$3.0 million with effective from 1 January
2017. The Television Broadcasting Right Agreement has a term of
120 months from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2021. Since
China Xinhua NNC is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and therefore a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the GEM Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated
under the Television Broadcasting Right Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company pursuant to
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Announcement Posting Agreements

On 12 May 2018 and 12 May 2017, the Company entered into
agreements (the “Announcement Posting Agreements”) with Hong
Kong Listco Limited (“HKLC”) pursuant to which HKLC will provide
the Company with the service of dissemination of announcements
including hosting and posting of announcements, press releases
or other documents as required by the GEM Listing Rules on
the website(s) of the Group at a monthly service fee of HK$750
for a term of one year commencing from 1 July 2018 and 1 July
2017 respectively. HKLC is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chia Kar Hin,
Eric John which resigned as Director on 17 October 2017 and
ceased to be the connected person after twelve months from the
resignation date. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under
the Announcement Posting Agreements no longer constitutes
continuing connected transaction for the Company pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rule as at 31 March 2019. The Company considers
it more cost effective to engage a professional firm to take up this
announcement posting obligation after listing.
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GEM Listing Rules Implications

Pursuant to Rule 20.41 of the GEM Listing Rules, the transactions
contemplated under the Television Broadcasting Right Agreement
are subject to the applicable reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company will comply with the applicable reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements,
as the case may be, under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
upon any variation or renewal of the Television Broadcasting Right
Agreement.

As the annual service fee payable under the Announcement
Posting Agreements referred to above is less than HK$1.0 million
and none of the percentage ratios, on an annual basis, equals or
exceeds 5%, and that the Announcement Posting Agreements
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, the transactions under the Announcement Posting
Agreements are exempt continuing connected transactions of the
Company pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the GEM Listing Rules,
which are exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates has any other conflict
of interests with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 40 to 67
of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant event has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited which
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Jiang Yan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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BT &5 EH AR A G

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNC
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Group”) set out on pages 99 to 270, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(c) in the financial statements, which
indicates that the Company incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$65,302,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 and,
as of that date, the Company’s net liabilities of approximately
HK$166,991,000. As stated in note 3(c), these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 3(c),
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

REERER

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMHEREXERETERE

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables

EESEUF ARG EBRTILRE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FOHNREUBHRRIEBURGE M BRRMT42ETHBE-

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$61,930,000 and
provision for allowance for expected credit losses of
approximately HK$3,946,000.
RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H EBE5EBRBEEZEIHEK
FIB 4B REX) /61,930,000 7T & T HAE B B B E T
1R 493,946,000 7T °

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to
the customers ranged between 0 to 30 days (2018:
0 to 30 days) on trade customers of contract works.
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing
of the trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances,
and ongoing trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’
ability to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the expected credit losses for the allowance for
expect credit loss assessment.
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5 EWR IR Y R Y B 14 FOR BB H) 78 = I 1T B
AE-ERENTERAETYETFPERRERERN
BN R E R U IR EE BRI A
WIEHREEEE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s allowance for
expected credit losses assessment of the trade receivables
as at 31 March 2019 included:

BMBEAR T —NF=-A=+—"HEEEREZFEK
RENEREEEBRTGERECREFBRE:

e  Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its
credit risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

o T BEEECEHmAERZEGIE  AEIE
REREEE R - I MR FIE R R BRI

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 31 March 2019 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

s HMEBRENR-ZT-NF=ZA=T—HBEH@ENBKIH
NHE 5 EUIER BRI E N R F4& BROIRITER
P A B WU
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Key audit matter

HEEXER

We focused on this area due to the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved the use
of significant management judgements and estimates.
BT LER DA EREEEEEETHNESE
WHIRTEHEEB BRI ABRES REREREREH
i e (5t o

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMMHEREXERETEE

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as performing
public search of credit profile of selected customers,
understanding ongoing business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking historical
and subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and
MERESHANFAACANZTEERE S RI
FIBEMR  WiRB T RERETREENRE -
Bl AREAATE S FHE RN - R 5 C 8B
REEPHRBEBHER REEPNEL RGBS
Bk A R EMBE: &

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
losses provisioning methodology, examining the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.

FHETEEIE EBBEERH EANBERL - Mk @R
A BUR - AR ER M R B WHAREE
EHREEBENRR (BEESL RATEIEER) IR
Bito

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables
and determine the impairment provision to be supportable
by available evidence.

BAIEER - B ERNUNEE SR IER) AT U1 K &
EREREN A R S ERRRREN -

2018/2019 3R
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Key audit matter

REERER

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMHEREXERETERE

Contract revenue recognition and accounting for construction contract

BREANEREEENZETEE

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FOHNREMBRRMNEARGRE VBRI F42ETHE-

The Group recognizes revenue over time in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue for contract with customers.
EREERREBYBRELAFIGREF S LHWHHE
By P T R L 2

The revenue and profit recognised in a year on
these projects is dependent, amongst others, on the
assessment of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
construction projects (i.e. contract cost incurred for
work performed) relative to the total expected inputs to
the construction projects (i.e. estimated total budgeted
contract cost committed for the projects).

—F AR ELLIEB MK EFAE BREAMIN B
AR EEEHEEBEAENSHARA (BERKT
BEANEOKA)BENERIE R ELEREA
(BRIE B AHEIMEETATEE S AR ) B a1 {E -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
construction projects included:

HPBERREERERAERAZIEFBHE:

obtained an understanding of the projects, evaluated
the design and implementation of relevant controls
and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls
relating to revenue recognition and partially completed
projects.

THETAR - SR AR R S 0 RR AT A B B - ORI B LY
R A ED 5 ST A IR B AR B AR I 80 B 1T RO

assessed the Group’s revenue recognition practice
to determine that they are in compliance with HKFRS
15 Revenue from contracts with customers, including
the assessment of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
construction projects (i.e. contract cost incurred for
work performed) relative to the total expected inputs to
the construction projects (i.e. estimated total budgeted
contract cost committed for the projects).

i EEERKERRES  NETHENFEEEY
BRELENFISRELPaHNG  BREY E5EA
BEIE B FTERN S SR ARG (B2 BT ITERR
BSHE QMR ) HEREEETE B RTESRRR A (B
At RIAE AEN AT REESHONA) -
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Key audit matter

HEEXER

The uncertainty and subjectivity involved in determining
the cost to complete and foreseeable losses may have a
significant impact on the revenue and profit of the Group.
BETRRARAAREE SR I EEERTEE &
LREARY EERENKENMATERNEATE-

The Group’s revenue recognition policy and key source
of estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 4 and 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.:

EEE 2 WRHERBER LA TNABAREZ T 2RR
R ARE SR T4 R 5 o

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMMHEREXERETEE

For selected projects, our audit procedures included
the following:
REERTHEAEMS  HMANEREFEEATSIE:

i.  agreed projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders;
. BEERNLENAMBASONRRIER:

ii. obtained construction contract from management
and reviewed for any specific or special
performance obligations and conditions during the
financial period;

i. BEEREBEEFEESAHNWEZNYEIAREM
BRSSIREI TR R IGE

ii. assessed the reasonableness of cost incurred
against our understanding of the projects;
i. LABEHIEE BRI AEEKANASEE:

iv. vouched the actual cost incurred during the year
to details of supplier invoices and subcontractors
to check the validity and accuracy of the costs;

v. NFERNRMESERKAZEHEREERS

EBREHFE  ERZEFKAE A RN R

v.  performed cut-off testing to verify contract costs
were taken up in the appropriate financial year;

v. ETTEUDAIRE - AEREBAKARTIRE By R F
ES

vi. assessed and vouched to the estimated cost to
complete by substantiating costs that have been
committed to quotations and contracts entered;

vi. BBEFADAGERNREMBEITNG QOHKA - 7

3 78 B TR AT SER A A

2018/2019 3R
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Key audit matter

REERER

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMHEREXERETERE

Vil.

Vil.

Viil.

Viil.

checked to the latest certificate issued by the
independent surveyors (“Surveyors”) before year
end date for the verification of the value of work
already performed during the year;
wEERER (DRIZE]) REF4 BRIz B
FNEETIRBESHELZER:

checked to the certificate issued by the Surveyors
subsequent to year end date, to verify the
uncertified work before year end has been
subsequently certified by the Surveyors;
BEREMNFEBREL ZER NEEZREF
RNAIKREFREREECBASAMZE 2 TR

performed retrospective review by comparing the
total actual contract costs incurred at completion
against the total budgeted contract costs to
assess the reasonableness of the estimates used
by the management;
FRERETRHEREENS OB AREESR
BHBKAETEIREMES  LHEREMA
HETEV S IR

for projects in progress, we further recomputed
the percentage of the progress of the contract
based on input method to test the accuracy of
the percentage of the progress to determine the
revenue;

SETTFIEEMS  HPRBRAEE—TEH
HEANEEA L WRBREE B D LA ER
1 - LAHEE WA
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Key audit matter How our audit address the key audit matter

HEEXER RITNERNMMHEREXERETEE

Xi.

Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

Xiil.

Xii.

for projects completed during the year, we
obtained the certificate of substantial completion
and verified that the remaining revenue has been
captured;

RFATTHEEMES EERSELERTHEHR
Wiz 8 BT E SRR

ok

compared total contract revenue to actual cost
incurred plus estimated cost to complete, and
assessed for foreseeable losses;

B R B BB PR B A RN I _ETE R TE TR AR
HEITHLE - W P TR R AIB KT TR A

examined the project documentation (including
contracts effective during the financial period,
terms and conditions) and discussed with
management on the progress of significant
projects to determine if there are any changes
such as delays, penalties, overruns which may
result in liquidated damages.

@186 18 B e R R sk (BER AR AR
Z AR RN - WERE IR Ewm R E AR
BEER LWEERRFERAESINETEER
EREAEE FINER S BXE-

e assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of

the disclosures made in the consolidated financial

statements.

o HERAMBWMRMELEE ZEE MM ERNE -

Based on our audit procedures performed above, we

found that the management’s judgement in relation to the

estimation of construction contracts to be reasonable.
ERBHM Ll#ET BT RPEREEERE@EE
EENHFTOHE HBERE -

7N\
2018/2019 4 \99
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Key audit matter

REERER

Impairment assessment of intangible assets

HREEZRETE

How our audit address the key audit matter

RITNERNMHEREXERETERE

Refer to note 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 4 to

the consolidated financial statements.

FSHREUBRRME1OR20URREMBRRMF42ETHE-

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has intangible assets
of approximately HK$44,362,000 relating to television
broadcasting business acquisition in previous years.
RZZE-—NF=A=+—H  E5ERBEFEK
RE T AR 1B T T 8 B B & & 4944,362,000/8 7T

Management performed impairment assessment of
intangible assets based on value in use model that
required significant management judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure. Independent external valuation were
obtained in order to support management’s estimates.

ERECOHBREEEETRERN G ZAEHERE
RERERUREREEReRE (CHERARKK
HERNMETRAX)ELRERABNEREBEERE - R
XFHEBEEL G BB VIINHEERER

Our procedures in relation to management impairment
assessment included:

AITRMBEREREREN G ZEFERE:

—  Evaluating the independent valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;
- FEBEVMHEMNER e hMEHIT

— Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

- EKEBRMEBEETENDRTERRMNEEER
FHEPRERA A MR R R MR E I

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;
and

- EKEBERMEZEBMITENOND  ERERRRNE
B Rk

—  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accounting and
relevance of the input data used.

- EBRWMEE mEMRRA R ABUR S ERIE AR
Bt

We found the assumptions were supported by the available
evidence.
BMER ZEBRRCEMGRENF-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Hiw&#

EXAHAMENARE EMENEBRIAF
H2ER BENBREGAMERRMATHE
BHMZHE RS ([HHBER]) -

AITHHZEEVBHRRFHNERTREEME
B AT A e R EMEMBERTAEANZ

pg A

o

TEREAVBREAMS  ATHNAEER
BIEEMEN TR BRT EEEMERZ
BERESVBRRIANTREZFAFANE
MBEEXREE T BERERRL - ERA
TEATHITE HATRRLEMERBSE
REERBRL - AT RABREBBEE - NI E
RITRBEMHRE -

ESRERZEERGESUBRRARE
MEME

EXARARBEEESAMASRMNELY
B EER R BB R BERDI R EE 5 E R
BUBRE NSHEAMBRRELAEEMLR
FHER MEEEERAURERE VB R
KT BENEIES - AR A M REKTF
T R 0 HRRF Bl R T 8 B A B K B AR PR A

g

RREFEAVHREE EFR AN
BRELENEN YEERBR T REER
BREABANEIR UALRBAFHERLE RS
A BRIFEFEARNH EXREBHRIFLE
2SRRI 2 SN E A BER AT IT RO A

ZZBEAREEE E5ENMBHRIE
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

REMRERGEMBRRARENER

AITHEBR AR ERTEMSHRA M RRER
& 2B eI i B 0 BKEF s AR T & 2
ERHRE - W LA AT E R 226D
WE-AITER BTHRE MEEMAR XK
TR ABREARAEMEMALAELE

HEREE AERERSERHRE - ERT
RERBEEEZEAETHEZ TIFARER

BT TF ) B A R AR PR - 85 AR RO T R R R

&Fﬁﬁ?&fﬁﬂﬂﬁW%EAﬁﬁ%%%
AR EERERBEZSRAVBHRRMELD

%@RE% A AR R E A 5 AR R -

ERIRBEEBEZELE B AR
1TE R B R HE wm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ§
KA W R HEIR :

P
%
0
m
M
-\
I
=

o R Ko FTAE R B O BREF B RR T 8 BUAR
é%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁik%ﬁ@m%ﬂﬁ\&
AAEBITEREFAREZFRE AR
Kt R MEENEZERE (FRATE

SEER - AR EGFRIBE S B iR - B
ERER EBRRASERBABIEHNE
S AR BIEE R MER A E AL
REAERE R EERMEBHE AR
R PeR At /Y R B

o THRHEZBBMANIIED  LARETEE
ok e

SERERIEI VST axlmﬂ¥
HEMBEERER -

o MEEEAMEBACHBERAESMENMESL
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

s HEERARKELL/STEARMNBKEN
tEL AR - WIRIEFTERNERRE BT
EEFEEERLIBFTRAEENEANTEE
M EERY BEEENKERLE
RENELBARE HATRAFEEAXN
THEEM  NTARZBENRE T IRH T
BERAVBHRRTHNEBERE WA
BEINR AERIATTHR R - AT &R
DENBERRMRE A HMESHERZ
B o R KRR ERABERAEER &
SEEEFERE -

o HESAGMBHRERNEBREEZ®RI N ERB
EAR  BREBRBEEMN  URGEETBEHRE
EETERRIBER S R FERE-

e B EEENERIXBIDNMBEER
ERRERLEENEZEE Uz a i
BHREBRER -ATTARESREEZN
A BB RBT  ATAR/RITHERXE
RAaEE2AEE-

AiITEEZZE G (AP EE) BRI
B RREZHEREABRRERETER LR
BB/ AITERZBIZH 50 A BB E
fa] ERERK

ATTAEZZBGHELER SKBAATEN
EEBBIMENHERBRENR Y RKREFER
AR ERREFERITRELIENAE BIE
KREMEER  ARBEBHEER (ER) -
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019

REBEZZEEBNFERT NTEEHA
HEVBHRENEZEFEZRAMBEXERE
TEENEIE - ATEZBEN RE PRl ZF
B BRIBARIER T ARBEBEZSTS
R SRERRFERNERT  HAERRERS
TEBRFRARNBARRBEEENAR
Mzt AIARTTRENEERE T ABAHEHE-

HARBYZBMRENERARESTROE-

AR FERAERA T
ES BN

A%
HEEZRIT: PO58IS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2= A 18

anoi8m ]} ,H\
For the year ended 31 March 2019 # %2 —

Revenue
Cost of services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Amortisation expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Loss before income tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

ltemns that may be classified
subsequently to profit or 10ss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or l0ss:

Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

fhEmiaZE

F-NEZA=A—AULEE

Yo st
AR 7% R A

ER

H AU A

H o ez Ko 5 18
BIHR
HE RO HRAX
TR

BBEsiE A FEARZ
TREEZAVEED

gEFR
AR A
e I B
B 5

CIPA &
IR 2 R E B 1

BRATSHATE 18
P ®i

FRER
Hitv2m (B1E) Ki#E
HER D RERm 2 HA -

BB RINERS 2 B E R

BTEEHEE
BmEHE -
FiBHE AR

?E/U'HE)\HEZ

FREM2E (BE),/
Yoas - RIS LR

FRAZHEBRAHE

Notes

Wit

N

10
12
39
23

15

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
324,855 370,515
(321,371) (338,000)
3,484 32,515
450 4,093
3,032 268
(18,594) (19,734)
- (100)
(22,441) (32,101)
(9,123) (1,308)
(43,192) (16,367)
(25,686) (33,331)
— 114

- (55)
(68,878) (49,639)
3,576 3,822
(65,302) (45,817)
(1,531) 2,958
(1,057) -
(2,588) 2,958
(67,890) (42,859)

2018/2019 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
OERARHMWERNAE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

Loss for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company

Total comprehensive loss
for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Notes

Wit

ENNCE PN ]
FREER

RRTERANEMS
FRAEEBRAE

EATEE ANEG
BRER
—BEARREE CEN) 17

2019 2018
= i —F\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR
(65,302) (45,817)
(67,890) (42,859)

(1.61)

(1.13)

BERY 2 M EE Rt SR A M B mERZ — 8D °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

eI E

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZFE—HhFE=A=4+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Available for sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Contract assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Finance lease payables
Employee benefits
Promissory note
Convertible notes
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

ME - BEL&E
BIVEE

A ESREE

EETRIAEE

BEREMEE Y
BRAFEARZ
TREE

REBEE

B 5 K R R IR

QEEEE
BWEE

BBEHEE AN TFEAR

ZEREE
ReMhREeEHEY

HEE

RBARE

B 5 N E M E N IR

AHAEE
A E RN RE
EEEN

A ER
AR R B
EHNIERE

RBEE/(&E)FH

REERRBEE

Notes

Kt

19
22
34

26

25

27
28

29
25
30
31
32
33

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
38,302 41,277
44,362 62,678
- 2,302

320 -
1,245 -
84,229 106,257
105,738 102,116
521 521
15,517 -
6,181 7,940
79,915 70,296
207,872 180,873
292,101 287,130
88,973 89,546
65,156 -
42 2,413
3,550 3,315

- 43,026

= 247,511
16,904 17,854
174,625 403,665
33,247 (222,792)
117,476 (116,635)

2018/2019 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

me IR E

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZF—NF=HA=+—H

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease payables
Promissory note
Convertible notes
Interest payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2019 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Yan

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FRBEE

MEMERNTIE

AR
R EE
JE AT RIS,
EEFIEAE

mefE

BEFE

BXRKf#E
LN
Gl

R

2019 2018
e —ENE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FAET
30 - 102
32 43,123 -
33 225475 -
29 2,214 -
34 13,655 14,659
284,467 14,761

459,092 418,426

(166,991) (131,296)

35 4,055 4,055

(171,046) (135,351)

(166,991) (131,296)

BEREEEN_T-NFRNATNBIERERE
TBEGAMBHRER LA MIATRERESS
RE

Li Yong Sheng
FKFA
Director

EF

BERS Z M Rt SR a M mEKR 2 — &5 °

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORRABAER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #lZ2 —F— W F=A=+—HIFFZF

At 1 April 2017

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax:

ltems that may be classified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer to accumulated losses upon maturity
of convertible notes (note 33)

Recognition of convertible notes equity
reserves on extension of
convertible notes (note 33)

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes (note 33)

At 31 March 2018

WZE-tFNA—H
FRER

EREMEENE
nEHE:
ARANBERGE AR

BESNRBIELER

FREEFRER

TERREHAREEE
ZEER (H33)

RERTAREER
BRATARRRREER
(3233)

ERAERRRELZ
ERRERR (Wi33)

RZE-NF=A=1-8

Foreign
Convertible currency
Share Share Capital  notes equity translation Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium* reserves* reserves reserves* reserves* losses* equity
TRRES HERE
RA R EE ERGE EHRE E1 Hib A 2t ER BER
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET FET TET TET FET TET TET
(note 35) (note 36) (note 33) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36)
(Hit35) (Hr3£36) (B7##33) (Hit36) (Hi#36) (Hits6)
4,055 1,238,195 2,758 62,631 (8,074) 9,868 (1,416,168) (101,735)
- - - - - - (45,817) 45,817
- - - - 2,958 - - 2,958
- - - - 2,958 - (45,817) (42,859)
- - - (62,631) - - 62,631 -
- - - 1,562 - 11,994 - 13,566
- - - (258) - - - (258)
4,085 1,238,195 2,758 1,304 (116) 21,862 (1,399,354) (131,296)

2018/2019 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mOERENE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - %

—NFZA=+—HIFE

Foreign
Convertible currency  Investment
Share Share Capital notesequity  translation  revaluation Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium* reserves” reserves” reserves” reserves’ reserves” losses” equity
TRRE HERE REBf
BA ROEE  EXEE  FERERE e RE EtRE  RHEER BER
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FET T FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 35) (note 36) (note 33) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36)
(Hr#35) (Hr#36) (Hit33) (H7#36) (Hr:t36) (Hi#36)
A 31 March 2018 RZEZ-N\E=B=+-8 405 123819 2,758 1,304 (116 - 21862 (1399354 (131,206)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (note) REBEEREEN
FO5 (M) - - - - - - - (1,557) (1557)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 RZF-\EWA—-A
ERRER 405 123819 2,758 1,304 (116 - 21862 (1400911  (132,853)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (65,302) (65,302)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMZERE
net of tax: MBHE:
Item that may be classified subsequently to  H# R HEEREZER -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign & 55 ¥ K v EH 2
operations - - - - (1,631) - - - (1,631)
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently & T & & HEZE
to profit or loss: BEER:
Change in fair value of financial assets BREMRENR
at fair value through other comprehensive A FEARZ
income SREEZATERS - - - - - (1,057) - - (1,057)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EFKREE - - - - (1,531) (1,057) - (65,302) (67,890)
Transfer to accumulated losses upon TRRERIHEEEE
maturity of convertible notes (note 33) REEE (H1333) - - - (1,304) - - - 1,304 -
Rocognition of convertible notes equity ~ REER TR ERBRER
reserves on extension of convertiole notes TR Z B R
(note 33) ( 741:‘133) - - - 17,245 - - 19,352 - 36,597
Deferred tax liabilties arising on extention of EXRATRRREEEEL
convertible notes (note 33) ;EURIH’E (H3%33) - - - (2,845) - - - - (2,845)
At 31 March 2019 R=B-hEZB=t-B 4055 1238195 2,758 14,400 (1,647) (1,07) 4214 (1464900)  (166,091)
*  The aggregate amount of these balances of approximately * R -ZE—AWF=ZFA=+—H ZZHHZE

HK$171,046,000 in deficit (2018: approximately HK$135,351,000) was
included as reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position as

at 31 March 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Note:

represented the impairment loss allowance net of deferred tax

impact.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” on 1 April
2018 has accumulated impact of HK$1,557,000 was recorded as
an adjustment to the accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018, which

AABEEA) 171,046,000 70 ( —F— /)1 F : 4
135,351,000/ 7L ) B it A 47 & B i L& 1 B
/ﬁt;o

BEPY 2 M EE Rt FRa M B oREk 2 — 8D

=

R-ZE—NFEHNA—BRNEBHBRE

HEAESR ST A BREEZ R E

1,557,000 T ABRAER T — \FHA—

HZ 25 BRNAZE NNKRECHBEFE
BB E R

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GFOIRERMER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % - &%

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation expenses
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Net gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Finance costs
Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Gain arising on extinguishment of
promissory note

Realised gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Interest income

Dividend income

Exchange (gain)/loss, net

Allowance for expected credit losses
recognised for trade receivables

Reversal of allowance for expected
credit losses recognised
for contract assets

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in contract assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
payables
Increase in contract liabilities
Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

—NFZA=+—HIFE

RETHELEZRESRE
B Fr S FL B A 18
HE

iR

ME BEMIBEITE

T B R AR
2 W FE
BEARE
BRARRATLE
NEZSRAEY
N
%ﬁ%%%%&iz

BBESEATE
ARZERMEEZ
B8 3H e

HEWME R Rz K&

B 5 RUWRIE 2
BB E 18

B UWA

EESL PN

PE 5 (Yo% )/Eﬂaﬂa%ﬁ

BB F U R IERER
FEHEEHEEE

HANBERRY
FEHEEER
BB m

EEEREEA 2
KREBPEHRE

FERL

B 5 R EMEW IR
( Eﬁﬂ)/iﬂZ’J\

)\ﬁEZ\%mﬁéﬁJX
HESBEREATE
ARZEREEZ

P15 5RIR
REBFEM, (R

gEmE2Ae
B firi

RETHMEREFR

Notes

HiiE

10

12

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(68,878) (49,639)
18,594 19,734
21,863 19,295
(131) (143)
25,686 33,331
9,123 1,308
(1,939) (2,320)
- (3,770)

- (114)

- 55

(78) (23)
(198) (295)
(1,035) 2,195
78 -

(5) -
3,080 19,614
- 3,654
(21,081) 17,566
4 _

6,598 (29,538)
51,136 -
(26,080) (9,612)
18,716 12,003
235 (171)
32,608 13,516
(1,235) (453)
31,373 13,063

2018/2019 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEOIRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z=F—NF=-A=+—HIFFZE

Notes

it

Cash flows from investing activities REZFHELZRERE
HEME - BRE RZE 2T

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

BRIE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment & & %% B M

Investment in available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries, net

Additions of film rights NE B RIE

Interest received 2 FLE

Dividend received 2R 5

Net cash used in investing activities REZEFfTAR S FE
Cash flows from financing activities BEFBHEL = fﬁ. EHRE

Finance lease charges paid

Repayment of finance lease payables EERMENR f*f‘é H

Net cash used in METEBMARESTE
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRESEEY
and cash equivalents ®wm ORd) FE

Cash and cash equivalents at the FHNEERESEEY
beginning of the year

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes [ &R & &) > &

Cash and cash equivalents FEREENBESZEEY
at the end of the year

Analysis of the balance of cashand BRERBELZBEYEHD
cash equivalents: e

Being: Bl
Cash and cash equivalents ReMESEED

REAHHESHEE

HEH B AR ZFEHRIE
/?%E

Eﬁr"ﬂéﬁ a7

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BE BT 2 B 2T A bt S AR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,633 1,612
(20,439) (15,505)
- (2,302)
- 93
(278) (1,418)
78 23
198 295
(18,808) (17,202)
(26) (104)
(2,473) (3,460)
(2,499) (3,564)
10,066 (7,7083)
70,296 77,324
(447) 675
79,915 70,296
79,915 70,296
B BHRERZ B

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
im & Wil 5 3R 2R Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #lZ2 —F— W F=A=+—HIFFZF

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15 March 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are located at the offices of Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and Suites 2708-2710, 27/F, Everbright
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
waterworks engineering services, road works and drainage
services and site formation works for the public sector in Hong
Kong and television broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific
region (excluding the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”))
in return for advertising and related revenue.

At 31 March 2019, the major shareholder of the Company
is China Xinhua News Network Co., Limited (“China Xinhua
NNC”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

—REH

ARRAIR_ZE—ZSF=A+HEREHRS
HERANEF2E (—NA—FEMS &8
e RIER]) RASHEEMN L RERE
EREARA ARG 2adMBEERERE
B2 4 2h 5 Bl & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111 » Cayman Islands & &8 & (74 147
FB1085% YL K 1,27122708-2710% ©

ARBZETBEBRIREZER - MENEB
REIZEBXBRA/EETE RN EHAIRE
KT T2 AR A% - 1B 88 T2 M RFB RS I
WRFBETIREENDAR (TEEPEA
RAMBE ([HE]) ) REERBERES
ABS B & M AR R Y as -

RIZE-NF=A=+—B AREZEE
BRRATHEHEFHER@ER AR ([
BHEHREERB])  —KRBEBEMAK
AVAPA/N I

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new
and amendments to HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time
in the current year.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(FRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

21.ERHATERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEA]) REBTR

AEBEERAFEERRMNBE LG E
NE ([EEGAMRE])Bm 2 PRAENET
MBI R MERT AR R ([FR] &8
IR RE LR RETTAL) -

EEMBHRERER S@IA

F95

EAMBREERN  BPANMGERBBETR
F15%

% (ABUBERE NHEXFRBARE
“REZEY)
-2 EE2R

ERRBREERN BROINRZNHIBRIE
E2% (BATK)

BAMBREED RABEMBRE LSRN
F45 (BFIA) R ARG EAEAN
BREERFOREMTE
BAGERFLT, FREEMBRELA-F
CHES) —mEE-_T-RFREHZ
FEICEN D
BAGERF0N BRREME

B NXPrtESN  RAFE A B EM
BREENREETAERNEERAFE
FBEFE2MBRRIMA RSt F
RAEVBRERMECRBEYESATE -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 21. BRI ERMBRELEA ([FEY

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated financial statements

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for
each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by
the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-
totals and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided. The adjustments are explained in more
detail by standard below.

Consolidated statement of FEMBERRE 31 March
financial position (extract) (=) 2018
—F-)N\F
=A
=t+—H
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Available for sale financial AtHESRERE
assets 2,302
Financial assets at fair FHEMEElE
value through other RAFENE
comprehensive income LERMEE -
Deferred tax assets BEHIEEE -
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B S REAMEKGRIE 102,116
Contract assets AHEE -
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A T RIE (89,546)
Contract liabilities AHAEE -
Net current liabilities REBEETFEHE (222,792)
Net liabilities BEFE (131,296)
Capital and reserves ERR#E
Reserves i (135,351)
Total equity BRER (131,296)

BHREEQ ) REEFTR (4)

HEaMBER2YE

TRITFUZEEERZHAE X TERE
IREBBTE IR - it AR 28T
RHBEEF AT ES H AT E 2/ ot R A8Et
TH-BHEABRCE—TFRR I RE
At -

1 April
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018

BEMBRE FARMBHRSE —FT-NF

AR E R R FE1555% mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
(2,302) - -
2,302 - 2,302
308 - 308
(1,182) (16,199) 84,735
(683) 16,199 15,516
- 14,020 (75,526)
- (14,020) (14,020)
(1,865) - (224,657)
(1,557) - (132,853)
(1,557) - (136,908)
(1,557) - (132,853)

®

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 21. BRI ERNBRELER ([FEHY

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, and 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated losses and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Below illustrates the classification and measurement (including
impairment) of financial assets and financial liabilities and other
items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the
date of initial application, 1 April 2018.

BHREEA ) REBETAR (&)

ERMBHRELEAFR ST A

RAFEE AEBEEABEV KRS E
AFSR M TA]  BEMBHEELSE
o (BRTA) [AAAMIE ZIRATE K
BLEMBEAMBRSER 2B BARE
ERTARN - BB E L EIR S ERRE
NEREERSBRABZVELTE R
)eMEEZRBEEERR ([BAREEES
B ZHBRE

AEBECRBERBV RS ERFSRAE
B BRI IR E R BB B HmE ERIF9
W AEEHR-_ZT-N\FHNA—A (&
REMER) MARKIEFERN TR B
BTHBRLE (BEREHEEEERE
THRE)WRE MASHR T~ \F
MA-HERR AN TERABAR
EF-R-_ZE-N\F=A=+—HZKHE
BER-F-N\FHA-AZKRAEZHAZ
EZRNPYIRABELERANEMIARF
FERR - HABI LB E # o

At - & THRERRBAILE - REARL
RERIRRE LG ERFE39% 2/
TR ®RARTE|RE-

ATHPARBRXERAH(ZT—/\FHN
A—B)EREBMRE ERFH Mg
REB G ENERHEREER SR
BENRAERENEEBRZEMBIAR
ZnBENEE (BRERE) -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 21. BRI ERMBRELEA ([FEY

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group recognises
the cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 9 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. Comparative information is not restated. The following
table gives a summary of the opening balance adjustments
recognised for each line item in the consolidated statement
of statement of financial position that has been affected by
HKFRS 9.

Classification and measurement

HKAS 39
carrying
amount at
31 March
2018
EREER
£39%
R=ZB-NF
=A=+-8
ZREE
HK$000
FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available for sale financial assets Al H & FIEE 2,302
Financial assets at fair value FREMZARE
through other comprehensive ~ RAFEAKRZ
income SREE -
Deferred tax assets EEREEE -
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables BHREMEUGIE 102,116
Capital and reserves EXR kG
Accumulated losses 2t EE (1,399,354)

BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

ERMBHRELEAFREMTA
(%)

RIFATEMABED R AEEKERER
FBM B mEERNEIN 2 Rt ERERIE
HR-ZE-N\FHA - AR SERL
HE - BHABIILERER - TREUEHR
REMBRRARPEZEBMEREELF
O B 2 B IR B TR A AR

DEREE

HKFRS 9

carrying

amount at

Reclassification Remeasurement 1 April 2018
ERMBRE

ERIEH

R-E-N\F

A—H

EN2E ENtE ZEREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

(2,302) - -

2,302 - 2,302

- 308 308

- (1,865) 100,251
- (1,657) (1,400,911)

N\
2018/2019 4§ w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueq)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

Available-for-sale ("AFS’) investments

From AFS financial assets to fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), the Group elected to
present in OCI for the fair value changes of all its equity
investments previously classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9, HK$2,302,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVTOCI, of which HK$2,302,000 related to unquoted equity
investments previously measured at cost less impairment

under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are

initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

All recognized financial assets and financial liabilities that are
within the scope of HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at

amortised cost.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain
the same. The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1
April 2018 has not been impacted by the initial application of

HKFRS 9.

21.ERHATERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEA ) REBETAR (&)

ERMBHREEANFESR ([EMTA] (&)

B AEFE BRI B EERFIN 2 &
3

AR E (TR E])RE

BRI EcREEEAZRBEMEAENK
HEAFEAR ([BREMEEEKEERD
FEARD AEEERERENSEAT
HEESRHEENBERAKREN A TE
SPHREMEEAREFRINR - ZERET
FEREEE BEARABRRERTEE
B RBRERABEMEMEERFESG 2
H - 2,302,000 L E A HEECRHEE
BN BEEBEMEEKSEAFEA
RV B E E - & #2,302,0000 7T Ty B2 AL
RIIR I B B & 5T 4 Al 305 1R A AN IR & 3L
B ENERERAKERH-

KK AT EN B EERTHMEED

&
s
ofF o)
z
m
o
St
2
N
E’Ii
fein

FBM IR EEREORBERNNPIA D
REMEELR BB BEERREHEMRAG

=

EO
METMABZFERMNERAR K=
- \FNA-HBEERMAGBZEEE

WS B IRERE B REERIERA

=2
rTEC

VA
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueq)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment under ECL mode!

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and contract assets. Except for those which had
been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL
for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other
receivables and bank balances, are assessed on 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had been no significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group's existing financial assets for
impairment using reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the

requirements of HKFRS 9.

21 BRI ERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

ERMBHERNFESR[EMIA] (&

BAREFE BRI B8 EERFEIN 2 EH
EZ(E)

RHEEEREZ T2 E

AR5 B A B B 15 R HE R S O5R /O A
e At BERHEEBER EMBES
U FERAEVNEERA2YRAREER
BRRREBEL G ELEIGRETE RE
BEIRERIERIN AHHERA (BIEE bR
WOk M ARTTAE SR ) FT BB 2 BB E M
BEHEEERZ12EARREEREE ([12
EAEMEEREE])EEF G HHERNE
Y146 T R IASK - {5 B LR 3 R AR 48 A0 o

RZZE-—N\FMOA—HB ARAEERE
FEVBRELRIFEIRNBRE  EHES
B ZANSE HENA S8 & 38 K& F] 5
R BRMAFEAEERAEEREER
BHERE-

2018/2019 4R 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

21.ERHATERMBRERER ([FEM
BHREEA ) REBETAR (&)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) ERAMBRELEAFSESMIA] (&)

B AEFE BRI B EERFIN 2 &
Z(E)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continueq) TR EEERED T2 6E (&)
RZE—-—NF=ZA=1+—HFBEEEE
(BRESEWFIE aHNEEREMEH
BE)ER_ZT—\FHA—BZH¥E

All loss allowances including trade receivables, contract
assets and other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
March 2018 reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at 1

April 2018 are as follows: BREEZHERAT:
Trade Contract
receivables assets Total
g 5 EWRIEA BHREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—)\F
- HKAS39 =A=+—H
—&Egs
ZE Bl FE395% 2,686 - 2,686
Reclassification EFSE
Amounts re-measured BRBAVIEFTEZ
through opening Gk
- accumulated losses —REER 1,182 683 1,865
At 1 April 2018 - HKFRS9 R =Z—/\4F
MmA—HA
—BBMERE
ZRIFEHR 3,868 683 4,551
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.1.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueq)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

The reserve movement as at 31 Mach 2018 reconciled to the
opening balances as at 1 April 2018 are as follows:

R EEMBRELER (FEY
BHREER ) REBRTA (&)
BERUBREENFSESHMIA] ()

BAREFE BRI B8 EERFEIN 2 EH
EZ(E)

RHEEEREZ T2 HE (&)
R-E-N\F=ZA=+—BZRFHEEHHE

KT — \EM A — B2 7 56
wmF

Accumulated

losses
258
HK$ 000
FET
Balance as at 31 March 2018, RZE—N\F=ZA=+—HZ
as originally presented @ WREZRT (1,399,354)
Remeasurement under HKFRS 9 BIBRE BN BRELENESRENTE
Increase in provision for BT B3 a0
— trade receivables —B SR KRIE (1,182)
- contract assets —GEHEE (683)
Increase in deferred tax assets BT IR & LN 308
At 1 April 2018, as restated RZE—N\FMOA—H &F7 (1,400,911)

2018/2019 4R 115

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and the related Amendments from 1 April
2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 15, prior period comparative figures have not been
restated. In summary, the following adjustments were made
to the amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the date of initial application (1 April 2018):

Non-current assets FRBEE
Deferred tax assets ERHERE
Current assets REBEE

Trade and other receivables 2 S REmERFA
Contract assets BHEE

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B REMEMNFE
Contract liabilties AHEE

21.ERHATERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEA]) REBITR (&)

ERMBREENEISR [ FEFEHNE

AEEER T/ \FOA - HERAE
B EREERE1RZT P A KR EKIE
BRI AN EH T RRES MHNH
BRER L CRIEL AR -REBFENB
HE AR SEA155E 2 IR MRS B B
ZUBBFRERS - BEME  RNERE
AE#H(ZT-N\FNA—H)REAMHK
RRKRERZ S BRIEL AT HE:

HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carry amount carrying
at 31 March amount
2018  Reclassification Remeasurement  at 1 April 2018
Eaet BAMBHRE
ERIE18%: B $15%;
RZB-NE R=B-NF
=ZA=t+-H A-H
ZEHE BN E EffGE ZEHE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET

- - 308 308

102,116 (16,199) (1,182) 84,735

- 16,199 (683) 15,516

89,546 (14,020) - 75,526

- 14,020 - 14,020

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continueq)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2019 and its consolidated statement
of cash flows for the current year for each of the line items
affected. There is no impact on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the current

21 BRI ERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

ERMBREENEISH [FEFEHNE
(%)

TR AERE BT SR E ERE165 4
AEBR-_T-NF=A=t—"HBHZ&EA
BHERRARRERAFERARERER
BHSXTERBZEE - MEHAFE
REEakEtEAREREETE R
¥REFEYHTE AR A EFATEAR-

year. Line items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEEHBENRERZEHE
position
Carrying
amounts
Carrying without
amounts application of
as report Adjustments HKFRS 15
RERAEBHME
WwEZEA
ERZEEE AR FI5HEZREE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H {th & 5018 105,738 15,517 121,255
Contract assets BHEBEE 15,517 (15,517) -
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b &~ 5118 88,973 20,156 109,129
Amounts due to customers ENEF &4 T2
for contract works FKIE - 45,000 45,000
Contract liabilities BHEE 65,156 (65,156) -
77D
2018/2019 4R {17) PEHEERERERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2A.ERFIEAMBRELERN (BB
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EER ) REETA (£)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ERMEREERNEISREEEFEHOWE]
(Continueq) (#&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows Yoo nEXCEE
Carrying
amounts
Carrying without
amounts application of
as report Adjustments HKFRS 15
REABBHME
wEZEA
ERZEEE FAE  FISHRZREE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Cash flows from RETFE 2
operating activities ReRE
Increase in trade and other & 5 I H fth fiE Uk
receivables FRIFIE N (21,081) 4 (21,077)
Decrease in contract assets & #9& &= il 4 (4) -
Current liabilities nREEE
Increase in trade and other B 5 Iz H it & <t
payables FIRLE AN 6,598 6,136 12,734
Increase in amounts due to BN EF&# T2
customers for contract SRIAIE N
works - 45,000 45,000
Increase in contract liabilities & #9 8 (&1 A1 51,136 (51,136) -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continueq)

(i) Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has also changed the presentation of the
following amounts in the balance sheet to reflect the
terminology of HKFRS 15:

— Up to date of initial application of HKFRS 15.
HK$16,199,000 and HK$14,020,000 of retention
receivables and retention payables were reclassified
to contract assets and contract liabilities
respectively.

(i) Timing of revenue recognition

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies, as explained below, except for the
reclassification of the contract assets/contract liabilities
from trade and other receivables and amounts due
from/to customers for contract works, HKFRS 15
was generally adopted without restating any other
comparative information. The adoption of HKFRS 15
in the current period does not result in any impact on
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
information and/or disclosures set out in the consolidated
financial information except that, the Group has adopted
the following accounting policies as stated in note 4 on
revenues with effect from 1 April 2018.

21 BRI ERMBRERER ([FEM
BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

EEMBREENEISR[EFEHORE]
(%)

() BEFEXNFHZEERERGZZS

AEBENEEEEERGERPUTE
M 25 AR E BB 5 S 228
F155R AT 55

- HEERERBEEVBHREE
A1 E R -BRIREB & &
JE 1R B8 £16,199,000% 7T &
14,020,000/ T B 9 B E #7548
REHNEERENEE-

(i) 4 a5 753 B BT

HRAEEZ S BRRES (T X
Prit) - BRRE B 5 R EMEUGRIEZ
AREE/ARNEBEARER R
BEPZANIREREZEHRDEIN
RNB BB HmELERNFE165 — KRB
ABEIMEAE ML BE B - R RR
MEEMBREERFIGRAL TS
HEEPBENAME2|MESER, X
RAEMBENMENREELEMNE
2 HAKEEE T /\FMNA—
FHEBRAA NI4Tt Al E 2 &
AR

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Definition of a business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale and Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle’

21.ERHATERMBRERER ([FEM
BHREEA]) REBITR (&)

EEMEMRERZHTERMBRESE

AR BAEFT A

AEBEWERZEPEM TS R/MEHRE
MR EBM B RE LR R EAEF] A

ERUBRE
£165%

ERMBRELER
F175H

3

HE'

=N

B (BRMBRE FEHEEZTEEY

REZE®)
— B EE20Y
e ]
£388 (B A)
e ]
295 (BIK)
e ]
E10FRES
©ER|£08%

(1B3I%K)

BRI ERER
BEgEAFSN

CHES)

BR G ERF19H

CHES)

BB G LR F26H

CHES)

EBHEREER
(3T K)

RHTE

ABRHEZ
B
REZHRBELAAAE
PEZANEELEZ
HE

k BXZEZ

SRR s E

REZRAREELFEZ

REE

TE-AFE_F—F
B2 EEYFHEES
ZERHE

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisitions date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 April 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

21 BRI ERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

EEMEERERZHTEBMBREE
AR EAERT A (&

" ORZFE-NFAA ARG FEY
kS

2 ROIF-—FMH-HRZEHBEZFEY
EIAER

S REER AR R FIRRE LK

4 HRNEA BT -FFEMA A%
FiE2 EEFEARMATRZ 22 ZHE 0
REEWIELEL

S ROIF-FFMNA-HIAZEFLZFRH
e

BB BHEERE16% [HE]

FEMBREEAE16RSEZEERN -
AREBEARABABREE LB R &5
Ba I8 77 0% - BB RS S X R B 165% R
% BRREBSFERNEITR [HE] &
HEERE-

BEVBMEENE1RAEERETAT
PiEGRERESBEEMRBE L - EH
SRR TREHENBEHEN
By WA E—ERNER  ERERT
BREBHEMEEEENEEIN AEA
BHERAHEZERREEENRARNE

=
=]

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 21. BRI ERNBRELEA ([FEHY

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating
cash flows respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

BHREEA]) REBITR (&)

EEMEMRERZHTERMBRESE
RIREABRT A (&)

BB BHEEREI6% [HE] (#)

EREEEN S RKATTE  BRUKAK
(HEE T HISMESLER SN ) IRk R T I & KORE
BiEFE YHEERENEAENTE
miEHAR - HERBEHRBENK (GFE
X)) mBRENLSHE-RR HERE
s (HEP8RE)MELREERBNLEEE
RINFEETHE - RERTEVBRE
ERFE165 R FREERGENEHENR
R B AN R A B #B  I#  Bll A

MEMKERTREZD -

HEAEASHRENS BEVHRS
EHF16R AR AT B G ERIE175R
BHBAGERE  LESERELEA
KEENERKEHERERE-

VA
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2.1. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As set out in note 40, total operating lease commitment of the
Group in respect of its office, director’s quarter, certain office
equipment, television broadcasting right, the use of satellite
capacity and broadcasting services as at 31 March 2019 was
amounting to approximately HK$21,248,000. The directors
of the Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting policy would result in
a significant impact on the Group’s results at this stage but it
is expect certain portion of these lease commitments will be
required to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognize the cumulative effect of initial application to opening
retained earnings without restating comparative information.

Except disclosed above, the Directors do not anticipate that
the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial position.

21 BRI ERMBRERER ([FEM

BHREEQ ) REEFT AR (&)

EEMEHMRERZHT TR BREE
RIREBRT A (&)

BB BHEEREI6H [HE] (#)

WM F40RTE - R 2T —LF=HA
St BASEEHERLAE EEFRE
E ABTHAERE BERENE FEA
ERBERBRB2CEHEAERERY
21,248,000/ L c AR RIEETEH  KAWE
SRR ERISE 165k (ERE AT S 5T R
MBI BT REBR L RBEHEEE
REAFE BRAZSEHERENET
Ho AR GENBRARAERAEA
HEENMHEBE-

FE AT T AL B L PR A - 25
REEE LSS AEE (EAKBA)
BIE B LG IE T 2 W AR BB
A Z 163 - A NE AR E B
RERERZ2HYE ATEEIILE
Bt

B EXPIEEIN EFTREEM M3
AR BB B MEEANHAEE 2
MIBRBARITHIRR L EERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i':‘ yaN
mwh O}

frk 55 3k 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs., Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
disclosures requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

(a)

(b)

3. mMREE

B 525

HEMBBRDBEE LSS
Bz BEVBREEN (HRES
EBRENEEMBHREER &
BatEL ([FEGFHER]) hai
(MR 24H) MRS - Lo 475
MBHmREFEEBHARIAERN
BIGEME 75 L A R &7 2 RE Sl
(TRBMEDI ) Z B ERARTE PR E 2 38
PR -

0 18

M

A MR T RIRE S AR 2R

L ERERERRELFEFEZ
ETE2RTARINER NIEFTEK
RNMEE) -

5

B s A — MR A E R E Y 2
TEHE -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which
are described as follows:

e |Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e | evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

3. mBEE(E)

(b)

mEEE ()

NEEDRFAERRMISZ2EE 2
REMKFR 5% HEEEMTIERE
HEBEAINOER Mm% ER
EERUERERIUSHAEREM
BETDAEF R EESREZ
RFER AEESEENERY
HEESLRBETEERZENR
HoNUEEGRAMBHRRFHAERS
IWBENRTFEDRIELEETUE
E o EEBM B REERFE2IREER
AR RERZNRRZ BES
AHERIEI7TRBEANHER H M
NP ERLELSFRFENE (F
INE B G ETHERIFE 257 A A B IR A
ER T ERFEIHENEREE) R
B

IEoN - S RE M S - AT ETER
BATEAENGARBIBEREE
EMBASBEATEFENEREE
MHEEE—HKR - F_RAIKE=
BHl - FHatn T

s FANBMABBESERNE
HEIRIARGEREER AR
RIRBEMHRRE CREAR)

s EAVBMABEBRAEEXEA
EEEXMBEMAIBEIHEA
g (£ —MBIABJAORERR
58 R

s FZANBABBIEEEXRE
BRI BRI ABUR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i':‘ yaN
mwh O}

frk 55 3k 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continueqd)

(c) Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group notwithstanding that the Group
has incurred a net loss of approximately HK$65,302,000
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and, as of that
date, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$166,991,000.

The directors adopted the going concern basis in the
preparation of Financial Statements and implemented
the following measures in order to improve the working
capital and liquidity and cash flow position of the Group:

(1) Financial support

China Xinhua News Network Co., Limited (“China
Xinhua NNC”), one of the major shareholders of
the Company and a convertible notes holder, has
confirmed to provide financial support to the Group
in a reasonable manner under relevant laws and
regulatory requirements, to maintain the going
concern of the Company. The financial support
only refers to allow the Company to extend the
repayment for the liabilities due to China Xinhua
NNC to not earlier than 12 months commencing
from 31 March 2019, including (1) the convertible
notes in the principal amount of approximately
HK$257,030,000; (2) the interests payable on
the convertible notes amounted to approximately
HK$43,382,000 as of 31 March 2019; and (3) the
liabilities due to China Xinhua NNC of approximately
HK$17,337,000 as of 31 March 2019 in respect of
annual fee for television broadcasting right, carriage
fee payment and satellite transmission fee, if the
repayment would cause the Company to be unable
to settle its liabilities due to other parties when they
fall due.

3. WREE(E)

(c)

FESEEE

REBRE M BHRRE  EECTHA
EZREASEZRRRHE BEHE
TE-AF=ZA=F+—HILEE"
7 £ B B A F B 18 4965,302,0007% TT
EBZEZH AEEZAEFENA
166,991,000/ 7T °

EENREVBHREAFCRAFER
LEEVCER FIERAREAE
Blr2BEe MRBENARRERE
AR :

(1) #MEXHF

FREFETEERBER A A
([FEFEFEEEE] AR
AIEERF 2 —RAIBRERERE
BANEHMRUGEEREEH
EEMEEEZRN AN AAEE
REMBLE NEBAARH
B EEUBIFERT
AR EHARNAEAEEAEME
EADHEBENERL TATHAA
AEHE-_T-NF=HA=1—
H &+ =& A 1& (838 S BT
EFEERENGES  BEMNH
MR R B AR € A #9257,030,000
BT RQEE-Z-HALF=A
=+t Bl AT RRER BN
R B A& #743,382,000/% 7T : K(3)
HEz—_Z—NnF=ZA=+—H
W2 EHERBEREFE KN
BEHERNFTEEEE ZENF
BEHMEFEESAPNER AL
17,337,000/ 7t °
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c) Going concern (Continued)

(2) Alternative source of funding

The Group is actively considering to raise new
capital by carrying out fund raising activities
including but not limited to rights issue, open offer,
placing of new shares and issuance of convertible
note.

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the various
measures/arrangements implemented after the
end of the reporting period, the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its current requirements
and it is reasonable to expect the Group to remain
a commercially viable concern. Accordingly, the
directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the Financial Statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate
as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial
statements.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the

nearest thousand dollars (HK$'000) except otherwise

indicated.

3. mBEE(E)

(c)

FEQERE (&)

2) HEEEERXEF

AEELEREERBHAREE
BBUNEBEHMER BEETR
R RFERE - BEEHD &
BT BBRERE-

EEZRR ENMEHRRREN
ZEEEWR, B ARE R E
FREEEETAMEAREZ
ERW A AEAHA S E A EE
URamENag s ZELE A
It EEEMRBELEEER
Y BHRRBAME -

AR E R EBERITERE
EREE TR ELRABEN
BEEBEMREETKRE
BoplAlgE IR 2 ERARKRAE
AHRRE ARBIERDEER
BENNEIRARBDEEREA
BE-RERHBEZHEL RN
AR TR BR o

(d DERZHRESR

B mRITIAB T (BT FIE B
TR ARBZNEERE BRAE
RSN B BB s A AEREN
W TRB(TETT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., BREFHE

(a) Basis of consolidation (a) &REE%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e  has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

®  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continueq)

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ mestings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

e jts assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

e jts revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

e jts share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

e jts expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with other parties to the joint
operation, and gains and losses resulting from the sale or
contribution are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those asset to
a third party.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BERXETTBE (£)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (c) ME -BERRE (£)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates used for the current year are as

follows:

Site offices Over the respective project terms

Leasehold 30% or over the respective life of
improvements the leases, whichever is shorter

Machinery 20% - 30%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXETTBE (£)

(d) Leasing (d HE&

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(9)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct production expenditures and an appropriate
portion of production overheads. The cost of film rights
are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in accordance
with a formula computed to write off the cost over the
broadcast period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of inancial assets are recognised and derecognized
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.
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U]

(9)

B IR

B MRAE IR A AN R R AT 8 R AR AR
EEEIE NABREELEERS
MBEELFICEEER BXREY
W$%%W%ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ@%&$%
mAEBEREMEERERA -

E@MIT AR

TRHEERCRABENREEETEKA

TEEHNBX AN R#ER 2/
BEZHERREERRHHEER
REBEER AR EERAREM
SRR IE IR c RRARNEE

ZEMEERER-

E EENMEBBENIARFERT

HREPHATANELEZE SR
W KEE T \FUA—BENL
REBEFBVBEHRELENFISRAE-
AWERETEREELERAEM
BEREEZRGEA RNERERE
MAZREENERBEZATERK
femmks (@) -

2018/2019 3R

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BERXETTBE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transition in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXRETTBE (£)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(9) &®mI A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Upon application of
HKFRS 9 in accordance with transition in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, contract
assets and cash and cash equivalents). The amount of
ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EREFEE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (jii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

4. EXREHEBE(H)

(9 &®MIA (&)

ETHEE (&)
1B R EZ 0 (&)

AEEEHERREEEERRES
FREIB NPT AIRE 2 B WAREE
BRIEFTEBIRE  AEAREEHN
RIEBHAEREEARBEIEM-

ENZTEE

fidl & B & E B HIEBB90R - AEE
BIECBLERY KRIFEAKEEES
ERABBEXHZENEARRRLZ
EXNREEQER  AIE R e

EEEREZZMEE

E-REAZENEMEEZAEIRK
BenEERBAREZSTHEE
B AIRKREMEECEERE S/
BEGEREZERBREIRUATE
2 AT R BUE -

@ ERALETALBEEAGTHRE
2

b) ERSH PlMBELERLEH
ZI

2018/2019 3R

41

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EREFEE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is the disappearance of an active market for
security because of financial difficulties; or

(e) the purchase of financial asset at a deep discount
that reflect the incurred credit losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade and retention sum
receivables, when the amounts are over 3 years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXETTBE (£)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9 €®MIA(£E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Measurement and recognition of ECL RIS EE B2 52 RiER
The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability TEHEEEEZSENELOBR &
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the HEEER (AENENEBEZRE) X
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. BRAORR KB - BABE RELNE
The assessment of the probability of default and loss BEDRBLERETER AR ZES
given default is based on historical data adjusted by HBHETH G -TEHREEBERE M
forward-looking information estimation of ECL reflects IRt (R A R B R i EEE - A TOAR
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is TR ONHE 2 A8 FE 3 40 R\ g i 8 5E ©

determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated the difference between —mE FEHREEBEBRERBRESY
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in ENASEEMEEHNRESRERE
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that BB zBeRECH 2 Z8EH
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective T WIR P ERRET 2 BRI
interest rate determined at initial recognition. ALER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EREFEE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence of significant increases in
credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

—  Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
and other receivables and contract assets are each
assessed as a separate group).;

—  Past-due status;

—  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

ETHEE (&)

RS EERZ 5 ERiER (&)

Mk EEAELHRBEED
B ARERNENTAERLREE
RBREE LA ZBBRRESZE
BT ATRIATEEDA:

- SRIAZUHBE(AAEEZE
S REMEYFEARENEE
EBIEREBERFE)

- BHIER:

— EBAZHE REREETE:
)54

— AIRZINEMEEREAR -

EIEEE HmET o AR S E R
BRI D B A RO EERR
R e

BTy S BA R 2 At
8 BIESBAE E IS EORIE  FE b
BT FERATESREES S
SEARAHE o

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized
through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and retention sum receivables, amounts
due from customers for contract works, deposits,
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BERXETTBE (£)

(9 €WMTA(#&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investment are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
availablefor-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
revenue in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for foreseeable futures or until
maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-forsale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected.

For all other financial assets objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXETTBE (£)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(9 &®MIA (&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as account
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EREFEE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of account receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When an account receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognized in profit or loss

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire
or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, finance lease payables and bank overdraft)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXRETTBE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

The component parts of convertible notes issued by
the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EREFEE (£)

(9) &®mI A (&)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Promissory note

Promissory note is recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

4. EXREHEBE(H)

(9 &®MIA (&)

BREERIEERIN RRIEERS
BER ASESHSREENBT
REEEREEERRDD RTBER
BOREZEBHANEE A FELEMRE
FEER DB - TBERILDIES A
FREEETBERID %WW&F
EREMEEKAFERNED LD
Eﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁmwﬁﬁ%%
B DR BT - EREMEER
AERH Rt W am s EiE - Sk E
wRED K TEERIBONEE AT
BEEMERIEL D

AEBEERAEE 2 EERER T
HEEmE DDA ERAR
HERHEMABENRRERE MK
MR EZEHNZRNIBEER

2018/2019 3R

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEXRETTBE (£)

(h) Construction contracts (h)y BEEEY

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts for variation orders, claims
and incentive payment. Contract costs include costs
that related directly to the specific contract and costs
that are attributable to contract activity in general and
can be allocated to the contract. Contract costs are
recognised when incurred and costs that relate directly
to a specific contract comprise site labour costs; costs of
subcontracting; costs of materials used in construction
and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed
construction overheads.

Variation in contract works and claims are included to the
extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its
receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and contract costs associated
with the construction contract are recognised as revenue
and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the year.

The outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably when: (i) the total contract revenue can be
measured reliably; (i) it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the contract will flow to the
entity; (i) the costs to complete the contract and the
stage of completion can be measured reliably; and (iv) the
contract costs attributable to the contract can be clearly
identified and measured reliably so that actual contract
costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only
to the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be
recoverable.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Costs of construction contracts include costs that
relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are
attributable to contract activity and can be allocated to
the contract. Such costs include but are not limited to
material and consumables, direct labour, subcontracting
charges and accommodation expenses. When progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus
is treated as an amount due to contract customers.
When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

4. EXREHEBE(H)

(h)

BESHN(E)

ERRZEREEN ST AR
BHWRERNEDEL 2B HKATE
HR R U Bl 2 B T T LA RERR o

BERAEHRAEBIEHEBAE K
5 TR E 1R B H%ﬁﬁuz%ﬁﬂi °

N

s

BEANKABRERESNERSR
BRI MRR AR RADEE
BHMKRA - BRKRABRENRR
MEREN BEEST DBERER
X -EENREBEBEEZENEE

A KB INE BERR Y AR 2
REER RERERNEHOEPK
HRE -BEZHNEELESOKA
(INERREMNREEAERBRE
ENRE SRERERKEOEFRK
TRRRIE o

2018/2019 3R

@

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i

Revenue and other Income recognition (upon
application of HKFRS 15 In accordance with
transition In Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@i)

Revenue and other Income recognition (upon
application of HKFRS 15 In accordance with
transition In Note 2) (Continueq)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - %
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in
which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The Group
recognises interest income during the period between
the payment from customers and the transfer of the
associated goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
(to specify), the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount
of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

(k)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (Continued)

Variable consideration (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Revenue recognition (before application of HKFRS
15 on 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the certification by architects. If the certificate
of architects was not provided, revenue is recognised
by reference to the proportion of actual costs incurred
up to the date to the estimated total cost of the relevant
contract.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (before application pf HKFRS

15 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Advertising revenue, net of agency commission
expenses, is recognised upon the broadcast of the
relevant advertisements.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established (provided that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before income tax’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Taxation (Continued)

—NFZA=+—HIFE

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

(m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service
is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-
term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the related service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continueq)

3.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments payable on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to its present value and
reduced by entitiements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plans that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. WWhen a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(P)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

4. EXREFHEBE(H)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

4. EXREHEBE(H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Foreign currencies (Continued)

r)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve.

Segment information

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

4. EXREFHEBE(H)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
entity that is preparing the financial statements:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(2) Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related party (Continued)

@

(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

(viil

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsorship employers
are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
service to the Group’s or the Group’s parent.

4. EXREFHEBE(H)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related party (Continued)

(t)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a reporting entity and a
related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Current assets and current liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the reporting date or in the normal course of
the operating cycle. Current liabilities are expected to be
settled within twelve months of the reporting date or in
the normal course of the operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

5. EEEFHAE KM TABERZE
ERR (&)

EREFTBR2ERHE (&)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continueq)

BREEA W28 R

(i) Construction contract revenue recognition (i)

Revenue recognition on a project is dependent on
management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contracts, with reference to the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to
date to the estimated total costs for the contracts. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and provision for
claims, prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction costs are
prepared by the management on the basis of quotations
from time to time provided by the major contractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of
the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic
reviews of the management budgets by comparing the
budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. The
provision for claims is determined on the basis of the
delay in the number of workdays of the completion of
the construction works which is highly subjective and is
subject to negotiation with the customers. Management
conducts periodic review of the provisioning amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Construction contract revenue recognition
(Continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
provision for claims which may have an impact in terms
of percentage of completion and profit taken. The
judgements of the management are based on contract
costs and revenues on the latest available information,
which includes detailed contract valuations. In many
cases the results reflect the expected outcome of long-
term contractual obligations which span more than
one reporting period. Contract costs and revenues are
affected by a variety of uncertainties that depend on the
outcome of future events and often need to be revised
as events unfold and uncertainties are resolved. The
estimates of contract costs and revenues are updated
regularly and significant changes are highlighted through
established internal review procedures. In particular,
the internal reviews focus on the timing and recognition
of payments and the age and recoverability of any
disagreed income from variations to the contract scope
or claims. The impact of the changes in accounting
estimates is then reflected in the ongoing results.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade and other receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, trade and other receivables
and contract assets with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

5. EEEFHE KM TABERZE
ERR (&)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

A FHBEZRZETERR (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

BEEERE

(i) Impairment of intangible assets (ii)

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the management to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 March
2019 were approximately approximately HK$44,362,000
(2018: approximately HK$62,678,000). Details of the
impairment loss calculation are disclosed in note 20.

(iii) Impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether the financial
assets and non-financial assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 4(g) and 4(n) respectively. The assets
are reviewed for the impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The determination of recoverable amount requires an
estimation of future cash flows and the selection of
appropriate discount rates.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of broadcasting right

The Group determines the estimated useful life at
10 years and related amortisation charges for its
broadcasting right. The estimate is based on the license
period of the broadcasting right acquired. Management
will revise the amortisation charge where the useful life is
difference to the one previously estimated.

Useful lives of film rights

The Group determines the estimated useful life in
accordance to the broadcast period of individual film
rights and amortisation for film rights is charged in
accordance to the broadcast period of individual film
rights. The estimate is based on forecasted customer
attrition pattern with reference to similar market
information. Management will revise the amortisation
charge where the useful life is difference to the one
previously estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(vii) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
accordingly be adjusted in the relevant tax account in the
year in which such determination is made.

6. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

(i) Over time of revenue recognition

Construction works HETIE
Advertising income* N

*

No publication income (2018: approximately HK$129,000) was
included in advertising income during the year ended 31 March
2019.
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6. W=

HE-_ZE-NEER-TE-N\E=A=+—
AIFFE AEBREZHTOT:

() WEEREGE

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
323,895 369,420
960 1,095
324,855 370,615

* BEZ-AE=A=t-—HIFEHRED
hRUE A ( =Z— )\ : #7129,0007 70 ) 5t A&
HUTA o
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future

arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation under the Group’s existing contracts is
approximately HK$178,749,000. This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future from
pre-completion construction contracts and advertising
contracts entered into by the customers with the Group.

6. W= (&)

(i) FHRARETEIZERNKEEAH
REEFENEEzWE

RZZE-—NF=A=+—R0 BEX
SERBEANNPREEHRTRAOEMEDN
RS EHRREH) 5178,749,000/8 Tt © 7%
CRERREREPEARAEE A
RITRREGHNRESEHTERER
B e ARE KRS E TIE% Tk
RHEREE (BEATZEARN) R

The Group will recognised the expected revenue in future TEEA AR o
when or as the work is completed or service is provided
which is expected to occur within the next 12 months.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HislA
Other income recognised during the years ended 31 March HE_Z—NFERT—)/\F=ZA=1+—
2019 and 2018 were as follows: HIEFEwR 2z HMmBALLT:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income F 2 WA 78 23
Dividend income M2 A 198 295
Realised gain on financial assets at FRBRBRATEARZ
fair value through profit or loss TREE B #H K& - 3,770
Sundry income IR 174 5
450 4,093

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hih=REIE
Other gains and losses recognised during the years ended 31 HE_Z-—NFERZT—N\F=A=1+—
March 2019 and 2018 were as follows: HIEFERRz  HalmREEET
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Exchange gain/(loss), net b W (E518) - F88 1,035 (2,199)
Gain arising from extinguishment of BB AR RIRESE 2 W
promissory note 1,939 2,320
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE WERE&HE 2B FEE
plant and equipment 131 143
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ FLE 5 WG IBIER 2 B
recognised for trade receivables EEEBERE (78) -
Reversal of allowance for expected ABHEETEMEEBERERRD
credit losses recognised for
contract assets 5 -
3,032 268

®
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s segment information is presented on the basis
on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. For each of the Company reviews
internal management reports on a regular basis.

Under the segment structure implemented during the
year ended 31 March 2019, in formation reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provide are:

(i)  Provision of civil engineering services — provision of
waterworks engineering services, road works and
drainage services and site formation works for public
sector in Hong Kong; and

(i) Television broadcasting and advertising business — the
business of broadcasting television programmes on
television channels operated by television broadcasting
companies in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the PRC)
in return for advertising and related revenue.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches.

7 ERE

AEB 2D BERDIRBARRRITES
(EB2ERKE) ROEBEREZDH
K5 & 0 8RR IR M E e st 2 A BB R &
TUER -RAKEEAIZ2HmDEME - A
RERTEFEREMABEERE -

RERBE-_T-NF=_A=+—HLF
EEM 27 ERE  AAREHRNITES (R
TELERRE)MEBRUNEESEEIR
KeHED RPRB 2 EB SRR A
SRERG < EER

) RELARIERE-/BELZEM
R TR - B0 TR MR
AR%S TREEHBFETIRE: &

(i) ERERLEBEEEE-EMLRNEAR
(TEEPE) 2 ER/ERRRMEE
ZERSEETEGE B EBARSF
BENREEWE 2 R

i S EER RS BRI BB TR0 ER
PO BT R e

DEPW D FAEHE

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#n © il §5 3R 2= Bl 5
For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue from external customers REMDEP 2 Wz
Other income and gains Hin A Rz
Reportable segment revenue A 287 Bk
Reportable segment results AEmNHEE
Unallocated corporate income AOBEEERA
Unallocated corporate expenses RABEERT
Finance costs BEMR

Loss before income tax BRETEEAI BB

9. DHER (&)

2 R R A

AREBRAIZHRNEEDT

EEATWT e

BE-ZE-NE=A=+—HLEE

Television
Provision of civil broadcasting
engineering  and advertising
services business Total
R#ELA BREM
IBRR% REEXH # gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
323,895 960 324,855
245 - 245
324,140 960 325,100
4,004 (30,511) (26,507)
2,210
(18,895)
(25,686)
(68,878)

®
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue from external customers REMPEP 2 Uiz
Other income and gains A R &
Reportable segment revenue BES SR E
Reportable segment results A2RHBEE
Unallocated corporate income RAREERA
Unallocated corporate expenses AABREERT
Finance costs BEMK

Loss before income tax BRATS AT E B

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit/loss respects the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs, dividend income, interest income, finance costs,
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, gain arising from extinguishment of promissory
note and income tax expense. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

DTEWER (&)

DEM R KT (F)

BE-T—\F=A=t-AILFE

Provision of civil Television
engineering broadcasting
services business Total
RELAR EREN
TR %% Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
369,420 1,095 370,515
191 - 191
369,611 1,095 370,706
27,280 (35,640 (8,360)
6,527
(14,475)
(33,331)
(49,639

EXFERN D HBREERBINBEF 2
Hyf\"ﬁi *ﬂiﬁ_if/\i:ﬂ
=t—RUESFERESEMEE-

BN ER S ETECR BN 4T A AR S
S BCRAR - DB A, BERIES S
FERD AR RITEAA - BREMWA - F B
A BERA - BBREBEEATFEARZ S
BMEECATEEE EERLRBEL
2 W sk K FTAS 75 69 2 AT PR R EN A& 1), B
EREB IR EBLERREZHRA
HESRERRTHRRZAEAR -

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 March 2019

Segment assets NEEE
Unallocated AAE
Consolidated assets GREE
Segment liabilities pak: 3=V
Unallocated RAE
Consolidated liabilities LeaE

9. DHER (&)

THMEERERE

AEBRAIZHRNEENREI D 2 EER
BESMHT:

R=ZB-HIF=A=+—H

Provision of civil
engineering
services
R#EL K
IRR%
HK$'000

FET

149,098

83,392

Television
broadcasting
and
advertising
business
ERER
REEER
HK$'000
FET

51,589

30,729

Total

@it
HK$'000
FET

200,687
91,414

292,101

114,121
344,971

459,092

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continueq)

At 31 March 2018

Segment assets NEEE
Unallocated NN
Consolidated assets GAEE
Segment liabilities PNEHEE
Unallocated AOE
Consolidated liabilities meat

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
available for sale financial assets, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, current tax recoverable, deferred tax assets
and assets for corporate use; and,

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than convertible notes, current and deferred tax liabilities,
finance lease payables and promissory note.

9. oHEHR (&)

ITHEEREE (&)

R-E—-N\FE=FA=+—H

Provision of civil Television
engineering broadcasting
services business Total
RELAR BRER
Ti2HR% X% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
135,349 65,267 200,616
86,514
287,130
38,900 16,772 55,672
362,754
418,426

RERDERAEDEDHEIR

e KRAUHHESRMEE BEEMEZE
WHBAFEARZEMEE BB
BaR A FEARZeREE RE
KB EEY  ATURENE IR - RT
%%Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlhﬁﬁﬁé
ENDREEENES: K-

o KAUBKRER EHEENBERE
rf\ﬁéfﬁffﬁ Iﬁﬁiﬁkﬂmﬁ%ﬁ\\ Fit
BREOHIEEEENE-

®

2018/2019 3R

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AEER (&)
Other segment information H fih 5 ZB & H
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_ZE—NF=A=1+—HLEE
Television
Provision of broadcasting
civil and
engineering advertising
services business  Unallocated Total
BEtL K ERER
IRRYE RESER AAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Additions to non-current assets REERDEE 20,436 3 - 20,439
Depreciation of property, NE BELEENE
plant and equipment 19,410 735 1,718 21,863
Amortisation of film rights ERREEE - 278 - 278
Amortisation of intangible assets EREERE - 18,316 - 18,316
Allowance for expected credit losses B SRNGERER 2B
recognised for trade receivables FEBBERE 78 - - 78
Reversal of allowance for expected credit  FiA 41 EEHER 2 T H
losses recognised for contract assets {5 EEBEERD (5) - - (5
Net gains on disposal of property, HENE BELREEL
plant and equipment Yozt H (131) - - (131)
Change in fair value of financial assets ~ BEREBHEAFEARZ
at fair value through profit or loss SHEBEEZLATEE - - 9,123 9,123
Gain arising from extinguishment of BEALRBEE 2 a
promissory note - - (1,939) (1,939)

®
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Additions to non-current assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of film rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Net gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain arising from extinguishment of
promissory note

REFRBEE
NE WERRETE

SRS

BN EESH

B HRUGR 2 RERE
HENE BERRELZ
Li6aye s

BBEERAFEARLZ
TREERTEED
HEMB ARz W

BEERARBEL 2N

9. oHEHR (&)

HihpHmar (&)
HE T )\FZA=+—HILFE
Provision of
civil Television
engineering  broadcasting
services business Unallocated Total
RELA BEREN
T2k 7% ROHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
16,198 7 - 16,205
15,815 738 2,742 19,295
- 1,418 - 1,418
- 18,316 - 18,316
- 55 - 55
(143) - - (143)
- - 1,308 1,308
- - (114) (114)
- - (2,320) (2,320)

2018/2019 3R

91

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
major products and services were as follows:

Construction works HETIE
Advertising income & A

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by location of customers:

Hong Kong BB
PRC =8

o.

DEER (&)

REETEEMMRE 2 WE

AEBEKBHEBEMSMRSE 2 WEDHT
LN

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
323,895 369,420
960 1,095
324,855 370,615

AEBZEBTRUNEBRPEH-

TEREHREEFUES D ZAEE K 2

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
324,855 369,518

- 997

324,855 370,515

VA
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-

current assets, excluding the financial assets and deferred tax
assets analysed by the geographical area in which the assets

are located:
Hong Kong BB
PRC H

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from provision of civil
engineering services of approximately HK$323,895,000
(2018: HK$369,420,000) are revenue generated from
three (2018: four) customers amounting to approximately
HK$303,716,000 (2018: HK$366,065,000) has individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue. No
other single customers contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018.

DERE R ()
MmEEN (E)
AT RREEMEEI T ZIERBEE

(TEREEREEMBREMIBREE) 2RME
BZOH:

2019 2018

—2-hF —E)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

80,998 100,689

1,666 3,266

82,664 103,955
FREEEFZEHR

RELIARIEBRBEAEE N K=
#9323,895,0008 L (=& — \ & :
369,420,000 L)H - BiEH =4
(ZE2E-—NF HB)EFPERHIK
7 #9308,716,0008 0 (=& — N\ &F -
366,065,000/ 7T ) & Bl 5 A 52 [ 42 i 25 Y
10%A L - BEAME-XPREBEE_T
—NWF=ZA=+—HBER=_ZE—N\F=A
=+t —HILFEAERERKEZE10%IIA
J:o

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers (Continued)

Revenue from major customers is as follows:

Customer A (Note (i)
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D

Others

Notes:

(i) No information was disclosed as the corresponding revenue did not
contribute over 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31

March 2019.

BEFER (Kazan)
BERPZ

BEFA

B5RPT

Hith

9. DHER (&)

EBETEEFZER (&)
REFTERFPZWEBAT
2019 2018
—g-nE | —2-N%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
- 44,437
146,709 100,568
121,117 150,321
35,890 70,739
21,139 4,450
324,855 370,515
Kiat -

) BARBE_T-AF=-A=t+—HIEFEZ
78 B Wi i 3 S A AR SR (B UK R R 5B 10% - 1L

EREREREE -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Contract costs recognised as expenses R AR 2 & #Ip &

Amortisation of film rights B REE

(included in amortisation expenses) (BREREERZY)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEH

(included in amortisation expenses) (BREREERZYF)
Television broadcasting right fee and ~ EREFEREEBLEGES

TV satellite fees (BIERIRBEKAS)

(included in cost of services)
Other direct costs attributable to

ERENEHEAEREBEERA

television broadcasting business (BERREKEF)
(included in cost of services)
Other direct operating costs (included in E fif & #2 48 & ik 2
cost of services) (BERREKARF)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 B 5 B
- Audit services — B R
— Non-audit services —IEEZIRTE

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment”

Staff costs (note 11)

Realised gain on financial assets at

BTRA (KaE11)

fair value through profit or loss
Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$18,893,000 (2018: approximately HK$15,093,000) and
approximately HK$ 1,045,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,006,000)
have been separately expensed in contract costs recognised as
expenses and cost of services respectively.

MR- BERREBITE

BBBRBRAFEARZ
TRMEECCER W
HEYE 2 KEHERS

EEFE

LEBBDEHBRATEERFTESL
2019 2018
—B-nE | —z-N%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
310,758 325,762
278 1,418
18,316 18,316

RER

8,623 8,647
945 1,685
1,045 2,006
700 700
21,863 19,295
91,962 101,721
- 3,770
14,425 14,757

O OMECRERZRENE 18,893,000
7t (= Z — J\4F : £915,093,000/8 7T ) & 4
1,045,000/ 7T ( == — )\ & : £92,008,000/7%
T EARIFTARRAR S 26 LKA KR
AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

11. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) comprise:
Wages, salaries and other benefits
Contribution to defined contribution
retirement plan

12. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Finance leases payables
Promissory note (note 32)
Convertible notes (note 33)

11. BT HA

BTN (BREFHH) 2

TE #HaLEAMER
TE B MR IRET B

12. BMER K

NTEEZFE:
A S RN RE
AR (H1i#32)
AR IR (#17#33)

2019 2018
—2-hE | —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
91,269 99,877

693 1,844

91,962 101,721
2019 2018
—g-hEg | —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
26 104

3,388 2,085
22,272 31,142
25,686 33,331

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 13 EEMEREREEENE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

() Directors’ remuneration i) E=ms
The aggregate amounts of the remuneration paid and RABIMBE_T-—NFR=ZZT-N
payable to the directors by the Company for the year FZA=1+—HIEFEENREMK
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as follows: NAEIEFZMEBERBEWT
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefit
Fees other benefits Bonus schemes Total
HeR BHKER
fiok Hitn @7 A SRR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-hE§
ZA=t-ALEE
Executive director and chief HITEERITHAEH
executive officer
Dr. Li Yong Sheng (note (3)) FKFAEL (HitE) - - - - -
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Dr. Jiang Yan (hote(b)) EEBT (W) - - - - -
Mr. Liu Da Yong (note(c)) AREBEAE (i) - = = = -
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (‘Mr. Kan”)  EBI# 4 ([ %4]) - 4,262 500 19 4,781
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE:
Ms. Tang Li fnote (c)) BEBLT (i) = = = - -
Mr. Law Cheuk Hung (rote (f) BISMEEE (M) 12 900 70 18 1,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: 81/ 35 TE % -
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew (note () SESEZE 4 (Aa#() 144 - - - 144
Mr. Wu Guo Ming (note (f) RESRE (H5HD) 144 - - - 144
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron FERESE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth TRELE 144 - - - 144
588 5,162 570 37 6,357

2018/2019 R hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@i

Directors’ remuneration (Continueq)

Year ended 31 March 2018

Executive director and
chief executive officer
Dr. Li Yong Sheng (note (a))

Executive Directors:

Dr. Jiang Yan (note (b))

Mr. Liu Da Yong (note (c))

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (“Mr. Kan”)
Mr. Zhang Hao (note (d)))

Mr. Zou Chen Dong (note (g))

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Tang Li (note (c))

Mr. Law Cheuk Hung (note (7))

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John
(“Mr. Chia”) note (g))

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew (note (f))
Mr. Wu Guo Ming (note (1))

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Ip Kwok Him (note (h))

Mr. Jin Hai Tao (note (j))

Mr. Kwok Man Wai (note ()

Notes:

(@)

13. EEMESRSREEEMS (&)

() Es#M< (&)
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefit
Fees  other benefits Bonus schemes Total
Hek RIRAER
e Ei &R bz AR Fobrs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FHET FET FHET
BE-_Z-\FZR=1—H
FFE
HITEERTHAAH
FRAEL (M) 8 4 - - 12
HITEE:
ZEBT (Witw) - 8 - - 8
BRELE (M) - 4 - - 4
HEERE ([HEE]) - 2,712 250 19 2,081
RESAE (Hit) - 4 - - 4
PEREE (Mite) - 1,030 - - 1,030
FHTEE -
BELL (M) 4 - - 4
RIS E (M) 3 201 70 278
HEE L ([AEED
(Hritg) 7 - - - 7
BUIRTEE -
BRERAE (M) 34 - - - 34
RESEE (M) 34 - - - 34
FERLE 144 - - - 144
TREEE 144 - - - 144
RERTE (Mn) 109 - - - 109
WEERE (M) 104 - - - 104
BERE (M) 127 - - - 127
718 3,963 320 23 5,024
Btaz -
@ R-ZE—tE+-ANBRIFEHNTES

Re-designated from non-executive director to executive

director and chief executive officer on 8 December 2017.

(b)  Appointed on 14 August 2017.
(c)  Appointed on 8 December 2017.
(d)  Resigned on 10 August 2017.

A
Ee
JiS

i

ERITEE RITHAE -

2t FNATHBEEZRE

T —tF T+ ANBEEE-

“E—tFN\ATHEHE-
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continuead)
Notes: (Continued)

(e) Resigned as chief executive officer and executive director on
7 December 2017 and 7 March 2018 respectively.

() Appointed on 5 January 2018.
(g Resigned on 17 October 2017.
(h)  Resigned on 4 January 2018.

(i) Resigned on 21 December 2017.

) Resigned on 18 February 2018.

None of directors waived any emoluments during the year
ended 2018. For the year ended 2019, directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$48,000 were waived. There
were no emoluments paid by the Group to any directors or
chief executive officer as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Senior management of the Group represents the executive
directors during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

13. ESMERSREEEME (&)

() E=BE (&)

Hist: (&)

© DIR-_ZT—tFFT-_ALAR-ZF
—N\F= AL BBETRAERRITE
EHo

H RZE-NF-—ARHEZRE-

© RZZ—tF+ATtHEE:

h RZT-N\EF-AWABE-

i) RZE—tF+ZA=-+—HEE-

) RZE-—NFZA+N\HEHE-

BE_T)\FLFE HESEREL
e BE-_T-NFULEFE BREZ
T F=B 2 4 48,0008 7T - B AN KB TR &
A F e 1T R E S AT BN & DAL
RBFREMALEB LR INAR 2 22E)
A RRERLAE(E -

AEEBHE-ZT—NLFR-_ZFT—N\F=A
T+ BUHEFESREEEEHNTE
=

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME

The five highest paid employees the Group during the year
included one (2018: two) director(s) of the Company, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of
the remaining four (2018: three) highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

AEBERAFREzZ AR RETEE
ARA—H(ZE-N\F WMRB)EF 5
BEEND 27BN EXHFE13 - Kk
ME(ZE-N\F: =R)BoFHEER (L
FARREFTHREIBZTRAR) ZFBWN

as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Basic salaries, bonuses and other HEARFG S IEAI N H b 2L
allowances 9,304 8,460
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKE R AT B R
schemes 70 54
9,374 8,514
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the BaHEE (WIFARRES) 2N T

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

THEENABIT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

Number of Number of

employees employees

ES A EENZ

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 2,000,001% 7T £6,000,00078 7T - -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,000,001% 7T 27,000,000/ 7T 1 1
4 3

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15.

14.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, none
of five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive

any remuneration and there were no emoluments paid

by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as

an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX

15.

The amount of income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
— tax for the year
— (over-provision)/under-provision
in respect of prior years

Current tax — PRC Enterprise
Income Tax
— under-provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax (note 34)
— current year

Income tax credit

EHRE-BFENEN
—FRABIA
—BEFE (BREER)

SBETR

EHRA-TBEEEMEN

—BEFEREBTR

EIEBIE (H3234)
~ AR

FremiiEe

BEME (&)

REBEZE-_FT-NFEZFT-N\F=AH
=t+—HEFE hE&EaHATHER
EYRERETMAIE  MAKBE I ER
hAEw&E P ALTHRERAZ S ERBES A
ERBFREMAREE IR INAR 2 5
Bk VERBER R E

Frig®t
ReEakEME2mRERZFEHREEE
m
2019 2018
—®-hE | -z
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
1,240 2,126
(1,690) 167
(450) 2,293
735 -
285 2,293
(3,861) (6,115)
(3,576) (3,822)

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

15. INCOME TAX (Continued) 15. 8% (&)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment.) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “BIll”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2,000.000 will be taxed at
16.5%. The assessable profits of corporations not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The Group is subject to Hong
Kong Profit Tax at a rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the Biritish Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in BVI are not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI respectively.

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise Income
Tax rate of the subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the
PRC is 25% (2018: 25%)).

R-ZE-NE=A=-+—R0 FEI*re
BB (CCE—EFHB (BF]) (B75%) K
PIBZR) ([EFR])  BERS#EMNESHMK
fle BRR-_ZBE—NF=ZA=Z+N\BE
KW AR IREF S RARS -
A B2 R H2,000,000/% 7T & R F 45
18.25% &4 T - 2,000,00078 7T A - FE R
i FI AR 16.5% & Ft o FISH MRS T T4
BRAGZERB R NS BERE — X
16.5%HM -REBE_T—\F=A=1+—
HIEFE  ANEBEERHE16.5%HMEE
FIBHL

REASHERRBRELAS ([RBEEX
BEDRUIMER RARARRENRERE
LEEEMKL B RARHBABRFS
HENRBRIZEES B ZERMMEH-

BAERBRIRITROE  ANA B AA BIFEMA L
B RA 2 CEMBHME A25% (=
E—N\F:25%)

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15. INCOME TAX (Continued)

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at the rates, applicable to
profits in the countries concerned
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax

purpose

Under-provision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of temporary difference not

recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not

recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

[Income tax credit

16. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payments
of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019

(2018: nil).

BAERABE

BREBRERE ST
MR HMERFE 7 FE

AAMBHIEBENRST 2
Wiz e

BERHAWA 2 ST 2

BEFEARETR
ARREREZR I RBTE

PRTERAIHBERLZ
BT E

Y EER 2 RABEZ
RETE

N

FERER

15. FfT8% (&)

FRB IR % BAR

eRmMEMEE RS

RO Z RSB ATE R 2 SRR T

2019 2018
—E-hHF —E—N\F

HK$000 % HK$ 000 %
FET % FET %

(68,878) (49,639)

(12,014) 174 (8,934) 180
7,698 (11.2) 7,013 (14.1)
(369) 0.5 (470) 0.9
(955) 1.4 167 0.3)

(56) 0.1 382 0.8)
- - (3,697) 74

2,120 (3.1) 1,717 (3.5)
(3,576) 5.1 (3,822) 76

1 6- Hﬁ /%\

EXgfTEERBE_ZT-NF=H
=T -HLEFERNEMBRE (ZF—N

FE)

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#n © il §5 3R 2= Bl 5
For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ
17. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss BiE

Loss for the year attributable to the AUAGTEESRERREFEEN
owners of the company for the KABVHEA AEIEFRNEE

purpose of basic and diluted
loss per share

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FALAGHE G E A R #EEEN
shares for the purpose of basic =38 I hnAE 15 &

and diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 are the same as the basic loss per share. The
computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 does not assume the
Company'’s outstanding convertible notes since the assumed
conversion of convertible notes would result in a decrease in
loss per share.

17. ERER

RABIHEBANCBEERERREEERT
RIBAT BUBRETE -

2019 2018
—g-nE | —2-N%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(65,302) (45,817)

Number of shares

R4 B
‘000 ‘000
I T
4,055,350 4,055,350

HE_Z-—NFERZT-—N\F=A=1+—
AIEFE SREESEEREGREANER
HE - HRBRARITBRREEKEENS
BEERLD HEHEEE_T—NLF=A
—F+—HBEZZE-N\F=ZA=1+—HIH
E2 BREEEETET KA QR EARE
B BBRER-

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M¥ HMERRE

Leasehold Furnitures Office Motor
improvements Machinery  and fixtures equipment vehicles  Site offices Total
HENELE BE HGERKE BARE EE  WERAE @t

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8 000 HK8000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Cost: BA:

At 1 April 2017 R-Z—tFMA—-AH 2,696 46,242 3,054 10,936 47,850 15,205 125,983
Additions AE - 13,800 8 13 2,364 20 16,205
Disposals HE - (1,820) - - (3,708) - (5,528)
Exchange differences EREE 62 - - 35 - - 97
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-\E=ZA=1—H

1 April 2018 k=E-NFEA—-H 2,758 58,222 3,062 10,984 46,506 15,225 136,757
Additions RE - 16,410 - 3 4,026 - 20,439
Disposals HE - (700) - - (6,713) - (7,413)
Exchange differences ERZS (41) - - (29) - - (64)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NEZA=+—H 2,717 73,932 3,062 10,964 43,819 15,225 149,719
Accumulated depreciation: REE:

At April 2017 RZZE—+FMA—-A 959 25,571 2,251 7,933 28,841 14,680 80,235
Depreciation charge for ERWERS (Mi10)

the year (Note 10) 627 10,271 226 910 6,955 306 19,295
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (725) - - (3,334) - (4,059)
Exchange differences EHESR - - - 9 - - 9
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=A=1+—H

1 April 2018 “E-\fEA—H 1,586 35,117 2,477 8,852 32,462 14,986 95,480
Depreciation charge for the year R ERIX (#£10)

(Note 10) 626 13,810 202 813 6,283 129 21,863
Eliminated on disposals HE R - (175) - - (5,736) - (5,911)
Exchange differences EREE ) - - (11) - - (15)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=+—H 2,208 48,752 2,679 9,654 33,009 15,115 111,417
Net book value: BEFE:

At 31 March 2019 RZB-AEZR=t-H 509 25,180 383 1,310 10,810 110 38,302
At 31 March 2018 WZZ-\E=ZA=1—H 1,172 23,105 585 2,132 14,044 239 4,217

2018/2019 R hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
includes the following assets held under finance leases

(note 30).
Motor vehicles RE
Machineries 25

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of those property, plant and equipment.
These assets are used in the Group’s performance of
provision of civil engineering services reportable segment.
The recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been
determined on the basis of their value in use. No impairment
loss has been recognised during the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

18. W% BEKRE (&)

WE- -BEMREIERFERRERER
BEHERBZTIEE (KE30)

2019 2018
—g-hE | —=-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
141 4,691

= 682

141 5,373

RER RNEBCHZEYE  BFELRE
ZANE S EETTERN REEERRAE
BREEIATERGAZEROBZRR -
HEEEZ KRB CRORAEREER
EBF REBE_T-NAFR-_FT-N\F
ZA=+—HILFE SERZRERE-

®
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018,
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

At 1 April 2017
Amortisation for the year (Note 10)

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

Amortisation for the year (Note 10)

At 31 March 2019

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

Intangible assets represent television broadcasting
rights acquired by the Group. The useful life of television

broadcasting right is 10 years.

Due to the continuous loss making in the television
broadcasting business for previous years, the directors of
the Company assessed the recoverable amount of intangible

19. BV EE

B

K-F—LEMA—A —F-N\F
=A=+—HB -ZZT—-)/\FMA
—HEZFT-NF=ZA=t+—H

Rt B RRE !
RZZE—+FMWA—H
FREE (AE10)
RZE—-NF=A=1+—HBK
—ZT-\$MA—H
FERNEE (KiE10)
R-ZE—NF=A=+—H

AREE
R-ZZ2-NF=RA=+—H

RZZE-N\F=A=+—H

Television
broadcasting
right

BERERE
HK$'000
FET

567,000

486,006
18,316

504,322
18,316

522,638

44,362

62,678

BIVEERASBMRE 2 ERERE-
ERENEZAERAFHA TS

HRBEFEERENEBRERSE
B ARREZEDHER T —NF=H
=t—BRER-ZE-N\F=ZA=+—HZE

assets as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

EEMKOSHE-

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverable
amount of the intangible assets at 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018 and determined that no impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018. The recoverable amount of
intangible assets was assessed by reference to the value in
use calculation.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets have been allocated for impairment
testing purposes to the cash-generating units of television
broadcasting business (“television broadcasting CGU”).

The directors of the Company have appointed an independent
valuer to perform a business valuation on the television
broadcasting CGU containing intangible assets which was
acquired from the business combination of Xinhua TV Asia-
Pacific Operating Co., Limited (“Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific”)
during year ended 31 March 2012.

19.

20.

BVEE (&)

ARREFEHFFER -_ET-NF=A
=t—BERZE-N\F=ZA=t+—HZE
WEEAKE R YHEFTEHE-T—N
FZRA=+—HERZE—N\F=ZA=+—
BIEFE TENMFEBRaAEtE2EEK
BRPHERBERE B EEZ AT E
SR EFREEFENE-

BREAERENR

REARNS BPEEESHIEEE
BIREMEB2ReEE BN ([ERENR
TELEM]) -

ARREEFEZE—RBIUMGERMAHE
EERVEE(BHE_T——F=A=1+—
BLFEEHEERTAREZERAT
(HEESRTAGDZEBAHTER)
ERENRECEEELET RBHER
He

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Continueq)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts of
television broadcasting right (including in intangible assets set
out in note 19) before impairment loss, have been allocated to
the television broadcasting CGU are as follows:

ERENE

Television broadcasting right

The recoverable amount of television broadcasting CGU has
been determined on the basis of value in use calculation
and is based on certain key assumptions. The value in use
calculation is based on cash flow projections prepared from
financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of 22.14%
(2018: 29.13%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.5% (2018: 0% to 10%)
for different countries and the growth rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the industry. The discount
rates used reflect specific risks to the segment.

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,
no impairment loss was recognised in respect of intangible
assets as the recoverable amount was higher than the carrying
amount of the unit which was assessed by reference to the
value in use calculation.

The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of television broadcasting CGU to
exceeds its recoverable amount.

- BREERERNE (&)

AETRERH  ERENE (BRI
19 BB E) MR R EBER < RE

BEESHKEZERBEIIRGELEEMN  FHY
R

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

145,627 202,327

EREBEPORGEEEN 2O €5 Tk

BEAEESEET YERETEER
R FHEEFENERARBESIEY
—IBERERFMBIEE &22.14% 2 85
PR (ZE—N\F:2013% )RR ZIWER
EEA -ZEFHE 2R RECEAR
TRBZR25% (ZZF—NF:0%E10%)
CHEREE MEREITNBBITEZF
BRI R E A 2 AR R R 5 3
ZETERE -

BHE_Z-NAF=A=+—HEZZ-N
FZA=+t—RALFE ARATKREEER
BR2EERERFERT G2 ELER
18 B E R B & ERE R E R 1R

[1] 4

EEERREMNZF/REZEMAGESE

BB I ENERERREELESEN S
EHAERAH KBS

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

21. JOINT OPERATIONS 21. 8%
Detalils of investment in joint operations as at 31 March 2019 RZE-—NER_ZE-—NF=ZA=+—H
and 2018 were as follows: REBREZIREFBHOT
Principal
Name Place of operation Participating shares activity
=g EEL 2R H TEEB
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 40% 40% Civil engineering
Venture (DC/2012/04) operating in Hong Kong

EEEHE(DC/2012/04) REBEEZIBZEEELHE TARIRE

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 43% 43% Civil engineering
Venture (DC/2012/07) operating in Hong Kong

FEEEEE (DC/2012/07) REBLEZ B LEGERE AT

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 43% 43% Civil engineering
Venture (DC/2012/08) operating in Hong Kong

FTEEEEE (DC/2012/08) REBLE B LEGERE TARTIE

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 17% 17% Civil engineering
Venture (5/WSD/13) operating in Hong Kong

MEHE XM E(B5/WSD/13) REBLEC B LEGERE TARTIE

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 43% 43% Civil engineering
Venture (CV/2015/03) operating in Hong Kong

TEMEERE (CV/2015/03) REABLEZ B LEGERE TARTIE

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Unincorporated joint operation 49% 49% Civil engineering
Venture (CV/2016/10) operating in Hong Kong

2R E(CV/2016/10) REBLEC B LEGERE TARTIE

Note: Biat -

Pursuant to the terms of the joint agreements, the profit sharing for each REBEEEHE L %h\ LB EERESF 2R

year of all joint operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the MoK EREEE MGz ERLAISEETH

joint operators in proportion to their respective interests. BAEaER-

VAN
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22. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22,

Available for sale financial AHEeREESRE:
assets comprise:

Unlisted equity securities in the PRC A BI A IE_E TR A5 5

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERMEMMANTAE:
Non-current assets EMBEE

Unlisted equity securities represented the securities issued
by a private entity incorporated in the PRC. The private entity
is principally engaged in provision of audio and video mobile
content services in Express Rail in the PRC. As at 31 March
2018, the Group held 20% of equity interest in the unlisted
equity securities. For the year ended 31 March 2018, they are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

AHHEESHEE

2019 2018
—g-nE | —=-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

= 2,302

= 2,302

FEFTRAESRE —FRPBREMAZ
FABBRBBETIESF ZALATRBEIER
FENERESEES S IARRIENDR
BK-R-TE— ) \FZA=1+—H AEEHE
BARETBRAEF20%RE - HE-ZT— )\
FZRA=1t—HBLFE BREFTEER
FEZBEERKN UBARGESESRAL
ANFEEEASHE HESRBFEHR
AR A BUR BT £

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ES R HEHMEWFIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Trade receivables (note (i) 2B S WA (i) 61,930 42,810
Allowance of expected credit losses TEHEEREERE (3,946) (2,686)
57,984 40,124
Retention receivables FEUIREE &
(note (iv), (note 25) (K1aEv)) - (K1a325) - 16,199
Other receivables and prepayments E b R W GRIA R IB R (KTaEW))
(note (v) 43,675 41,924
Deposits me 4,079 3,869
105,738 102,116

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continueqd)

Notes:

Trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period mainly
derived from provision of construction works on civil engineering
contracts. The related customers are mainly government
department/organisation and reputable corporations. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as of the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is
as follows:

Current or less than 1 month BN ARk AR 1E A

1 to 3 months 1Z23(8A

More than 3 months but HBAE3ME AE D 121E A
less than 12 months

More than 12 months iBiE121E A

The Group grants an average credit period of 30 days (2018: 30
days) to its trade customers of contract works. Application for
progress payments of contract works is made on a regular basis.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for
aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful
debts because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

23. EZRHEMEBKE

RIE ()

Wiat -

RBERRZEZRRFIBIERBRHEL
ARIRGHZRETR - HETEFPIZRK
FFERFT, MR B BRI 2 ¥ - AKEIW
B EFERTEEMER-

B 5 RWFIA (KINREHE) BR1%
WERARZRROMAT :

FESEEES

2019 2018
—E-hF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TIETT
57,959 40,124

25 -

57,984 40,124

FEEMEANIRESEF XU FIH30H
(ZE-NF:B0R)ZFEEM-aNIRHE
ERERFEEERET

B R B S REIARENRERRD
BEMASERABIREEBZ2R (R
TXHREAN)  REDGEEERHEERE
PR ESBIDE /R TUE -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. ESRHEHMEWFIE (&
Notes: (Continued) Bfet: (&)
(y  (Continued) 0 (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RERE2E:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Balance at the beginning of the year RE) 2 &84 2,660
Write-off b€z (29)
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables E I EBFIERER 2 RBEEE 55
Balance at the end of the year RERZ & 2,686

Impairment loss of approximately HK$55,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 March 2018 as the directors of
the Company considered that the outstanding amount were not
recoverable.

HE-Z—\F=ZA=1+—BLEERE
tlEEkEMEERERERRESEY
55,0008 7T THRARREER AR AKE
BRI YE .

®
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continueqd)

Notes: (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade

receivables

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

in accordance with simplified approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

23. EZRHEMEBKE

RIE (&

Wit (&)

BRI EBREEE SRS E
HE-Z-hWEZA=+—HLFE 2HBHE

EEREHCHBREEZFAREREEM B RE
HERIFEOSE FTE N (LR FERR

HK$'000
FET

Balance as at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 ST AEREIRIE TR
“ZE-N\E=A=+—B2Z&#H 2,686
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 FRER B 78 B 16 S e AR I S8 055 s 8 B2 1,182
Adjusted balance as at 1 April 2018 RZE—-N\FOA—ALARES 3,868
Allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL”) TEEEERE ([EHREEBE]) BE 78
Balance as at 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+—Hz#&% 3,946

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set out in note 43.

(i)

(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2018, retention monies withheld by
customers of contract works are released after the completion of
maintenance period of the relevant contract or in accordance with
the terms specified in the relevant contract.

Trade and other receivables are short term and hence the directors
of the Company consider the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting
periods.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018, the balance of
retention receivables of HK$16,199,000 was reclassified to contract
assets (note 25).

It mainly consists of prepayments for insurance and advance
payment to subcontractors.

BHEEER A ISR TE43 o

iy #HE-_Z—N\F=ZA=1+—HIEFE 24
ITREFZIRBSNABANRERERER
AR IEFRRE & L0 EIRTRIERR R -

(i) BEZREMESFBELSES BRIt AREE
ERREFREMBRFIAZ FRER RS
HIREENFERE-

vy R-ZZ—/\FEOA—BRMABEBGBEREE
B 51555 1% - FE W IR B8 & 45 8216,199,0007
TEEHMHBEEENEE (H25) -

Vv HEFEeEERBREMSRLRASBEEINZ

e

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORKS

Contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less
recognised loss

Less: progress billings

ETEEZARKAINE #ER

St MR 2 AR A 1R

OB < 3 T2 SRR

“Contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits”

comprise direct materials, costs of subcontracting,

direct labour, an appropriate portion of variable and fixed

construction overheads and gross profit earned to date of the

contracts, which is measured by reference to the certification

by architects.

“Progress billings” represent the amounts billed to the

customers for work performed up to the end of reporting

period.

At 31 March 2019, the retentions held by customers
for contract works included in contract assets (note 25)
amounted to HK$15,517,000 (2018: HK$16,199,000).

24. ERENIREFNA

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

- 1,021,057
- (1,921,057)

e S EEZARRAMEHEREN ]| B
EEYE - DBRA BEERSET  AELH
ZAENEREEERANEAN AR
RZEN EFtEII2ZREMIZE -

EEFIR] ERBEREHRMETZT
EREFPHAREZA.

R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—H T AEHE
E (M:F25) A IREFEERES B
15,517,000/ 7T ( =& — /\ % : 16,199,000
BIT) °

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. ENEE/EBHAE

Contract assets: BREE:
Construction services EIERTS
Retention receivables EUWIRE &

Allowance for expected credit losses

BHEEEERE

Contract liabilities: EREME:

From construction work RERETR

— Construction services —BERE

— Retention money payables —ENREB2
Contract with customers from advertising income EPEEBRAGL
Total B

oo Btk

Due to the adoption of HKFRS15, effective on 1 April 2018, the
balances of amounts due to customers for contract works and retention
receivables/(payables) were reclassified to contract assets and contract
liabilities. See note 2 for further details.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration
for work completed but not yet billed at the reporting date. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables where the rights become
unconditional. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced
consideration received from customers, for which revenue is recognised
based on the progress of the provision of related services.

The balance of contract assets and contract liabilities (construction
service) are expected to be recovered/settled more than one year.

2019
—B2-h%E
HK$’000
FHT

16,195

16,195
(678)

15,517

45,000
9,572

54,572
10,584

65,156

BHREAR T NFHA-BERZEBHHER
SEAFE155 BN EFP AL TRFIASRNIE

W/ (ERREED
E— B HIELHME2 -

BERNEERANAE-

BHEETZEAKBERNHRE AR THEH
RELBEZNTRMERREZENER - EEHN
RAEGSR ANEEEREEFIRUIE -4
WEBETRENTPWHNENKERR Hika
TyiR R R AR R RIS A E E FERR -

BHEERENEE (BRERY) ZBHREFN—

Fraum,EE

7\
2018/2019 4 @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EREE BHEE (&)

(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Movement in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances are

as follows:

Contract assets:

As at 31 March 2018
Reclassification from retention receivables (note 23)
Impact on initial application of HKFRS9 (note 2)

As at 1 April 2018 (restated)

Retention receivables released

Retention receivables recognised

Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses (note 8)

fiat: (&)

BREE:

R=Z—N\F=A=+—A
AR & B35 (H13223)

MR R BB RELAE O ROYE
(Wi2)

RZZ-N\FOA—H (KEF))
ERBRERRES
ERERENRE S
EHEEBEERERD (HiZs)

BHMEERAHNAGBERESNT:

2019
—g-h%E
HK$’000
FHT

16,199

(683)

15,516
(4,975)

4,971
5

15,517

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®
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25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. ENEE BHREE (&)

(Continueq)
Note: (Continued) Hiat: (#4&)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is as

follows:
Within one year —FR
More than one year —FLE

Contract liabilities from construction work KERETIRZANAERE
As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZE-—N\EFE=ZA=+—H

BENREBSEHMHE (HE29)

Reclassification from retention payables (note 29)

As at 1 April 2019 RZE—NFMA—H

Retention payables recognised EERENRES
Consideration received from customer over the amounts of REERWESBEERE L BERE

revenue recognised
Revenue recognised during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

BHEERESEENEHFRENT

2019
—g-ng
HK$’000
FHET

15,517

15,517

SFAHBANAEZ FABERRE

2019
—EB-hF
HK$’000
FET

14,020

14,020
2,124

45,000

(6,572)

54,572

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

25. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Contract liabilities from contract with customers from advertising income:

Balance at 1 April 2018
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenues during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Increase in contract liabilities excluding amounts recognised as
revenue during the year

Balance at 31 March 2019 RZZE-—NE=ZA=1+—B8%&%

Movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of contract
assets

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for contract assets
in accordance with simplified approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

25. ENEEENEE (B)

Biar: (&)

KAEPESRAGHZENALE:

HK$'000
FHETT
R-_ZT— \FMNA—BHEH -
FRE KB E R R R
ATAFYIEHAE

(460)

FREHNBEEM (TREERARENESE)
11,044
10,584

BHEEREEERANBRELE

BE-ZT-NF_A=T—HLFE =HEHE
EEREHCHENEERBEET BV BREER
FOWFAE M LA

HK$'000
FET

Balance as at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 BB GFTERFEIRIET
RZZE-NFZAZ+—BZ&H -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 T ER A& 7 B 75 R 5 AR I B 0% B A 2R 683
Adjusted balance as at 1 April 2018 RZFE-N\FOA—AEAREH 683
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL”) EEEEREE ([BHEEBE]) BERE (5)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—HB2&% 678

Note: Reversal of allowance for ECL is due to the Group’s recovery of

contract asset.

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set out in note 43.

fret: FSMEREBREEREDDRAAKEEKRDES
HEEME-

BHEEBR A EFBRNMHEAS

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unlisted securities: REMFES:
— Equity securities in the PRC — AP RAE S

Unlisted equity securities represented the securities issued
by a private entity incorporated in the PRC. The private entity
is principally engaged in provision of audio and video mobile
content services in Express Rail in the PRC. As at 31 March
2019, the Group held 20% of equity interest in the unlisted
equity securities.

The above equity investment was irrecoverably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income since 1 April
2018 as the Group considers the investment to be long term
strategic in nature.

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

ETES
—REB LT 2 RAES

Listed securities:
— Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong

The fair values of the listed securities are determined with
reference to the quoted market bid prices available on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

26. FBRHEMEERBRAFEARZS

MEE
2019 2018
—2-nE | —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,245 -

FLETRAREFE — BRI EMKLZ
IANEBBTZIES ZMABEBIERN
TERERESHBS T ARGERNTR
B-R_ZE-NF=ZA=1T—0 TEEH
B R LTS 75720 % A HE ©

FREAKRERS — T \FOA—-RETR
AIBGHNIEE REBEMEEREEAF
BEAR RRARAEEBRSZNEBRY
BRmS 1S

27. EBBBELAVEARZEHEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
6,181 7,940

TR HFZATEDSERTEMERXIM
BERQBIFAHR MBS EAEMEE -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

27.

28.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

At 31 March 2019, the fair value of suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong with the amount of approximately
HK$115,000 was reference to the valuation carried by Vincorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuers. The fair value of suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong was valued by using adjusted
net assets value approach at 31 March 2019. The net asset
value of the suspended trading security is adjusted by the
professional judgments of valuers together with the discount
for lack of control and discount for lack of marketability.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% — 0.30% (2018: 0.001% - 0.30%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2019, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
amounted to approximately HK$2,739,000 (2018:
approximately HK$7,126,000) which is not freely convertible
into other currencies.

27.

28.

ERBSRATEARZEREE
(%)

R_ZE—NF=ZA=+—H REBLT
ZEEFEEXES 2N FEA115000%8
T2 ER LB REEGEMLR A
M ERAGETZHEBEE - RZE
—NEF=ZA=+—H RBEBLMZEE
FEEESFZATENERAKAREETF
BEETHE- CEEEEESFCEEF
BT h B R 2 353 2 T 3 [ R = 158 1 4
BRI Z S N 2R -

RERREEEY

BITESIETHEENEN F0.001%E
0.80% (=% — J\4F : 0.001%%0.30% ) £t
&

N—_ZE—NFZA=+—H A£ERE
EReZBYBEAAREHECERELD
2,739,000/ 7T ( =& — )\ : 497,126,000
BIT) BN EBRABEAMER -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Retention money payables

Amount due to a shareholder (note (i)
Interest payables

Amount due to a related party (note (i)
Other payables and accruals

Less: payables within twelve months
shown under current liabilities

Interest payables shown under non-
current liabilities

2. EZREMENFIR

B 5N R0R

e RE £

e — R BCRFRIE (Wt ()

e RIS

e — % BEE A L 5RIE (HYat (i)
H Al & A5 RIR I e At SR

R B AR TRE
R+ 18 A RN RIE

FERB BB FTAREMNFE

2019 2018
—g-hE | —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
12,327 11,157

- 14,020

17,337 14,330
45,596 36,534
2,009 2,009
13,918 11,496
91,187 89,546
(88,973) (89,546)
2,214 -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - %

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continueq)

Notes:

—NFZA=+—HIFE

2. EZRHEMENE

BT

(i) Amount due to a shareholder represents amount due to a major (i)

substantial shareholder of the Company, China Xinhua NNC, which

is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(i) Amount due to a related party represented amount due to T & (ii)

G, HES

& 0y and China Xinhua NNC have a common

shareholder, Xinhua News Agency (¥1%+f) . The amount is

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group normally settles trade payables within 30 days
(2018: 30 days) credit term. Based on the invoice date, ageing
analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:

Current or less than 1 month

1 to 3 months

More than 3 months but
less than 12 months

More than 12 months

RIE (%)

N — R RFBEREN B ARAERK
RPBEMEHHER@2RE BEER 2

BRim2RiEE-

e —RBIEALS Iﬁiaﬁﬁ%ﬁijégﬁqﬂ/u

TEE-HESRRLOETEFERBNE
497 FE BB AR I o S EE A AR - ﬁa
BRRBEREE-
AREB—MMNI0B (ZZ=—/\F:308) 2
1Diﬁﬂﬂw/ﬁfi%3%l*ﬁ RIE - RIEEHEH
B REHKRE SEMNKRIANREK DTN
T
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
BNEsk D iA11E A 11,234 10,325
12318 A 225 661
HBiE3E BB L 121E A
868 171
HBiE121E A - _
12,327 11,157

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases a number of its motor vehicles. The

average lease term is 3 years (2018: 3 years). Interest rates

underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at
respective contract dates from 3.8% (2018: 3.5% to 3.8%)
per annum. The Group has options to purchase the equipment

for a nominal amount at the end of the lease terms. No

arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

Future lease payments are due as follows:

At 31 March 2019

Within one year
In more than one year and not more
more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months

R—FR
HiE—FEIBEBRSF

B A+ (B A B A4
B2 5A (BIER
HEE)

RT-—EARIIMEE
Z A

30.

BMEHERNFIR

AEEHEREHEH FHRHAE=F (=
T-N\F:=F) BEMEETTAERKIE
ZEMERSEAHAPET B38E (=
T—N\F:35EF38E )R- AEEH#
REARAGECEBERE WEMLK
RSN RET LT ko

AREEENKERERMT :

R=ZB-HIF=ZA=+—8H

Present value

Minimum Future of minimum
lease finance lease
payments charges payments
REHRERZ

REEAER AKRRAEMX HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE

43 1 42

43 1 42

42

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued)

31.

At 31 March 2018

Within one year
In more than one year and not more
more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months (shown under
current liabilities)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Liabilities for employee
benefits comprise:
Annual leave entitlement

Long service payments entitiement

KR
BB EETBARST

8 R —EA B HI
B2 5%E (FIER
BRME)

Rt EAREBEE
FEGIERBBE)

REBMNBERBENATIER:

FRIERN
REIRSG S EF

30. MEHEERMNFIER (&)

R-E—N\FE=A=+—H

Present value

Future of minimum

Minimum lease finance lease
payments charges payments
=EBEERZ

HEHAER RKRBEMEZ A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2,439 26 2,413

102 - 102

2,541 26 2,515
(2,413)

102

31. EERA

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

2,028 1,746

1,522 1,569

3,550 3,315

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. PROMISSORY NOTE

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$45,040,000
was issued by Profit Station Limited (“Profit Station”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 11 August 2011
(the “Issue Date”) upon the completion of the acquisition of
17% of equity interests in China New Media (HK) Company
Limited. The promissory note is unsecured, carried interest at
the rate of 3% per annum and matured on 11 August 2014.
Profit Station might early redeem all or part of the promissory
note at any time from the Issue Date. Unless previously
redeemed, Profit Station will redeem the promissory note on
its maturity date.

On 11 August 2014 (the “Renewal Date”), Profit Station has
entered into an extension agreement with the noteholder of
the promissory note pursuant to which the maturity date of
the promissory note was extended from 11 August 2014 to
11 August 2017 and the extended promissory note will be
non-interest bearing with effect from 11 August 2014 till 11
August 2017. Furthermore, the noteholder has agreed to
waive the interest accrued on the promissory note amounting
to approximately HK$4,054,000 for the period from 11 August
2011 to 11 August 2014. Except the abovementioned,
other terms and conditions of the promissory note remains
unchanged.

2. RARE

NRTF) B2 BN B A T Profit Station
Limited ([Profit Station | ) i =& ——4F )\
A+—8 ([8788)) TR BT
B (BB BRARITRR A =G IEIT
R4 %8 545,040,000 7T 2 78 5 2245 © Y,
EBRARER REMEKIFHERNR-E
—HE A +— B X H§ - Profit Station®] 742
BITHHBREMRERAER 25D
G RIR BRIEZ ATE W B R - & AIProfit
Station# 7 E 2 B B & Bl H F 4%k

RZZE—HFENA+—B ([EFBEE]) -
Profit StationE24# 5 R 2 ZHE15H ALE]
VERRE B AR ZEEZEBHAR
“E-NFENA+—HERE-_ZT—+tHF
NA+—HB BEERZAREE#ES =
E-NENAT+—HRBRE_ZE—LF A
T—HLERE - WIN ZRFBEACRE
PRAERZEEE - ZT——FN\A+—HZE
—E-NFENA+—BHEELEZFEY
4,054,000 T o br it BN A HEHR 2
H AR R R i T o

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

32. PROMISSORY NOTE (Continueqd) 32, RARE (&)

On 15 December 2017 (the “Second Renewal Date”), Profit
Station has entered into the second extension agreement
wit the noteholder of the promissory note pursuant to which
the maturity date of the promissory note was extended from
11 August 2017 to 31 December 2018 and the extended
promissory note will bear interest of 3% per annum with
effect from 11 August 2017 till 31 December 2018. Except
the abovementioned, other terms and conditions of the
promissory note remains unchanged.

Upon the second extension, the fair value of the liability
component of the extended promissory note was reassessed
and calculated using an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent instrument at the Second Renewal Date. The fair
value of the extended promissory note at the Second Renewal
Date amounted to approximately HK$42,720,000. The fair
value is calculated using discounted cash flow method at a
rate of 9.393%.

On 15 February 2019 (the “Third Renewal Date”), Profit
Station has entered into the third extension agreement with
the noteholder of the promissory note pursuant to which
the maturity date of the promissory note was extended from
31 December 2018 to 30 June 2020 and the extended
promissory note will bear interest of 3% per annum with
effect from 11 August 2017 till 30 June 2020. Except
the abovementioned, other terms and conditions of the
promissory note remains unchanged.

RZZE—tF+A+HB ([EREH
HEA]) - Profit Stationf2# 54, Z 4% ~ =ik %
BEABRIN B RER D Btk AR E
BEzIHSMBEAE-_T—tFENAT+—HEER
2" \F+-_A=1+—H BKIEE
EAREEEE - T—+FENA+—HEE
E-E - N\F+-A=+—BLLEFFE
SEFE bR Lt BN AR 2 H A i
R AR MR EE

REZRTERE KR AR ZR A
EMBDZATFEREREFHAGHIUE
BEIAZFEMSGMNEEMRFTE KT
H AR ERZ AFEREZIREHAH
A#142,720,0007 7T « A FETERBITRR
EREEN.393% 2 IR KT E -

RZZE-—hF-_A+HRB([F=XEFHA
HA]) - Profit StationE2 & ¥, 2k 7 ZigiE g
ABRIMNEZRER WS Bt A HEE
ZHBMABZE-N\FT+A=1+—HE
EE-_Z-_TFA=Z+H BEEERZ
EREREEE T —tF ) \A+—HERE
ZEEFXNAZTHLERFFRIET
8o bR BB AN - O IR 2 H AR R {5
s g
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32.

33.

PROMISSORY NOTE (Continued)

At the beginning of the year

Interest charged at effective interest
rate of 7.423% (note 12)

Gain arising on extinguishment of
promissory note (note 8)

Interest charged at effective interest
rate of 9.393% (note 12)

Interest charged at effective interest
rate of 9.707% (note 12)

Interest payable

At the end of the year

32. RARE (&)

2019 2018

—E-AF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET F&T

R 43,026 44,124
RERRIRT 4A23EB:1E 2

MEFRXZ (Kat12) - 916
BEAHRBRES 2K

(H1zt8) (1,939) (2,320)
LB F|E.393EFE

MBFx< (Kat12) 3,032 1,169
REBRHMELI07TENE

MBFx< (Kat12) 356 -

FE A 1 2 (1,352) (863)

RER 43,123 43,026

Upon the third extension, the fair value of the liability
component of the extended promissory note was reassessed
and calculated using an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent instrument at the Third Renewal Date. The fair value
of the extended promissory note at the Third Renewal Date
amounted to approximately HK$43,101,000. The fair value
is calculated using discounted cash flow method at a rate of
9.707%.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 9 December 2011, the Company issued convertible notes
with the principal amount of approximately HK$607,030,000,
carried interest at the rate of 5% per annum as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of Xinhua TV Asia-
Pacific Operating Co., Limited. Each note entitles the
holder to convert to ordinary shares at a conversion price of
approximately HK$0.196 per share.

33.

RE=ZRERE KR AR ZR A
EMHZAFERE=ZREFHBRTINE
BTHA EEMSMEEMRETE KT
AR ERZ AFEREZAEF A
A#943,101,000/8 7 » A FETIERAITIRIR
L IREIRA9.707 %2 IR KT HE o

AR E

R-_ZT——F+ - ANA ARQRRAEFTAK
& %8 & #9607,030,000/8 T * 1% F B K5E
HECAMRER (FRAREHEERT
RKEBEBRAAZHBIRE - FHER
BT RHE ARMNESRERMD 401968 T2
HBEHR AT @R -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continueq) 33. RRERE (&)

Conversion may occur at any time between 9 December 2011
and 8 December 2014. If the notes have not been converted,
the Company will redeem on 9 December 2014 at the
outstanding principal amount. Interest of 5% per annum will
be paid annually until the notes are converted or redeemed.

On 9 December 2014, the Company entered into the
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC pursuant to which
the Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend certain
terms and conditions of the convertible notes, where (i) the
maturity date of the convertible notes will be extended for 3
years and the conversion period will accordingly be extended
for 3 years to 9 December 2017; and (ii) the interest rate of the
convertible notes will be amended from 5% per annum to 3%
per annum for the extended period, being from 9 December
2014 to 9 December 2017.

On 18 December 2017, the Company entered into the second
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC, the sole holder
of the outstanding convertible notes, pursuant to which the
Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend the term
and condition of the convertible notes, where the maturity date
of the convertible notes will be extended for 1 year and the
conversion period will accordingly be extended for 1 year to
9 December 2018. Except the abovementioned, other terms
and conditions of the convertible notes remain unchanged.

On 9 December 2018, the Company entered into the third
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC, the sole holder
of the outstanding convertible notes, pursuant to which the
Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend the term
and condition of the convertible notes, where the maturity date
of the convertible notes will be extended for 2 years and the
conversion period will accordingly be extended for 2 years to
9 December 2020. Except the abovementioned, other terms
and conditions of the convertible notes remain unchanged.

AMREREIR_Z——F+_ANBZE
“E-MFE+ZAN\BHERRER -
MEFEEAR LT RARHR - F—MF
T-ANARARBOASEKEER -5
FOREZNBHAGEXN BEEAELR
B o

RZTE-—HF+ZANB AAREPE
MEFEERWR] LATRE BILAR
mE BT E R B R BB AR
RB2ETIERR RGN ()R REE
ZBIH RS RIF - B R HAREIE &
BFE_T—tEF+-ANA: RHERH
(- E-—mFEF+-_ANRE_T—+
FTZANB)ZABERRERZFEEH
BFEBEERIRBFIE-

RZE—tF+ A +=H AREHEE
KA BB EEE— A APETER
EERMETLE I RE R B AR
BHEAEFENEEAPREBITATRRK
R ZIER G KRR EE 2 5
HHEHBERIF B XIS EEERIT
EZF - \F+ZANB-BREXATILHE
Hh AT IR AR 2 B A IR R AG R

44
=

RZZBE—N\F+ZANB AAEHERHK
HRAT R R R — A AR EHERE
BERBIILEZREREE BUHAAF]
BB ENEER AR BSE T RRE
BZARR MG P Al R 15 2 B8
A R2F - A R MBS AELER2F 2
—EZTF+ZANA B EXFTIESN

AR IR 2 B AER R G i T# o
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continueq)

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
component and equity component. The equity component
is presented in equity heading “convertible notes equity
reserves”. The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 15.98% from 9 December 2014 to 9 December 2017,
8.84% from 9 December 2017 to 9 December 2018 and
10.795% from 9 December 2018 to 9 December 2020

respectively.

Equity component at 1 April 2017

Transfer to accumulated losses upon maturity
of convertible notes

Recognition of equity component on extension
of convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities arising on extension
of convertible notes

Equity component at 31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018

Transfer to accumulated losses upon maturity
of convertible notes

Recognition of equity component on extension
of convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities arising on extension
of convertible notes

Equity component at 31 March 2019

33. AMRRER (&)

D RERER D ok

TEBHEE =T

ﬁki%% s R T 2

T%W%ﬁﬁﬁ1%ﬁ?ﬁ;%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
_j}-j\

S
e BB

ME+—ANBHESR

—+F+=-AABILA1598E B =
TE—t+F+-ANHEE -
ANBILASBIBARE —ZT—

F-N\F+Z
NE+Z

ANBRE-_Z-_ZF+_AARALR

10.795 [E °

R-ZB—tFMA-—BZERHTD
AR ERII KRB EE R EE

RIE R AR I R B A R B )

ERAMEEREE ZHTEH ARG

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—8B~K

—E-)\MA-BZz#ERID

AR ERI R EEE R EE

RIER AR IR R B R B

ERABEEBREL 2 BERBARE

R-ZB-NFZA=Z+—BZREEXD

HK$ 000
FET

62,631

(62,631)

1,662

(258)

1,304

(1,304)

17,245

(2,845)

14,400

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 33. TEREE (&)
HK$'000
FET
Liability component at 1 April 2017 RZE—tFOA—HZABEHD 237,652
Interest charged calculated at an effective ZE fi’% A=&1598FE &
interest rate of 15.98% (note 12) MERZ (Kat12) 24,718
Interest payable FEATF & (5,340)
Liability component at 9 December 2017 RZFE—tFTZANBEERAIZB
before extension (E8=15a 257,030
Recognition of equity component on extension MERITBBREBRER BRI D
of convertible notes (1,562)
Capital contribution arised from extension ERABMBREBEAZHE
of convertible notes (11,994)
Internet charged calculated at an effective RERFESBAENE ZFBRAE
interest rate of 8.84% (note 12) (K1zE12) 6,424
Interest payable FERTFI & (2,387)
Liability component at 31 March 2018 and R-E—N\F=A=+—8BxK
1 April 2018 —E-N\FOA—BzBEHXD 247,511
Interest charged calculated at an effective interest  Z BB F| K8 84 Bt & 2 F| B X
rate of 8.84% (note 12) (Htiz12) 14,843
Interest payable FEATF & (5,324)
Liability component at 9 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZANBKLERAIZ
before extention BEES 257,030
Recognition of equity component on extension of ~ FLIE R AT IR 2 #5205
convertible notes (17,245)
Capital contribution arised from extension of ERABMBREBEAZHE
convertible notes (19,352)
Interest charged calculated at an effective interest R BB FE10.795F 1 & 2 7 B F
rate of 10.795% (note 12) (K1zE12) 7,429
Interest payable FERTFI & (2,387)
Liabilities component at 31 March 2019 R-CB-NE=A=+—HAZEE%HD 225,475

A\
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

The followings are the deferred tax balances recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements thereon:

At 1 April 2017

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes (note 33)

Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 15)

At 31 March 2018
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 (notg)

Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018

Deferred tax liabilities arising on extension of
convertible notes (note 33)

Credited to profit or loss

for the year (note 15)

At 31 March 2019

R=ZF—tFNA—H

ERABEZEEEY
EERIBEE (H:233)

HAFRES (Hi215)

R-E-N\¥=A=t—H
RERBENKRELR
FORE BB (M)

RZE-N\F0A—-BZ
et
REAABRREELZ
EXRARE (H:233)
SAFARR
(Brit15)

R=Z-nE=A=+-H

34.

ERER IR

REJNREZE

BN B TELEHE

BEMRBBEREE ETHBLEHRDN
N HE RSB R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
320 -
(13,655) (14,659)
(13,335) (14,659)
e MBI R AR ZIELERIBLARR KR
HEHNT -
Accelerated  Allowance
Intangible  Convertible depreciation for expected
assets notes allowances credit losses Total
BHEE
BREE TWAREE NERERG EERE @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
13,365 3,005 4,146 - 20,516
- 258 - - 258
(3,022 (3,084) ©) - (6,115)
10,343 179 4,137 - 14,659
- - - (308) (308)
10,343 179 4,137 (308) 14,351
- 2,845 - - 2,845
(3,023 619) (207) (12) (3,861)
7,320 2,405 3,930 (320) 13,335

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 34.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$115,707,000 (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$90,854,000) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profits streams.

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” on 1 April
2018, an impact of HK$308,000 was recorded as an adjustment
to the allowance for expected credit losses as 1 April 2018. Details
of the adjustment are set out in note 2.

EEBIRSE (F)

REREBR  NEBBARB AT IEESEN A
115,707,000 T (ZE— \F=A=+—
H : #990,854,0007% 7T ) A] FA {E K 88 AT £& R
HAGE 8 2 R 25 ) o 1 A R BR0% 1) 2RO £
LATE DR - 5 37 4 5k 7% TH &5 48 T SRR A 1 1R
BE-

Wit WZZ—)\FMA—BRAE B BREE
RIZ95% [£ @ T A& % & £ §308,000
ATARSHER -_Z—N\FOA-—RAZE
HERERBENFE - BEABHNHT

2 o
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. ®RA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each S REE0.001#E T 2 L ERKR
Notes Number of Share
waE shares capital
R EE [
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EIE
At 1 April 2017, R-T—+FmA—H-
31 March 2018, - \F=ZA=+—8H"
1 April 2018 and “E-NFEHA-AK
31 March 2019 —E-NF=A=+—H 500,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 April 2017, N_ZE—+FPMPA—H-
31 March 2018, —E-N\F=A=+—8"
1 April 2018 and “E-N\FOA—HEK
31 March 2019 —E-hAF=A=+—H 4,055,349,947 4,055

®
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36. RESERVES

36. &

The following describes the nature and purpose of each IR AR S EREENEE R

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserve

(N

Share premium

Foreign currency translation
reserves

SN AT 1

Other reserves

H i

Accumulated losses

RETE R

B Ay

Description and purpose

Btk B8

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders provided that
immediately following that date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

RERSHSQRE ARAKRG HE R HDIK TR HEEBERIRMAR
B2 BEE RRAKEAZ A BERBBIERIHPNER -

Foreign currency translation reserve represents foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(q).

INEMB RBIRRERINER 2 MBS MR IEL ZINEE X Z 58 - % #
RIBI T 4(a)# P 2 FETBUR R IE

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation.

AR EMBEEENBARBAAGIKE NG EEFEEARR
AIRBEHECFRMBET I RO EE I ERE -

Cumulative net losses recognised in profit or loss.

RIBEPHER 2 Rt BRFRE -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 37. @& FE8EE 2B BHER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance
lease  Promissory  Convertible
payables note notes Total
MEHE
EARE RREE THRRRE @t
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
At 1 April 2017 R_E—tFMA—H 5,275 44124 237,652 287,051
Cash outflow: Bem:
Interest paid BAHE (104) - - (104)
Repayment of finance lease payables EERERERNTFE (3,460) - - (3,460)
Other non-cash movement: Hir3Er R 25
Purchase of property, plant BEDE BE&EHE
and equipment 700 - - 700
Gain arising from extinguishment of BERLRBEEZ
promissory note Yezs - (2,320) - (2,320)
Recognition of convertible notes REAHREERERA
equity reserves on extension of BREEER R
convertible notes - - (1,562) (1,562)
Capital contribution arised from ERABBREBEEZ
extension of convertible notes & - - (11,994) (11,994)
Interest expense MERX 104 2,085 31,142 33,331
Interest payable RS2 - (863) (7.727) (8,590)
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=R=1+-H
ZEBRR 2,515 43,026 247,511 293,052
At 1 April 2018 R=F—-\FEA—A 2,515 43,026 247,511 293,052
Cash outflow: RERH:
Interest paid 2RHME (26) - - (26)
Repayment of finance lease payables ~ {EER & E &M 2B (2,479) - - (2,473)
Other non-cash movement: HittkHe28:
Gain arising from extinguishment of BEERARBREE 2K
promissory note - (1,939 - (1,939
Recognition of convertible notes RRAAREEEER
equity reserves on extension of ARREEERRRE
convertible notes - - (17,245) (17,245)
Capital contribution arised from RRABREBEEL
extension of convertible notes nik:) - - (19,352) (19,352)
Interest expense FEAY 26 3,388 22,272 25,686
Interest payable FERT 2 - (1,352) (7,711) (9,083)
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 R-E-NF=A=+-H
ZEBRE 42 43,123 225,475 268,640

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed at
a board meeting held on 11 August 2010 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to participants for
their contribution to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
expire on 10 August 2020. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Board may grant options to the Directors, employees,
non-executive Directors, suppliers of goods and services,
customers, advisors and consultants, shareholders or any of
its subsidiaries for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to them, to subscribe for shares in the Company with the
payment of HK$1 per offer.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue at the
date of listing of the Shares unless the Company obtains the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
such 10% limit, in which case the total number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of
the Shareholders on the refreshment of the limit. The number
of Shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the Shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s Shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s Shareholders.

38. IO BER Z I

ARABRBER -_F-FF\A+—HETT
LEFGEHRBBIORBRIMBIE
2 ([BREtE]) 252 EEY
AEBEZBERARERHEXBEI N ER- B
BESEHR T _TFN\A+BER-
RIEBRESS EF@MESR ER-
HFRTES BBz HER -FF -
B R FAARE RSB E AR
ROBEE TREERRFRIEE )
BREHENXNVETZ I ARBBALRF
Pdn o

RIS I ET 81 R] BE IR 2 FE AR PTS I
i B8 AMEBENKD LW EHAR
A2 BEITRNEN10%  HEARREFRRE KR
G ERCRILEE #T A BI10%RERR SN - £
BEESTS AR [R5 | B &) AR
RAMEMEMBRE SRR L 2B
TS R D AR T RBBRRILER
HIRFEE A E BT B BM10% - R
EBSARABRRELAMLENBERT RIE
Al —F AR BEREAA LR 2 BN
BREMEE  NEEBAR BN EME
B2 BTN #91% ° X T = ZRIRK
BIUFATEFTZBEREBEANARBA
20.1%3% (B {68 185,000,000/ 7t - BIIE #
B R TRAEARRBIRREAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 38. LR AER ZNR (&)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 business days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant
of options. Options may be exercised in whole or in part by
the grantee (or his legal personal representatives) at any time
before the expiry of the period to be determined and notified
by the board to the grantee which in any event shall not be
longer than ten years commencing on the date of the offer
letter and expiring on the last day of such ten-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in
the Share Option Scheme. The exercise price is determined
by the Directors and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, the average closing prices of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options or the nominal value of the Shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
shares.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,
no share option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the Share Option
Scheme.

R EE AR L B HE R 21E = %
B R - WA SRR BRI S
BT ARA(REEAEEBEREAN)A
REFSETEMNBAARANGE (BH
IAAERN B EA R BEES T F
K&+ FRENRE—BE®R HErE
BB R AERT BIFTE 2 TR AT A LE 163 T AR
) Ema 2 EAREATEZ KB D
BRE -TTEEREFET WK TMERIA
TZHRz&ESE  ROREHBHERX
PP < Wi & - B fn 0 BRSO IR th
B B AT A S 5 B AR 32 P AT ¥R 2 MR
mE: Sk zEE:.

FrB AR BER N 2 BEFM ST A
Rk o BRETTRUD SN AERE AW BALADEE
S HEE B AR E kST B ARE

BE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HBRZZ-N
FZA=T—RLLFE HEREREER
TR ER SRR BB AR &R
NS (R TT 2 R AR
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

(@

39. HEME L

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group @ BEZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H1I#H
disposed of the entire interest in International Capital B AEELEYEER 2 BIRER
Market Research Center Limited which is inactive at a TMIZHEFRLBRAR 2 EER
consideration of HK$9,300. The disposal was completed REA0B L - HEFHER T
on 7 December 2017 and the Group recognised a gain —tF T At RAEEDE

on disposal of approximately HK$9,300.

R & U2 49,3008 7T ©

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries are HEMBAT < ZERMMT :
as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed BEHEEEFE -

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received
Less: Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
a subsidiary:
Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of

& — P 2 AR
B A(E 9
B BEHEEEFE -

& — TR B8 & A W 9

HE—RMBRAREEZ
BEMAFE:
BWRe MR FEYRE

o BEER SRR S EY

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i':‘ yaN
mwh O}

frk 55 3k 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
disposed of the entire interest in China Cultural
Heritage Research Development Center Limited
which is inactive at a consideration of HK$9,300. The
disposal was completed on 7 December 2017 and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of approximately

HK$9,300.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of a subsidiary is

as follows:

Net assets disposed

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received
Less.: Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
a subsidiary:
Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of

390. HEMBAR (#)

A EEE
45— B 2 M
B E

B EEEFE

& — B A A s

HE-—RNBARELZ
REMAFE:
BEWRe MRS FEYMRE

B-BEHERE LB SEEMER

H & — B AR

b BE=_FE—NF=ZA=+—HIHF
B AEERHETEERK 2P EL
BEMERERBLERAG 22 0%
@ REAY300E L HEZTHER
—E—+tF+-ALtHEREEAEE
B iR & U5 499,300/ 7T ©

FERMIT

HK$'000
TET
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(©

390. HEMBAR (#)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group o BHe—_ZE—N\F=ZA=1+—HLHF
disposed of the entire interest in China Television B AEBHEVEXB L HEER
Operating Co., Limited which is inactive at a BECARAAIZEHERD RER
consideration of HK$9,300. The disposal was completed 9,300 T HEFEER T —tF
on 7 December 2017 and the Group recognised a gain TZRAtEtAEKEAEECERLE
on disposal of approximately HK$9,300. g %5 499,300 7t °

Summary of the effects of the disposal of a subsidiary is HE—FBRARZEZERMMT

as follows:

Net assets disposed

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received
Less: Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
a subsidiary:
Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of

HK$'000
FET

BEHEEEFE -
& — P 2 B R

B RA(E 9
A BEHEEEFE -

HE—RMME AR E 9

HE—RNBRARIELZ
BERMAFE:
BEWRe MR FEYMRE

B EHERE NIREFEYELR

2018/2019 3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

©)

During the year ended year ended 31 March 2018, the 0 HEZ-ZT—
Group disposed of the entire interest in CNC Publishing
Company Limited which is engaged in publication
business at a consideration of HK$122,100. The
disposal was completed on 7 December 2017 and the
Group recognised a gain on disposal of approximately

HK$87,000.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of a subsidiary is

as follows:

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax liabilities

Other payables

Net assets disposed

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received
Less: Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
a subsidiary:
Consideration received in cash and cash
equivalents
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances
disposed of

390. HEMBAR (#)

B 5 EUWOR
e hRE2EHEY
EHMNEAE
Ho Al FE A 5K

BEHEEEFE

HE — B & A e
2R AR(E

BB HEBERE
& — B A F s
HE-—RNBARELZ

REMAFE:
BEWRe MRS FEYMRE

B-BEHERE LB SEEMER

H & — B AR

NEZRA=+—HLIF
B AEELEMEERLIREER
NAE(REEMRER) 2250 R
/1221008 L HEFEERZZF
—+F+ - A+tHEEREAEEDE
& Uk 2 4987,00078 T ©

FERMIT

HK$'000
TET

122
(35)

87
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40. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid
under operating leases during
the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERFRN
(BEEEMF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office property, director’s quarter,
certain office equipment, television broadcasting right, the use
of satellite capacity and broadcasting services with lease term
of between 1 to 10 years (2018: 1 to 10 years). All operating
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that
the Group exercises its option to renew. The Group does not
have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of
the lease period.

FARBEEHEENZ

40. KEHE

AEBEREHEA
2019
= X
HK$’000
FETT
14,425

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET

14,757

RBEHR - AEBERBETAREELEHEE
EEZARKEEERZBHERMOT :

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
11,883 13,158
9,365 13,722
21,248 26,880

KERENFERESTHAZEME &
ERES ATHAZERE ERERE &
ERERERRE 2 EEHEZHERN
FARI0F (ZZE—N\F AE10F) 2T

He-MA

=, oo
&3 BR

REBEITE

HiE

PRt

REHEANHESM SR
HORE - AR ER

HMOMmeEEBERAEEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - %

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRAAE
statements, during the years ended 31 March 2019 and HEZ
31 March 2018, the Group had entered into the following

transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of the

directors, were conducted on normal commercial terms and in

the ordinary course of the Group’s business. BIEH
(@ During the year, the Group entered into the following (@)

related party transactions:

Related party relationship
BE L BAR

A company that Mr. Chia Kar
Hin, Eric John, the former
director had material interest

RIEERWNREHEEEAR
BAEHZ AT

A company that the spouse of
Mr. Chia Hin, Eric John, the
former director had material
interest

AIEEEMNEHLEZ
REBEBEAERZ A

China Xinhua NNC

AR T EE AT E AR A

—NFZA=+—HIFE

Type of transaction

REEH

Service fee for announcement
posting agreement

UNGE T i bR

Legal and professional fee paid

ENERREXEN

Annual fee for television
broadcasting right (note (i)

FRBEREFE (W 70))

Accrued interests on convertible
notes (note (i)

AR AR 2 RS (AT ()

S VAT
EREREE

T

=+
5K -

H EXBEFIRS

25 EERA

FAARNEKBERILATEETR

2019

e
HK$’000
FET

3,000

7,710

Eﬁﬂ‘kq&&i‘%ﬁm*ﬁ D AT R SN
—NF=ZA=+—BEZZ-N\
F-HA=1+—HULFE AEEHEBFEH
V% ER 5 IR
WRAEE KRB EER

2018
—N\%F
HK$'000
T

40

3,000

7,727
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

(@)

During the year, the Group entered into the following

related party transactions: (Continued)

Notes:

Pursuant to the agreements signed between the Group and
China Xinhua NNC on 5 September 2011, China Xinhua
NNC granted the television broadcasting rights to Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific for the period form 1 September 2011 to
31 August 2021 on an exclusive basis with an annual fee of
approximately HK$1,000,000 payable by Xinhua TV Asia-
Pacific to China Xinhua NNC prior to 31 December 2016,
and approximately HK$3,000,000 payable by Xinhua TV
Asia-Pacific to China Xinhua NNC with effect from 1 January
2017. The transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the convertible notes
interests payable to China Xinhua NNC was amounted
to approximately HK$7,710,000 (2018: approximately
HK$7,727,000).

4. EXBEIRS (£)

(@)

FA
(%)

CAEEFI LA TEETRS:

sz -

(i)

WEAEBEPBEFERBERGAN
—E——FNARBERIZHE PR
METEHERARNNEEREAARK
FERERENE BRERERES
—E-—FNA—HRBEZZT-_—F
NA=+—BlE-R=ZZE—XF+=A
—+ B FESESASENTE
MENBE TR 2 F B4 /51,000,000
BT omME—_ZE—tE—A—B#E FH
EERDAABRNRBEFTEREERS
2 FBHI# 53,000,000 7T ZER S
EREAGEM EMARRIE T 2B EHER
% °

HE-Z-—NF-A=+—RALFE"
FE P BT E S B E AR AR 2 T A I
B FREEL 57,710,000 7T ( —ZF— N\
1 497,727,000/ 7T ) ©

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@ During the year, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iiy  One of the directors of the Company, Mr. Kan Kwok
Cheung (“Mr. Kan”), who is also a shareholder of the
company, has provided personal guarantee to the
lessor in respect of the Group’s obligations under
finance lease as at the end of the reporting period as
disclosed in note 30.

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the
banking facilities of the Group were secured by
corporate guarantee executed by Shunleetat (BVI)
Limited, which is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Kan, the charges over the properties held by Mr.
Kan and personal guarantee provided by Mr. Kan.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration
paid to them during the year are set out in note 13.

(c) For the transactions constitutes continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules, please refer to
“Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Report”.

4. EXBERIRS (£)

(@)

(b)

FAANEETUATRESIRS:
(%)

Hiat - (%)

(i) ANAR—REBMEELEE ([
FE]D) (MARRRRE)E 5
REBRBEHRCRERESR
R EHEAREEAER F1E
B TR FEI0 ©

RZE—-—NAREF=ZA=+—8K
—E-NFZA=Z+—H'X&X
£ ER1TRE & i Shunleetat (BVI)
Limited (R A2 E R EmE
BB 2 BERR  BEERF
B2 MEZ W &S AERTRE
ZEAERIEEA

AEEXTZEEABHM

AEBETREEABRARAES-
FAENZESTHEFBARHME
13-

BRAEARKGEM LM R AR N &R E
RHZHERD F2HIEEEH
SR EERS] -
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42. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of property, plant
and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the
leases of approximately HK$700,000.

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

42,

43.

H(REXRS
BHE-ZT-)/\F=A=+—HILFE K&
BEE BEMREITLBEHRERY
R B AN RENEE R 4) /700,000
BT

ETWMITR

(@ E@MIEEHR

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost/loans and B A BRI GRS
receivables (including cash and (BERERASEEY)
cash equivalents) 158,476 131,530
Financial assets at fair value FREMEENREZATE
through other comprehensive AEZEBEE
income 1,245 -
Financial assets at fair value FHREREATE
through profit or loss AR SREE 6,181 7,940
Available for sale financial assets ]t 1 & & g4 & & - 2,302
165,902 141,772
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised costs B EH R AN 369,399 382,598

®

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s major financial instruments include
available for sale financial assets, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, trade
and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, contract assets, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
finance lease payables, promissory note and convertible
notes. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(i) Credit risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, contract assets
and cash and cash equivalents. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the
financial condition of trade customers and, where
appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is
purchased. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the carrying amounts of the recognized
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

43. €RIT A (&)

(b) SREREERNHRBE

ARBIZEREMTABREAIHEE
TREE - BBHMEEREEAF
EARZEREE B MEMEK
RIE - BRABERBRATVEARZSR
BE AHEE RekReFEY-
B REMENFIE - GNEE BE
HMERNKE ALRERABRER
B-ZEeRMITAZHBRMEBME
FREEREFE R T AERER
BREMSER (B%ER FXERK
HipERRR) FERREABES
VKR o B EE 5% B LR ORI T XK
Jl-BEEBHZFRARETEERE
R BEERUAMEERZTAETES
Rk

() EEEREBREE

AEEZEERRIZREES
K HAD WA - A EENRRK
AehkBAecSEM- EEECR
MAEEBER MAAEZZERE
B EE T -

AEBGHESHEPOHMBEHN
ETREEENE XL (WER)
BEEEERRR —RME A
SEYERAFPESEMS-

AEBZEERRTIZZEEY
BRARARERABEREEL
FREEMTE-
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

U]

Credit risk management (Continued)

The default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 27.2% (2018:
14.5%) and 54.8% (2018: 39.3%) of the total trade
and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected credit losses provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit loss. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information.

43. €T A (#&)

(b) LRRABREEENREEEK (&)

U]

FERBREE (&)

BPEEMETERBER ZER
R TS EERBREMTZE: B
BRER/ -RBREHR AEE 2
27.2% (ZZE—\F:14.5% ) &
548% (ZZF—\F:30.3% )&
S REAMERGRIBLTED RIRE
FEEREAEPRARER W
FrE—E&F 2 EERR

AEEEABITT AT BT
WEERERAT A R EEE
BEHREE R ERIF A
ERBESRELANEEERAR
ﬁﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂgﬂﬁﬁé%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ
HEEBE BEREZERIC

REAREERBRFHDE- K’E
BEETEESN LHEANTE
EERRMEMEEEEZ B

EEBY EPERTEEER
ER B2 A MER -

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 43. SR T A (#&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRAREEBENRBUER (&)
(Continued)
EERBREE (&)

(i) Credit risk management (Continued) (i)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Approximately 100% of total trade receivables
outstanding at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were due
from top 5 trade receivables which exposed the
Group to concentration of credit risk.

EREEERR AEEE
ﬁﬁaém XEFaEEERE
ERBE EEEHLHEMERE
Fr o LAREOR BREXBRAE 1T B YR [B1 28
HER N AR BN RS
REHESZENER 2 AT E
B DARELR LN AT B & REAE
FEVBMERTE - Lt - NARES
REAEEZEERREBRER
/i

RZB-NAER-ZFT-\F=A
=t+—8" %1@5&2?%?‘51&%
THAAFERI100% TV RN K E 5 &
WHIE MAEE 2 EERRE
/o

Trade receivables B SN IE
As at 1 April 2018 —N\FMHA—H
More than
Current or 3 months but
less than 1to0 less than More than
1 month 3 months 12 months 12 months Total
N HA gk SEANUE
LiMMEA 1237 BOW12@BA  12ALE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Expected credit losses (‘ECL") ~ FEHIEEEE
rate ([EHEEEE])% 2.95% nil% nil% 100% 9.04%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEI#% (T87T) 40,124 - - 2,686 42810
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2HRHEEER (THT) (1,182) - - (2,686) (3,868)
38,942 - - - 38,942

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. €RIT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b) LRRABREEENREEEK (&)

(i) Credit risk management (Continued) () EERREHE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) EZENIE (&)
As at 31 March 2019 R=-Z2-NAE=ZA=+—8H
More than
Current or 3 months but
less than 1to less than More than
1 month 3 months 12 months 12 months Total
BEs SEAM L
D1EA 1238 B2 12BANL Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Expected credit losses (‘ECL") ~ FBHIEEEE
rate ([BHEEER]) X 2.05% nil% 100% 100% 6.37%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI 4% (T757T) 59,196 - 48 2,686 61,930
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2HEHEESB (TEL) (1,212) - (48) (2,686) (3,946)
57,984 - - - 57,984
Contract assets BRI EE
As at 1 April 2018 RZE—\FEOAH—H
More than
Current or 3 months but
less than 1to less than More than
1 month 3 months 12 months 12 months Total
BEAZL SEAM L
HSR{EA 12388 EPM2@8A  12BAML @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Expected credit losses (‘ECL") ~ BHIEEEE
rate ([EHEERE]) = 4.22% nil% nil% nil% 4.22%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) fR %58 (T 7T) 16,199 - - - 16,199
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2HEAEESE (TET) (683) - - - (683)
15,516 - - - 15,516

N\
2018/2019 4 @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)

43. €RIT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(i) Credit risk management (Continued)

Contract assets (Continued)

As at 1 March 2019

Expected credit losses (‘ECL") ~ EBHEEERE

rate ((BHEEER] %

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRI #58 (TE7T)
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000)

PHEBEEER(TETL)

(b) LRRABREEBENREEE (&)

(i)

Liquidity risk management

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans of cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

() EERBEE(H)
BREE (&)
RZE-NFE=HA=+—H
More than
Current or 3 months but
less than 1to less than More than
1 month 3months  12months 12 months Total
BDEAZL AL
D18 B 12388 ELM12BR 12AM L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
4.19% nil% nil% nil% 4.19%
16,195 - - 16,195
(678) - - (678)
15,517 - - 15,517
(i) H"EBELEREEE
REEARAEEEREEBRR

FEEZRER BRECER
ZHEBMRERBEESRARNTE
MR FH EBFEEE TRE
FEERENRY ABAESGER
AEEGHAE AT AEH
ZHRBEMERERDESR
SKIA Ko 38 57 B R 5 AR R AR
SEEF R R RE LK
T2 RBBIG R BN EAGEE
ERE R REEHMEERER

PESHFE-
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

43. €T A (#&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of

the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 on contractual
undiscounted payments:

At 31 March 2019
Trade and other payables
Finance lease payables
Promissory note
Convertible notes

At 31 March 2018

Trade and other payables
Finance lease payables
Promissory note
Convertible notes

RZE-AF=ZA=t—-H
BHREBENTE
BARERMNNA
ERES

RRRE

RZE-NF=A=+-H
25 RAMERHE
BARERMNNAE
EEES

RRRE

(b) LRBEABREEBENREBER (&)

(ii)

MBELTEBREE (&)

TRBEA X RGEFBEGAAR
SERARREZRABENR-F
—NERZE-NF=ZA=+—
B2 2I8ER

Total Total

On Less than 3to0 12 Over undiscounted carrying

demand 3 months months 1year cash flows amount
AERRE

RER  SRSfEA  3F12f8A BBIF REAE REELEHR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FET FET FET FET

32,907 12,327 43,739 11,786 100,759 100,759

= 43 - - 43 42

- - - 48,946 48,946 43,123

- - 7,711 262,354 270,065 225,475

32,907 12,370 51,450 323,086 419,813 369,399

27,254 11,157 37,115 14,020 89,546 89,546

- 837 1,602 102 2,541 2,516

- - 46,058 - 46,058 43,026

- - 262,354 - 262,354 247,51

27,254 11,994 347,129 14,122 400,499 382,596

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk management

43. €RIT A (&)

(b) LRRABREEBENREER (&)

(iii) 7 E @ R &

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for
changes in interest rates to the Group’s cash at
bank, convertible notes, promissory note and
finance lease payables. The Company manages
the risk by regularly evaluating its cash flows and by
repaying the bank borrowings when sufficient funds
are available.

Interest rate profile
The following table details interest rates analysis that

the directors of the Company evaluate its interest
rate risk.

A E AR E BB AT 2 FIE
Al EAEERTRS AR
B AL EEREAT SRR
SEEMARAREEEEH
ERE T AR RE REE
BT R SR ES -

ELD

TREMARDEFHERTIF
B2 FI% o

AR

Fixed rate borowings ~~ EEER
- Finance lease payables  — &l & # & fE (708

Financial liabilities

— Promissory note ~-EEER

- Convertible notes —ABREEE
Financial assets CREE
Floating rate assets FEEE

- Bank balances —RITER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= ERA %
(%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000
(%) FET (%) FHET
3.8 42 3.8 2,515
9.707 43,123 9.393 43,026
10.795 225,475 8.84 247,511
0.001-0.3 79,915 0.001-0.3 70,296

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
decrease or increase of 100 (2018: 100) basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s
loss after tax by approximately HK$799,000
(2018: HK$703,000). There is no impact on other
components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis point decrease or
increase represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next year end date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

43. €T A (#&)

(b) LRBEABREEBENREBER (&)

(iii) FIE@BEEE (&)

R-_EBE—-—HFE=F=+—8" 14
ST R EEEE TR FE L _EF100ME (=
T NF 100E)E L £ A
HMBHEFTENBERLT &
S B RBR L& B 18 A5 15 mnsioR
#9799,000/8 7L (= Z — J\F : £
703,000/ 7T ) o M S i e ) A
tBAEETE-

A FBURE D ITE R FI R &
ERFERREEMET W E
FE AR BhaZ B FTE $ 2R 8 IELTAE
SRV T B 2 AR @ g o 10018 &2,
WO MEEEEHEE T —
EFELERBRZFERATES
BEH T G- DM HREZT
—NFHEREERETT

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv) Currency risk

The group entities collect most of the revenue and
incur most of the expenditures in their respective
functional currencies. The directors consider that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in the functional
currency of each individual group entity.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

43. €RIT A (&)

(b) LRRABREEBENREER (&)

Assets

(iv) BE¥mEE

EE

Renminbi (‘RMB’) ARE(TAR%])

2019
—2-1F
HK$'000
TET

117

l*muﬁ% =Lk

R

FREB D oy Was B E A KB
Mﬁi HRARENEIERS
BAEENEEEBNIEE
FHE BARBEERA/AEE
) 91N R B K o

AEBRBERRAINEHEZ
EREERERABZREEN

T

2018
-NE
HK$000
TET

147

Liabilities

a8

2019
“E-hE
HK$'000
FET

2018
—NF
HK$ 000
FET

®
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv)

)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$
against RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit or equity where the HK$
strengthen 5% (2018: 5%) against RMB. For a 5%
(2018: 5%) weakening of the HK$ against RMB,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit or equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Foreign currency risk management

HNREE (AaE)

Profit or loss (note)

Note:

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on
monetary items denominated in RMB not subject to cash flow

hedge at the end of the reporting period.

43. €T A (#&)

(b) LRBEABREEBENREBER (&)

(iv) B¥mEE (&)

)

AEBFEEmUARBEHZE
Fir %5 2R B R B o

TRANAEBHNBTHAR
WIEE FTRE5% (ZT—N
F:5%) HRBE -BREDM
BREREBRILNINESENE
BIEE - NI Z EER R WA T

HAAREHES% (ZF—NEF:
5% ) » RI& | 35 #E 25 ¥ 35 A0 © i
BITAARERZES (ZF—N\
F:5%) AlgH BN ERE
HEFEERNOTE M NIl
e TR -
I B R
Impact of RMB
ARBHEE
2019 2018
—E—hE —N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(6) (7)
Mt

HEZBRAAREHEMN RS R
HMAXREREL TR 2 TEHIEBZ
AR L o

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— WF=A=+—HILFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 43. SR T A (#&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAREEBENRBUR (£)
(Continued)

(vi) Other price risk (iv) EmtERERERE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities quoted in the Stock Exchange. In
addition, the management of the Company monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the equity price had been 5% higher/lower
(2018: 5% higher/lower), post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$309,000 (2018: approximately
HK$397,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AEEFEFEBR EMBRAES
ZERESHEAZRERR -EF
EBEBERTRRER CIEEHESE
BB ERR AEE 2 RE
[BLBe = & R R E R PTER B 2 IR
RFEFH YN KRR EBEBER
BREAR UTENREEEREE
Y R B S o

D

e

T2 EREDITTIERRE R
R P TED Y 2 B (B TR fga 1 2 E

WARE L TB5% (ZZ—N
FEFTREE%) BIEE =
T-NFZA=Z+—HIFE
ZHBEBEBBERD G MNLG
309,000 70 (=& — J\4F : 4
397,000 ) - ITHRNBBER
BAFEARZEREEL AT
BEEFTEC

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values:

Financial liabilities cHEE
Promissory note EQIES S
Convertible notes BRREE

43. €T A (#&)

(c) eMIEBEZATE

SHAERSMEEZ ATETEN
TR

BB REGRK AR IS B
SLEECEREENRERMAE
B R2ERBMSERERE
BREEETQFE-

TTETEZ A FERRENE-
i REEES B RER RICAER
BUTHET A TAHRAERE
SR AR BT A T A H]
BEBEALETURRACRESD
i e

HteRMEERSRAEE (TE
BEaE) 2 RFETIREER
BRRBRERED T Z EBRANTE
BEAEE-

BRI RATFLEIN ARABEERS
REEEBRRTERZEHEEK
TREEZREEREAL RN FERS:

2019 2018
o —T-NF

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

REE AFE FHE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET

43,123 43,365 43,026 44,142
225,475 230,272 247,511 250,316

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

e |evel 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

e |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

e |evel 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

* For identification purpose only.

43. €@ T R (&)
() eMIAZAFE (&)

RiGE BRI 7 A ERZ L FEG

2=

TREJINVTERRIZATFEFE
ZEMIT AN LREERFER
BREBEEDRFEEF=45:

© E-RHIATFENEEBRTS
PR & S A 2 R E (R

HE)

s FIMHIAFEFTEIFFASE—
MR Z MEAINATEE (AVEE
RS EE (RAEER)REE
SEEEERNBAER: R

s FEAMAFEFEREEREIL
FEAABREMSEIERER CE
EXREBAER (TABEN
BAER)MBETE-

© O EHES

N\
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

At 31 March 2019

BERBERRAFEARZ

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value FREMZERGZRATE

through other comprehensive ~ ARz £ BVEE
income

At 31 March 2018

Financial assets at fair value FRBERRATEARYZ
through profit or loss tREE

43. e@MI A (£)
() EMTAZAVHE(E)
REEHM BN I EPERZ L FER

B (&

R=-ZB-HIE=ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—RA EHEA E=HAB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE FET FET FET

6,065 - - 6,065
- - 116 116
6,065 - 116 6,181
- - 1,245 1,245

R-E—-N\F=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—RA E-47 g il B
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET

7,940 - - 7,940

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. £ @I B (&)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continueq) (c) ©eMIAZAFE (&)

Fair value measurements recognised in the REGEH BN TR PERZ L FELT
consolidated statement of financial position 2(#)
(Continued)
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair rEEHDeMEERSREHRRZ
value at the end of each reporting period. The following NEEFE TREYBHENAEE
table gives information about how the fair values of these ZERMEEATEZER (LER
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation FIRA 2 mETERBASRE) -

techniques and inputs used).

Fair value as at
RUTBHZARE
31 March 31 March Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy and key inputs
ZB-NE —ZT-N\F HEFER
StREE =A=1+-H =A=t-8 ATEER TZRAHE
Financial assets at fair value Listed equity Listed equity ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
through profit securities in securities in market
or loss Hong Kong: Hong Kong
- HK$6,065,000 - HK$7,940,000
EREHERATEAR 2RE REBLHH REBLTN &5 TE& BB T % Y
3 RARES BAES: BEAE
- 6,065,000/ 7T - 7,940,000 7T
- HK$116,000 - Level3 Adjusted net asset value approach
Key Inputs:
Discount rates of 10% for both
lack of control and lack of
marketability (2018: nil)
- 116,000/& 7T - F=H5 BB EERMEE
FTERAHE:
BLERZ P IHE R B SR N ERAN10%
ZIEER (2T )\E:8)
Financial assets at fair value Assets: - Level3 Significant inputs are is not based
through other comprehensive HK$1,245,000 on observable market data the
income instrument is inducted in Level 3
FREMZARRRATFEAR &E: - E=H5 ERBABBUFERTHRTS
ZEMEE 1,245,000/ T Y& ZIAIAFZ=HH
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for NREET S—HE R By EE
both years. % o

A\
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3
fair value measurements

At 31 March 2018
Reclassification from available-for-
sale financial assets

At 1 April 2018

Transfer from level valuation

Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
comprehensive income

Impairment loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

43. €T A (#&)

(c) eMIAZAFE (&)

RiGE BN K& R 2 FlEE

2 (#&)

Financial
assets at fair
value through
comprehensive

Financial
assets at fair
value through

income profit or loss
EBHEHM
2HWREHE R EZBEZR
AFEARZ BRAFEAR
EZRMBNFEFEZHE ctHEE ZEMEE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
RZE—N\F=A=+—H - -
BRIt EeRMEEENHE
2,302 -
RZZE—-)\FHHA—H 2,302 -
B AR Bl 4 (8 5 - 700
FREMEPENEZRATEA
RremBEEL A TEE
(1,057) -
FRBRRATEAR
ZeRmEERERRE - (584)
1,245 116

2018/2019 3R

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44, EXERER

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes trade and other payables, finance lease payables,
employee benefits, contract liabilities, promissory note and
convertible notes, net of cash and cash equivalents) and
equity attributable to the owners of the Company, comprising
share capital and reserves.

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital.

AEEEREAZRE AREASERE
R 2 e N AR BRCR BB 3 e A E ik
BFAEAGRERZ UWREFREFSER
REB IR D B AR - AR B 2 BREK S
BB FRALL BT E

REFINABERNEE KRB AIRTH
Petn s i & B B LAR AME T ©

AEBENGEBEERERFE (BREE
5 R EMENRIE BEHEE R A
BERA EHAE AAEBRRITRRKRE
B R ReRREFEY) RARBESR
ANEE# D (BREBRA R HE) o

AEBEZRBREEABREBYEZEER
MERRBE-ERAEN %o B
EBRBERKA KRR RS ERRFHE
@o
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44, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueq)

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period

was as follows:

Debt (note (a))

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity (note (b))

Net debt and equity

Net debt to equity ratio

Notes:

&% (Htit(@)
B BHeMREEEY

BFF58
ez (Hit®))

B FR L m

EF R L R

(@) Debt comprises contract liabilities, trade and other payables,
finance lease payables, employee benefits, promissory note and
convertible notes as detailed in note 25, 29, 30, 31, 32 and 33

respectively.

(o)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the owners of

the Company.

44, EXERER (£)

RBEMR2EBFERER 2L RN

T

ES

(@

2019 2018
—g-nE | —2-N%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
428,533 385,913
(79,915) (70,296)
348,618 315,617
(166,991) (131,296)
181,627 184,321
192% 171%

BEBBRANEE EHREMENTR &

EHERNIE BERN AL RE R
W% FEIE 9 RIS RE25 29 -30 31 -
32533 °

b #&

Ei

BEEMEARRFES AEBELER KR

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#m 8 Bl 5 3R 2% Bt 51

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45. KA RIFEMB AR ZF1E

THE COMPANY

Detalils of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting AEBKBRRRBERRZFBHY W

period are set out below. e
Percentage of equity
Place and date interests and voting
of incorporation and power attributable to Nominal value
Name of subsidiary form of business structure the Company of issued share capital Principal activities
Rt R A ANREENREAESR
WELRERE NUREBRBR R REEBOM ERITRAEE TEER
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-)\F
% %
Direct subsidiaries
EEMELR
TYW (BVI) Limited BVI 2 July 2009, limited liability 100 100 United States Dollars (‘US$”)  Investment holding
company 50,000, divided into
50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1.00 each
TYW (BV)) Limited RBRABE_TTNFLA 5000057 (£]) -5k REER
ZH BREFAH 50,000 &R EE1.00%
T2 EBR
Shenzhen Qianhai Xinhua TV Cultural  PRC, 30 May 2013, limited 100 100 Registered and paid up Advertising business in PRC
Development Limited* liability company capital of RMB30,000,000
RYBTBHEER U ERERAR B —F-=FRA=TH" AMkERERARS RPBEREREEH
BREMARA 30,000,000
Indirect subsidiaries
BENEAR
Tsun Yip Civil Construction Company ~ Hong Kong, 16 July 2000, 100 100 HK$20,000,000 divided Holding of motor vehicles,
Limited limited liability company into 20,000,000 ordinary provision of civil engineering
shares of HK$1.00 each services and laying of water
pipes
EETATIRERAA B ZZRZTELATRA 20,000,000 7 7 A REER RETATERSE
EREMALH 20,000,0008% &R (B REBKE
100872 Bl
Tsun Yip Waterworks Construction Hong Kong, 6 February 1996, 100 100 HK$25,000,000 divided Provision of civil engineering
Company Limited limited liability company into 25,000,000 ordinary services and laying of water
shares of HK$1.00 each pipes
EZKBREEFRAT] B —AAAEZARA: 25,000,000 7 A RETAIREBR
BEREMANA 25,000,000 & R E & BROKE
1.008 T2 @k
Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific Operating Hong Kong, 22 December 100 100 HK$10,000, divided into Television broadcasting

Co. Limited

HEERTAABEARLT

2009, limited liability
company

B& ZTTNETZR
ZTZR BREAAH

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1.00 each

10,0007 7T * % £10,0008%
SRAEGE1.00E T LA
[

business in the Asia-Pacific

region (excluding the PRC)
REKE (TaERE) S

BRERES

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

®
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affect the results of the assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

45.

RARERMBAR 215 (&)

ARAEERR LERMIAEEZHEB R
ANERREARBEERGENHER
Al ARBEFERA HIIHEMHELRZ
FEESARBRITK

BLEM B AR R ERBEITEMEBZES

®

2018/2019 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

46. AR R ZMBRR KR HEE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AQF ZBHBERR R
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 553 1,223
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIKE 53,682 76,529
54,235 77,752
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EAth fE Y GRIE 162 165
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B 8 A =) 5k 08 5,396 8,475
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 651 676
6,209 9,316
Total assets HWEE 60,444 87,068
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued expenses and other payables FE&TF S & H fth fE 1+ 5 1E 43,648 36,148
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < B BB X B FRIE 2,347 2,588
Convertible notes AR EE - 247 511
45,995 286,247
Net current liabilities REBEBEEHE (39,786) (276,931)
Total assets less current liabilites #EEBARBERE 14,449 (199,179)

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019



46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(Continued)

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FHB A&
RESIELE
RIEHAS &

mefE

BEFE

X RMEE
(LN
X

MR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Yan
=5
Director

EF

46. AR R ZMBRR KRR EE (&)

AT ZHBERRE (&)

2019 2018
—2-NE | —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
225,475 -
2,404 179
227,879 179
273,874 286,426
(213,430) (199,358)
4,055 4,055
(217,485) (203,413)
(213,430) (199,358)

EEgCR_T-NEATLARER
RETRMBRE XH TIIALTRRE
FERE:

Li Yong Sheng
TKF
Director

EF

2018/2019 3R

®

hEFHFFESRIZIRBIRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m e Bl 955 3k R Bt 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —F—WF=HA=+—HIFFZ

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

47.

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 April 2017

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer to accumulated losses upon maturity of
convertible notes

Recognition of convertible notes equity reserves
on extension of convertible notes

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer to accumulated losses upon maturity of
convertible notes

Recognition of convertible notes equity reserves
on extension of convertible notes

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes

At 31 March 2019

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZE—tEmA-A

FREEREAEELR

46. AR R ZMBRR KRR ERE (&)

TARERIHREEERER

ERTERRERERTRERRES

R

ERTARREREL CELHARE

RZE-\F=ZR=+—-ARK
—T-\¥mA-H

FREEREABRLR

TRRERIHREEERER

ERTERRERERTRERRES

s

ERTAREEREL CELHARE

RZB-NEZA=+-H

ARRZREELD
Convertible
Share Capital  notes equity Other  Accumulated
premium reserves reserves reserves losses Total
TRRERE
REE EARE BHRE Hitt R BR st
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS' 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$' 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
1,238,195 2,758 62,631 23,647 (1,471,386) (144,155)
- - - - (72,556) (72,556)
- - (62,631) - 62,631 -
- - 1,562 11,994 - 13,556
- - (258) - - (258)
1,238,195 2,758 1,304 35,641 (1,481,311) (203,413)
_ - - - (47,824) (47,824)
- - (1,304) - 1,304 -
- - 17,245 19,352 - 36,697
- - (2,845) - - (2,845)
1,238,195 2,758 14,400 54,993 (1,527,831) (217,485)
47. #HLEMB R K

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2019.

MBBRER —_T-NFRATNLAEE
EEHE R T -

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

frk 55 ik =2

A summary of the results and of the financial position of the Group

for the five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March

Revenue
Cost of services

Gross profit/(loss)

Other income

Other gains and losses

Amortisation expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

(Loss)/profit from operations

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets

Loss before income tax
Income tax

Loss for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company

Yoz
RARA

7/ (8)
EXEION
A LB i
BHEx
HERDHAX
THRAX
FRRRREATEARZ
CREECATEE

2iE (Bi8), /a7

HEMBLAR K

B BRYFARR
REER

HEVAERDZREER

BAEHAER
B

ARAEE NEEFAER

AEEBEDEMBEE 2 EE PR
Z - iR EE B 2 EERMB®RE - &5

—Fo

BE=H=1—HIFFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE “Z-N\E i e NS —T-h%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TET FHET FET FET
(Restated)

(=751)

324,855 370,515 454,447 370,939 369,635
(321,371) (338,000) (473,557) (302,288) (346,553)
3,484 32,5615 (19,110) 68,651 23,082
450 4,093 1,035 906 4,136
3,032 208 3,259 1,950 10,083
(18,594) (19,734) (20,178) (23,598) (24,088)
= (100) (377) 7) (226)
(22,441) (32,101) (33,130) (34,992) (33,121)
(9,123) (1,308) (3,452) (5,773) 502
(43,192) (16,367) (71,953) 7,047 (19,632)
(25,686) (33,331) (37,262) (34,276) (25,720)
- 114 - - -

= (55) 422) (2,238) -

- - - (19,751) -
(68,878) (49,639) (109,637) (49.218) (45,352)
3,576 3,822 5,110 2,775 3,629
(65,302) (45,817) (104,527) (46,443) (41,723

2018/2019 3R
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
frk 5 ik =2

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION HmEBBERR
As at 31 March R=ZA=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE —Z-N\F —T—t5F —E-RF 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE 84,229 106,257 126,742 139,972 181,872
Current assets MEEE 207,872 180,873 208,991 278,368 184,740
Total assets BEE 292,101 287,130 335,733 418,840 366,612
Less: Current liabilities AR EEE 174,625 403,665 415,137 130,832 111,537
Total assets less current liabilities BEEARDEE 117,476 (116,535) (79,404) 288,008 255,075
Less: Non-current liabilities HERBAE 284,467 14,761 22,331 283,377 284,041
Total net (liabilities)/assets/Total equity wE(8E)/AE /s (166,991) (131,296) (101,735) 4,631 (28,966)

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019
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